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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE?”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should
be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean
that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Fursuant to Chapter 36 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange’), the Securities and Futures
Commission (the “SFC”) regulates First China Financial Network Holdings Limited (the “Company”) in relation to the
listing of its shares on GEM of the Stock Exchange. The SFC, The Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and
the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy
or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance
upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of the Company (the “Directors”) collectively and individually accept full
responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules for the purpose of giving information
with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge and belief that: (i) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects
and not misleading or deceptive; (ij) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement
in this report misleading;, and (iii) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful
consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of First China
Financial Network Holdings Limited (the “Company”, which together
with its subsidiaries is referred to as the “Group”), | am pleased to
present the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 December

2014.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group in the year ended 31 December 2014 recorded total
revenue of approximately HK$40.6 million, which was an increase of
approximately HK$25.8 million compared with the last corresponding

year.

margin financing services, the Group

In the business of provision of brokerage and securities
recorded approximately

HK$2.0 million which was same as last corresponding year. As our
Group mentioned in 2014 third quarterly report, our Group believed
Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect will stimulate Hong Kong and
China stock markets. We invested HK$150.0 million on a portfolio of
stocks listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and a portfolio of
stocks in mainland China-based companies that trade on PRC stock
exchanges such as Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. The segment of trading and principal investments
recorded an operating profit of approximately HK$46.1 million for the

year ended 31 December 2014.

The Group commenced precious metals spot trading and brokerage

business in August 2013 by RIIE R it &

TEBREEBRRAT

(transliterated as Shenzhen Guoyin Birilliant Precious Metals Limited),
such business recorded a revenue of approximately HK$36.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2014 with an increase of revenue
approximately HK$23.6 million compared with approximately HK$12.7

million for year ended 31 December 2013.

The Group has acquired 100% registered capital of JF3II T X £ BFE
F BT (transliterated as Shenzhen Star Technology Co., Ltd.) in
July 2014 to develop school safety network scheme and implement

electronic student card business in China.
there was a gain on bargain

Shenzhen Star Technology Co., Ltd,,

In the acquisition of

purchase of approximately HK$74.1 million as contributing to the

Group’s profit for the year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) ¥BOEE)

In April 2014, the Group incorporated an associated company in  RZZ—IN&E PN 7 - A& B R H DS
Qianhai, China, ZYIFIEEES LB S5POEAMR AT (ransliterated K — BB E AT BURIIAIEEES LB
as Shenzhen Qianhai First China Precious Metals Exchange Centre XS DOLAER AR @ I A H38%IH#E - »
Limited), with 38% shareholding. In November 2014, its company —Z—WNF+—FH ERREZBCOEETF
name has been approved and changed to RIIFNEEERHE AR NAFINTEEEEARRSFLERA
XHHRABRAT (ransliterated as Shenzhen Qianhai First China 7l MEXEKHE MW ELR AWM - £ ¢
International Commodities Exchange Centre Limited) and its scope of B #EA EB(T5E®)  AMEE
business has also been changed to the business of wholesale spot EmMEREMBER  UEREHBEEETR
trading of steel, non-ferrous metals, iron ore, precious metals (excluding S FA&ERTHERBEE -

gold), timber, agricultural products and provision of an electronic spot

trading platform and market services etc.

In October 2014, an aggregate of 889,998,000 placing shares have HZ=Z—HF+ 7 - 4 ££889,998,000% fid &
been successfully placed by the placing agent to no less than six M7 EMRE SR BIZE SEBERE EK(7H0.41
independent placees at the placing price of HK$0.41 per placing EITHRINEEFTLRNEBBILAR A - B
share. The net proceeds of approximately HK$355.4 million from the & 218 ~ F7 {8 3 I8 )% 8 %) £335,400,000/%8
placing were intended to be used as general working capital of the 7T #ERAEREBR 2 —REBEESUARR
Group and as funds for future development of the existing business HREAKEHIERIEARNATIRAB XKL Hith
of the Company and other business when investment opportunites %7 KKERZES -

arise.
FINANCIAL REVIEW Bt 5 B A
Results of the Group AEEES

The Group recorded total revenue from continuing operations of ARNEEBREBEE _ZT—NF+ A=+ —
approximately HK$40.6 million for the year ended 31 December HIIFEEAHERKLEBESAN ALY
2014 as compared to approximately HK$14.8 million for the previous  40,600,000/8 JT * HHE N EF L EEAH A
year, there was an increase of approximately HK$25.8 milion or of 14,800,000/ JT + 2 0 £725,800,0007% JT 3¢
approximately 174.3%. The sharply increase of revenue was mainly — #J174.3% - WA Z AT EREE L BELH
came from the commission income from precious metals brokerage S©WARELBRESHNZZHME -

and spot trading profit on precious metals contracts.

The Group recorded profit for the year amounted to approximately — ZN£=EAAREE 5 F5E4117,200,00058 7T -
HK$117.2 million, turnaround from loss of approximately HK$34.0 & F RIH] Z &5 18 £934,000,0007% ;o /6 A
milion for the corresponding year. Beside increased of revenue, Z - BRI AN EFEBEZHXZTVHAR
the significant improve of the result due to gained on bargaining 7 [El B8 £ & & A4 2 8 U B U 25 974,100,000
purchase of approximately HK$741 milion and the unrealized fair BTk FTRERE 2 AEBE A FERZE
value gains on listed equity investments of approximately HK$49.9  %749,900,000/8 L FTE - EERFMEA LA
milion for the year under review. The employee benefits expenses 33,800,000/ JT @ & % 4F 1% /0 918,400,000
showed of approximately HK$33.8 million, increased of approximately 7T TEHRWEHEELBEIFES R
HK$18.4 million compared with last year, mainly due to acquisiton of ZEEEMBERLERFEENEE 2 BEIRE
new business and was included a non-cash and non-recurring item, & 4 2 B 17 8 18 59 5% 496,600,000 7T (=
share-based compensation expenses for share options granted to the Z—=4%F : ) -

directors and employees of approximately HK$6.6 million (2013: nil).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Liquidity and financial resources

The equity attributable to the owners of the Company amounted

to approximately HK$796.0 milion as at 31

December 2014,

representing an increase of approximately HK$679.8 million, or
585.0% from that of 31 December 2013. The noticeable increase
was mainly due to the placement of 889,998,000 shares at the price
of HK$0.41 per share; exercised of 800,000,000 warrants at the
subscription price of HK$0.124 from warrantholders and profit for the
year attributed to owners of the Company for the year under review.

The Group’s net current assets as at 31 December 2014 amounted
to approximately HK$537.1 million compared with approximately
HK$721 milion as at 31 December 2013. The significant of
approximately HK$465.0 million increase was the result of increased
of financial assets held for trading, increased of cash and bank
balances from placed of shares and exercised of warrants. As at 31
December 2014, the cash and bank balances were approximately
HK$308.2 million (2013: approximately HK$83.1 million) of which
approximately HK$14.2 milion (2013: approximately HK$6.0 million)
were held on behalf of clients in trust and segregated accounts; and
approximately HK$1.9 million (2013: Nil) are restricted cash balance
held at designated bank account controlled by customs of the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) as the guarantee deposit for
the motor vehicle under the supervision by the customs of the PRC.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s total borrowings amounted to
approximately HK$12.4 million (2013: approximately HK$14.2 million),
of this, approximately HK$1.8 million was repayable within one year.
The borrowings were secured by charges over the Group’s land and
building as well as corporate guarantees issued by the Company.
Taking into account of the amount of liquid assets in hand, the Board
is of the view that the Group has sufficient financial resources for
future development of the existing business of the Group and other

business when investment opportunities arise.

The Group manages the foreign exchange exposure arising from
its normal course of business activities and investments in foreign
operations by funding its local operations and investments through
cash flow generated from business transaction locally. As at the end
of the year, the Group did not have any material un-hedged foreign

exchange exposure of interest rate mismatch.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued) MIERE(E)

Capital structure M 18

As at the end of 2014, the total number of the Company’s shares W - T — M F K X2 7 R0 & H &
was 6,498,958,120 shares, after (1) issuing of 800,000,000 ordinary  6,498,958,120/% ° 4% (1) A 17 { 32 A% ## & n %
shares for exercising of warrants, (2) issuing of 350,000,000 ordinary ~ 17800,000,000/% & & f% - (2) & U B8 7% JIl T
shares for acquisition of Shenzhen Star Technology Co., Ltd.,, and (3) X £ #& &l £ A B A &) M % 77350,000,0004%
issuing of 889,998,000 ordinary shares by the way of placements, B @ K@) AR & = 2 17889,998,000/%
the total net amount was applied as general working capital of the @K% - HITHEREEFHEDAEALE
Group and as funds for future development of the existing business BEZ—REEEZ S @ WHRIEERBLIERH
of the Company and other business when investment opportunites RARRBIIEBERL M EKHRKER -
arise.

Precious metals spot trading and brokerage ESBREXSREL

This segment played the major part in the result for the year. The RO MBHAFEEEXERIEBRER -HE
revenue recorded from approximately HK$12.7 million of same period —Z—ME+_-A=+—HItFE  ZHH
of last year, rose 1.86 times, to approximately HK$36.3 million or of 51 48 4% & ¥ 75 $% 15 Ut A £936,300,0005% 7T
representing 89.4% in total revenue from continuing operations for — E 1548 UL A #989.4% @ B EF R H 2 U A 49
the year ended 31 December 2014. It recorded an operating gain of 12,700,000/ JT & #11.861% ° 5% 7 £ 1 2l B3
approximately HK$9.3 million during the year under review compared £ & $%15 4% 4 U 25 £79,300,000/8 7T » M £ 4

with an operating gain of approximately HK$0.1 million of last year. Bl £ 15 48 & I %5 £9100,00078 7T ©
Trading of electronic student cards and school safety HESFRELERREREZER
products

This segment commenced business in July 2014 from a newly O BER_ZT—NF+AR—HHUWEHQD
acquired company. It recorded approximately HK$2.6 million ®IFREER - RRIEFE & EESKRA
of revenue for the year under review. It is principally engaged #J2,600,0008 T - Z D EXBEHEHKL S
in development and exploration of various telecommunication ZE MIFESEBARM  LERRKEL 2
technologies in the PRC, in particular, electronic student card for MWAEAFERZETEAE - HRWEEER
safety products the school safety network. Due to lying in the B @ ZoERHBE_ZT—NF+_-_A=+—
development stage, it recorded an operating loss of approximately — H I 5 & $£ 158 48 & & 18 497,400,000/ 7T °
HK$7.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2014,

Brokerage and securities margin financing services BERBHFRESHERT

Total revenue of this unit recorded approximately HK$2.0 milion for HEZZE—MNE+-A=+—HILFE " %
the year ended 31 December 2014, similar to approximately HK$2.0 272 UK A 442,000,000/ 7T + L2 EFH
million for the same period last year. This unit recorded a loss of  H 2 472,000,000/ T #H - Z ¥ K5 H
approximately HK$2.4 milion while loss of approximately HK$3.6 18 492,400,000/ T » M 2 & [A) 8 B &5 18 49
million for the corresponding period. Fierce market competition 3,600,000/ 7T - RANEE - BZIH T I5 5 F
continued to pull down revenue for broking business for the current B IK A 40 B A -

year.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued) MIERE(E)

Trading and principal investments BEEREERE

The securities trading recorded a losses of approximately HK$0.8 & % & & #1158 &5 18 £9800,0007 7T M A [©
million but it record an unrealized gain of approximately HK$49.9  E&4F & %15 2k £ 30 UL 25 #£949,900,0005 7T °
million for the year under review. This segment did not recorded gain Z D BN EF R B L5 ISk E1E -
or loss for the same period last year. It recorded an operating profit #HZEZE_-_Z—MNE+_A=+—HILtFE %
of approximately HK$46.1 million for the year ended 31 December %3 88515 4% 4 K| B #746,100,0005% JT °

2014.

Stock information and research services BREEHRHAERS

This segment recorded a turnover of approximately HK$0.5 milion, #HZE_-ZT—NF+_-_A=+—BItFE " &
due to the tightened regulatory control by the PRC Government for RARBIKFRZBEEIRH] - kD HEIRE S %
the year ended 31 December 2014. This segment did not record any %8 £7500,0007% 7T * M 7 [A) 2 I £ 4% 15 1 {7
turnover for the corresponding period. It reported an operating loss & ¥ %8 o Itk $84%15 497,600,000/ JT 2 45 &
of approximately HK$7.6 million, representing a decrease of loss of &5 18 @ #8 b % 4 &5 18 8 2> 495,400,000 7T
approximately HK$5.4 million or of approximately 41.5% compared 8k #741.5% °

with that of last year.

Wealth management services and provision for trading MEEERBREMXSES

platform

These segments only recorded an insignificant turnover and profit REIEFEERN @ LS D EEHEHEE X%
during the year under review. K -

CHARGES ON ASSETS EEKE

Property, plant and equipment of the Group with a carrying amount 7N £2 [ BR [ {B /& #934,000,000/8 T (=2 —=
of approximately HK$34.0 milion (2013: approximately HK$35.6 £ : #935,600,000/8 7T) 2 ¥ % -« # a2 M R

million) were pledged for banking facilities granted to the Group. MEBFAREEZBITRMEEER -
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES HRERE

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any contingent R-ZE—MNFE+-_A=+—H AEFLE
liabilities (2013: Nil). ERIABERCEZ—=F:8)-
MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF MBATREXKEBRHE EXRE
SUBSIDIARIES/FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL 2 BigstaEl

INVESTMENTS

On 29 January 2015, the Group, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, RZ-ZE—HAF—A-+ LB AEEFBE
First China Securities Consultancy (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. entered into 2 &M BARIEEZSFZACFIDBRAF
an agreement for intent with four independent vendors for proposed BN EBYE T EZUWER S = T4
acquisition of 100% of the issued share capital of Mingin Quantum EBERAT(EH))z 2D ITRA
New Energy Co., Ltd (“Mingin”). Mingin is incorporated in PRC with E M - R TR EEMKZ 2 BRE A
limited liability and engaged in the photovoltaic power generation A @ ETERENIRFEBEK -

business.

8 Annual Report 2014 =2 — [0 F F 5§



First China Financial Network Holdings Limited BHEB&EHEEERBR AT

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

17 BB = &

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF MBASIEXKERHE EXRE
SUBSIDIARIES/FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL ZBigstEI (&)

INVESTMENTS (continued)

The Group is now exercising due diligence work on Mingin and no ZAEBREBTIHEHETRBRESIE B
definite sale and purchase agreement in relation to the proposed HAFBRFIEHMEZWE SRESHE -
acquisition be yet executed.

For more details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated ¥ Z:15  #2HARRBSHA-ZT—1F
30 January 2015. —A=+HZRAMH -

On 19 January 2015, the Company entered into a strategic W_ZT—HAFE—A+NH ANRARIFEZRE
cooperation agreement with the People’s Government of Fushun EBAIR P BIEZE S EETHEE S W xiE 2
County, Fushun City, Liaoning Province, PRC for the proposed RBAREMVTRFIE MEFHEELEIET
development of bonded area for warehousing and logistics in Jiu #EIBZ A R B TR LB A B o

Bing Town, Fushun County, Fushun City, Liaoning Province, PRC.

The proposed cooperation contemplated under the strategic HREIXHHEZ T MK WHHEBFTHD
cooperation agreement may or may not materialize, as no definitive fEETT - HEBE A EEE N RETZE
agreement has been executed between the parties and discussions A FRIREEHTEEE -

are still in progress.

For more details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated ® %15 #F2HARFESH AT —1F
20 January 2015. —RBZt+HZAMH -

Save as disclosed, there was no other material acquisition/disposal KIEEEIN REOBEFERN  AEEHER
which would have been required to be disclosed under the GEM fhE AW sk HE=BEBREAIZR L

Listing Rules for the year under review. AT LAHEER o
EMPLOYEE INFORMATION EBE&EH

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had a workforce of 234 R-ZE—N&F+_A=+—08 AEEEA
employees (2013: 210). The total staff costs, including directors 234%ZEE(ZZE—=F:2108) - HE-ZT
emoluments, amounted to approximately HK$33.8 million for the year —PME+=ZA=+—HILFE ET KA (&
ended 31 December 2014 (2013: approximately HK$15.4 milion). & & 5 % Bi) & 3£ 933,800,000/ 7t (=& —
The Group’s remuneration policies are reviewed on an annual basis =4 : #915,400,000/8 Jt) ° K& B & F15 5t
and commensurate with the industry pay level. The remuneration  FrEMER{ER BT BSREFEN K FIR 2 /R —
package includes basic salary, provident fund, medical benefits % - HFIEMNBRFEELGE  AEE  BEE
and discretionary bonus. The Group has also adopted a new share & Fl| K& B 15 FEAT o 7 5 B U8B 49 37 BE A% #8 =1
option scheme as an added incentive for its employees. During the EIfEABEEB T 2 5EIMNER) - NAREER -
year, the Company had granted 45,000,000 new share options to the — ZN/2A &[] & = 3% j745,000,00017 51 88 i% # °
directors.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S STATEMENT

17 BB =&

OUTLOOK AR

Since proprietary stock trading bought a profit of approximately HRBEREXSFREBZEZ_T—NF+_A
HK$46.1 million to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014, =+ — H 1L F € A& 78 5% & %5 5k 4946,100,000
our Group is optimistic on the stock market performance and will B2 FE @ At AEBURETIHHORR
continuously invest in Hong Kong and China stock markets. BeBERE UEFEERENEBELRTERK

ESE

In the advantage of having legal licences in trading precious metals  REEFEHEEELCEXIEBENAETH
business in China, the Group believes the business of precious BZEZ AEFHEE S2BRETHN
metals spot trading and brokerage will bring more profits in the & EFNRKGELEZFE -

future.

In the coming year, the Group will also develop the electronic student KR —4F - BEEFITREBR AR QT
card business as Shenzhen Star Technology Co. Ltd. entered a EEFEEEEED ARIRETEESEE HE
contract with Hainan branch of China Telecom in promoting electronic & F 24 BEKI L — AR NEB IR
student card business in Hainan Province, PRC. Through the FHRETELEFER - B@EFPRET K%
cooperation with China Next Generation Education Foundation, we BE&EAE RMFLEEZHNBLEENT
expect more students can enjoy the school safety network scheme, ZERREZZ2REE - REAEESLEH
in the meanwhile our Group expects to generate more revenue. It EIE B ZH IR A o

In addition, our Group will continuously develop the business of  Ith4b - 75 B 15 4% 3 B o B7 48 22 2 4 B i 4
Shenzhen Qianhai First China International Commodities Exchange B A R BT L 59 35 o2 A Fh B 3 22 45 it I
Centre Limited (“Qianhai First China Exchange”) by cooperation with THEIBES M XE 2 2 LY RFER = EH
the People’s Government of Fushun County, Fushun City, Liaoning &fF  ElL#ERE R EEEHEER
Province, PRC concerning the development of bonded area for XZHOLARAT (AIEEERLS]) 2 ¥ o
warehousing and logistics in Jiu Bing Town, Fushun County, Fushun E Y AERYRRIES EEIEETRER)E
City, Liaoning Province, PRC. The establishment of warehouse and MRANFEEX S EERMRRENELZHEE
logistic facilities, as for, including but not limited to, the settlement EBKA AEZE&ELIfF - FEEEZIZER
and delivery purposes of the relevant business of wholesale spot THiEIEZE R - EZERNFII—HAEIE
trading of various commodities from time to time of Qianhai First 281 @ UWHBAIEE ELFETEREIR
China Exchange. Qianhai First China Exchange has recently entered FREE MM S @ NI EBEE R R S5
a cooperation framework agreement with an agricultural company in B X5 F4& - ZH X Z B MEBRE -
Liaoning Province to assist Qianhai First China Exchange to develop

edible mushroom commodity market in China, also assists the edible

mushroom commodity traders to handle the trading procedures,

provide trading training and information services.

For more details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated E %15 #2HARRHESMA-ZT—R1F
20 January 2015. —AZ+RZRAM -
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S STATEMENT

17 BB = &

OUTLOOK (continued) RI=(E)

As the Group is confidence in solar power electricity business, HRAEEH KGREZBEKBAEEL @ K
we entered into an agreement of intent in relation to the proposed £EEEREZKBEHE FHEBEEAR AT
acquisition of 100% of the registered capital of REIEFHLRER (REDZI00%BEWRERET L EMRZE - B
AR) (transliterated as Mingin Quantum New Energy Co., Ltd) (‘Mingin’)..  #AEFBEFMKZ 2ER A #EXRK
Mingin is incorporated in PRC with limited liability and engaged ZEEK - BB HER~ RYEHALER
in the photovoltaic power generation business. According to the ABEMEBREEHATMEE - REEBAE
representations by the vendors, Mingin has commenced generating Y RSETRBRES @ HHEEI LG5I
and supplying electricity to State Grid Gansu Electric Power 1ERXEE W& °

Corporation (B # H#F&E EHAE]). The Group is now exercising

due diligence work on Mingin and no formal sale and purchase

agreement has been entered at this stage.

For more detalls, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated % %15 FL2H AR B AT —HF
30 January 2015. —A=+HZRAMH -

| would like to take this opportunity to thank our shareholders, Board ZAAZEHEeRKRE BEFe BEIL¥E
of Directors, our staff and business partners for their continuous 7§ £ £ ¥ AN & E 1 % 35 K & Bk 55 B

support and commitment. RR o

By order of the Board EEEG W

Lee Yiu Sun FRERN

Chief Executive Officer T AEE,

Hong Kong, 16 March 2015 BB ZE—RF=A+H

Annual Report 2014 ==& — U4 F 3] 1



12

First China Financial

Network Holdings Limited HEB LR EEEBTR QA

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE
EEREREEBAERERE

EXECUTIVE DI

RECTORS

Mr. Wang Wenming, aged 52, is the Chairman of the Company. Mr.
Wang obtained an EMBA degree in K& T K2 (Dalian University
of Technology) and he is a senior operator (& #& 4% ) and
researcher (#ff 3¢ &) of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences.

Mr. Wang had established (1) &ZEFHAZMORY) AR AT (First

China Securities
Shenzhen”), (2)

Consultancy (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd) (“First China
Y= BBt AR AR (Shenzhen Wealth

Alliance Networking Co., Ltd) and Q) FIIE X E L EFEEEA
A] (Shenzhen Sky Picture Communications Co., Ltd) which engages
in stock information advice, |.T. network and audio and video
production respectively. Since the appointment of Mr. Wang Wenming

as the Director o

f First China Shenzhen, under his leadership, First

China Shenzhen has achieved growing revenue, profits, and industry
recognition in 2003 and 2004. As a result, it was selected by the

Futian District Government of the Shenzhen Municipality as one of

“Shenzhen Futian District's Top 100 Taxpaying Enterprises” with

annual tax paym

ent of over RMB10 million. Mr. Wang has been

elected as a Congressman of the People’s Congress for Shenzhen

Municipality since

Association and Entrepreneur Association of Futian District of

2005, Deputy Chairman of both Enterprise Alliance

Shenzhen Municipality since 2005, Deputy Chairman of Shenzhen
Chamber of International Investing & Financing, Shenzhen Association
of Enterprises with Foreign Investment, Shenzhen Liaoning Enterprises

Association and

Shenzhen Liaoning Chamber of Commerce since

2009, Deputy Chairman of Shenzhen Entrepreneur Association
and Shenzhen Enterprise Confederation, China since 2010, Council

Member of Guilin

Overseas Friendship Association since 2013.

Mr. Wang is the father of Mr. Wang Jiawei.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE
EERSREEBANERERE

Mr. Lee Yiu Sun, aged 57, is the Chief Executive Officer of the ZEMEHEISHE @ 575 AARIITHAER K=
Company and joined the Group in May 2000. Mr. Lee has over 20 ZZZEZF R AMANER - EEAEEBAEN
years of experience in the securities and financial service sector. & @RS ¥ ZRE0FKEH - — LA N\F=E
Starting from 1998, Mr. Lee is the committee member of Electon % @ HAEBBVASGRITHEEERZES
Committee of Hong Kong for Legislative Council and Chief Executive. Z&8 - B _ZZNFHRBAEREEB RS
Since 2009, Mr. Lee is being the committee member of Guangdong's EIRE SR EFKIEE AR DREEF S B
Association for Promotion of Cooperation between Guangdong, S ¥%#We@kiELEBeRk FTELALIHEE
Hong Kong & Macao, the Perm. Honorary President of Hong Kong E&£BEAR AR 2B BELIE - AR —
Securities Association. Mr. Lee was formerly the Managing Director I AtEE—HANEFEHEFT BB AELHHR
of Celestial Asia Securities Holdings Limited. Mr. Lee was a Council AR AREEE€EE  —hLAWNEE—HLAI
Member of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited from 1997 NFREEBLEEBFHIHBEEEME -
to 1999 and a Committee Member of the Chinese Gold and Siver —ZETZEZZE-_TT+EELTHFEBEZIGKD
Exchange Society from 1994 to 1999. Mr. Lee was also the member RITR SR EIIREZESEZE  —TTN\ZE
of the Banking and Financial Services Training Board of Vocational —Z—ZFEBIEAMPEEKEREZES
Training Centre in Hong Kong from 2000 to 2007 and the member KEEHREANANLZEGLZE  —TTNEZ
of Investors Education Advisory Committee of Securities and Futures Z——_F BT EEZEFLERSHRBER
Commission from 2008 to 2010. He was the member of Financial #HZECLZE FE_ZTLHFE_ZTThH
Services Advisory Committee of Trade Development Council from FHEEIEFEELFKLEME TR - Tkt
2008 to 2012 and the Chairman of the Hong Kong Stockbrokers A&t M XEETEM  AEBEET
Association from 2007 to 2009. Mr. Lee holds a Master of Arts EBEEHMAEEERESGHMATE
Degree in Accounting and Finance, and is an associate member of JF&E

the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants and a fellow

member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Wang Jiawei, aged 28, obtained a Bachelor of Science in EREX%E 285 —EENFEENEH
Mathematics at Imperial College London in the United Kingdom in @3 E &R RIS HEBEE 24 - 1
2009 and a Master of Science in Finance at City University London £ =% — & 4 7 22 Bl & 200 T K 2 VS B 1%
in the United Kingdom in 2010. From October 2010 to July 2011, EBEBELE -fhH_ZT—ZTF+AE_F
he was a market analyst of the investment department in Shenzhen ——F+ A FEAGRPEHNZFITET
Shouguan Investment Co., Limited in the PRC. Since August 2011, REABRAFREMEETZ DM - B =
Mr. Wang has been a manager of First China Securities Limited, a ZT——FN\A ThE—"EBEAARRAZHE
subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Wang is also the director of Victor A7A] BEZSBRAA)  ETLERBA -
Creation Global Limited from August 2014 and Elpis Capital from B _-_ZT—WUFN\NAM_Z—NFNLA Tk
September 2014, and non-executive director of Elpis Capital Limited 45,49 5l Victor Creation Global Limited &
from September 2014, Elpis Capital WE= ' MHH_Z—UFILAAE
REBEABRAFIMIENITES -

Mr. Wang is the son of Mr. Wang Wenming. FEEREXHEEZRTF ©
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE
EEREREEBAERERE

Mr. Chen Li, aged 50, is an independent non-executive director of

CCT Fortis Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 00138) and CCT Land
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 00261). In 1985, Mr. Chen received his
Bachelor Degree in radio from the physics department at the Jiangxi
University in China (now known as Nanchang University since the
amalgamation of Jiangxi University and Jiangxi Industrial University
in 1993 and the Jiangxi Medical College in 2005). In 1994, Mr. Chen
was appointed as vice president of K& @BI{ZAMR A7), where he
worked for 17 years. Then, he was the director of A BT %% E /&
JNIE R AT from 2011 to 2012 and vice president of Global Digital
Creations Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 08271) and &I & gL 1%
EEEARAF from 2012 to 2014.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Runtong, aged 41,
Department of Chinese of Nankai

obtained Bachelor Degree from
University in 1996. He also

holds qualifications of economist, registered securities investment
consulting analyst and registered insurance broker issued by various
professional organizations in China. For the past 13 years, Mr. Liu
has held different positions in various financial media institutions
and financial services institutions in Mainland China. During his
tenure from 1998 to 2002 as a responsible person for marketing
the newspaper “Securities Times”, he participated in establishing
the “Panorama Network” (www.p5w.net),
website in China and acted as its major responsible person. In 2000,
he acted as consultant in establishing and operating the program
“Securities Times” produced by “China Central Television”. From
2002 to 2007, he served as “Program Supervisor” in “Shenzhen
Stock Exchange Shenzhen Securities Information Co., Ltd”, where
he participated in setting up and managing “Trading Day”, the 24-
hour PRC program regarding securities. Because of his outstanding
performance, he was elected as one of the “Ten Best Staff” of the
“Shenzhen Stock Exchange” in 2004. Since 2011, Mr. Liu has served
Convoy China Financial Services Holding Ltd as a Vice President. He
is also being the executive director of Shenzhen Qianhai CONVOY
Asset Management Co., Ltd., starting from 2013.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE
EELESHREEBAERERE

Mr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. (“Mr. Jim Rogers”), aged 72, is an James Beeland Rogers Jr. 5t & ([7& £
author, financial commentator, adventurer, and successful international  Ef & £ 1) 725 BEXR - @ @ T #H 8
investor. He has been frequently featured in Time, The Washington SR M KNEEREE - # & ¥ PG
Post, The New York Times, Barron’s, Forbes, Fortune, The Wall ) (Time) * {ZE 5% 18 T #§ ) (The Washington
Street Journal, The Financial Times, The Business Times, The Straits  Post) (4 #JB5#R) (The New York Times) (&
Times and many media outlets worldwide. He has also appeared f& & TJ) (Barron’s) » <& 1 &) (Forbes) - (&t
as a regular commentator and columnist in various media and has &) (Fortune) ~ (ZEE 1 H¥R) (The Wall Street
been a professor at Columbia University. After attending Yale and  Journal) (& 3R ) (The Financial Times) *
Oxford University, Mr. Jim Rogers cofounded the Quantum Fund, a (@ 2 R) (The Business Times) * (/& I iF
global-investment partnership. Mr. Jim Rogers also serves as a full  #}) (The Straits Times) & & Bk R % ¥ 82 K 55
professor of finance at the Columbia University Graduate School of BB A - HINAL THE Y THTHE E
Business, and, in 1989 and 1990, as the moderator of WCBS's ‘The #{ER W L AaFmit o K22 % - giE B
Dreyfus Roundtable’ and FNN’s ‘The Profit Motive with Jim Rogers’. BRAFERERR  BERLTEXREANRTE
BEEERETED BEHETXENET
BT REFEReMEBZRHE LR
—NNANFR—NLNLEFEEWCBSER &
{The Dreyfus Roundtable) FNN {The Profit
Motive with Jim Rogers) 8] 3 #F o

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BIAKEBITES

Professor Zhang Benzheng, aged 75, graduated with a Bachelor BSRAIEHI® 755 — N AARAERERNSE
Degree from the Faculty of Engineering Physics of the Tsinghua AZ2TREWER B2 LE( - RARY
University in 1965. He was a visitng scholar in the Brookhaven 7 3 [BlBrookhaven National Laboratoryk &
National Laboratory of USA and the Stuttgart University of Germany. BEETBMGEAZHMEE  HFBELSTEKR
He was the vice director of the Tsinghua University R&D department ZRFIEEIE RN SEAZRERAEEND
and the general manager of Tsinghua University Science and AIAKEE - —ANANFE-_ZTT_F/H - #tb
Technology Corporation. During the period from 1999 to 2002, he D BIEFEINIZ ZET LT 28 FE LWL A A
held various senior positions in two companies listed on the Shenzhen FEEX K H Z2EBRMHERARETZE
Stock Exchange, namely Tsinghua Unisplendour Limited and Tsinghua E8 - £ — ST - FEMILM R A RIAT - b
Unisplendour Guhan Group Corporation. He was the chairman and H®IB DRI ABEX T EEERMD AR
legal representative of Tsinghua Unisplendour Guhan Group Corporation ZEE& MJE AR KU MIBEXLBRHERA
and president of Tsinghua Unisplendour Limited before he left these Al Z 4% - ff —TZE - F B EBE LN
companies in 2002. He then joined Tsinghua Unisplendour (Group) (£B)#@ARIAE BE_ZTZTIF - kA
Corporation in 2002 and was its president until 2004. Professor Zhang FE AILRERHEBIAERFWER « Y
is currently the general vice president and secretary of the Beijing Non- /& S A g 2 S8 E T sE FI B FRE BUS 48 -
Governmental Science & Technology Entrepreneurs Association. With AETBACEXEETEXRNER - TER
his remarkable business leadership as well as exploratory initiatives, 1S T7T#H EHEZEF @ BEN—ZIIHEE -
Professor Zhang had made tremendous contribution to the companies — M NLtFRHBRLEZBREFZFRIEZ
he worked for. He has not only gained compliments from the society HEFRBEOCERE | _ZTTFE[FS
at large, but has also won a series of honors. In 1997, Professor Zhang %< 7 1 78 £ B 10 3 5 Bk &t 22 | Fn 4t R R 175 78
received the national prize of “The Third Term Science and Technology ZEHW[AIZ LA | —ET - FXNHF AT
Light Award for Outstanding Scientific and Technological Entrepreneur”. BN EHEF L ER] - RBRBE TR
In 2000, he won the “Hong Kong Bauhinia Cup Outstanding BREEBHDER QAR (—ERFIIESFZ
Entrepreneur Award” and the “Entrepreneurial Talent” award issued by ST ETEI AR » 5 R 5 : 300010) 2 ¥& 3L
the Beijing Non-Governmental Science and Technology Entrepreneurs #E %

Association. In 2002, he was selected as the first lot of “Zhongguan

Village Outstanding Entrepreneurs”. Prof Zhang is currently an

independent director of Beijing Lanxum Technology Co., Ltd (a

company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 300010).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE
EEREREEBAERERE

Mr. Tony | Tong, aged 47, is presently an independent non-executive
director and Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr.
Tong currently also serves as Consultant of Guangdong Dena Law
Firm and director of Shenzhen Dena Management Consulting Co.,
Ltd. Mr. Tong graduated from the University of Minnesota with a
Bachelor Degree in Mechanical-Industrial Engineering. Previously Mr.
Tong served as Consultant at Andersen Consulting (now known as
Accenture), Adjunct Professor at the University of Minnesota USA,
and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Tong is the
inventor of “Internet Work Flow System” (US Patent Number 6,012,066)
and is a frequent speaker on technology investment. Mr. Tong has
over 20 years of experience in management consulting, financing and
technology investment in USA and China. He is co-founder of Pacific

Financial

Services Ltd and PacificnetVentures.com, a renowned

venture capital investor in China. Mr. Tong was CEO and director of
Pacificnet (Nasdag listed) from 2000 to 2007, and an independent
non-executive director and a member of the audit committee of
Garron International Limited (HKSE stock code: 01226) from 2007
to 2010. Mr. Tong was named “Asian Gaming 50” by Inside Asian

Gaming Magazine in 2008.

Mr. Li Jianxing,

aged 57, graduated from Shanghai

Maritime

University with a Bachelor Degree in accounting. He also received
a Master Degree in Business Administration from Canisius College
of Buffalo. Mr. Li has over 20-year experience working in the field
of accounting and corporate finance and has substantial experience
in management in various listed companies, investment business,

investor relations and project management.

He was the senior

manager of both the investment department and finance department
of China Everbright Holdings Co., Ltd from April 1998 to June 2000.
He served as the Chief Finance Officer for Intermost Corporation
from June 2000 to 2003. From April 2003 to February 2004, he was
a General Manager of Investor Relations in China Resources Power
Holdings Co., Ltd. He has been a director of Concord Investment

Holdings Limited since 2004.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE
EERERAEEANAERERE

Professor Chen Shu Wen, aged 60, graduated from BILEI&E K BREI XMW 6057 - EXER BB EKRE
B (Dongbei University of Finance and Economics) with a Bachelor WAL EEELEL - T RE AR AZEE
Degree in Economics and obtained a Master Degree and a PhD in & BEE2E+METE26 - HASEKRPEEZ
Economics from FH#KAZ (Jilin University). He is a qualified PRC B A EZ XA R EEAHE - BE4
lawyer currently practising at EEX & EZMEMKA (Liaoning Tianhe RAEABRBMFIEHEEZFERELBELR -
Law Firm). Mr. Chen has substantial management and leadership HR—NAWN_FHRETHBEAEILKAE
experience serving in the PRC government. He commenced his BENEMEEARARKRFEEGR HiEZ
career as the deputy county chief of the Benxi Manchu Autonomous M — MW QW AEK AR ET L EEHNELE
County, Liaoning Province, PRC, in 1992 and became the director &FXT - H—HANAN\E-ZTEZT—F FANK
(EfE) of MEMKERFINEELZE S Benxi City Commission for EMUHINKEEEZAIEZESRTIE -8B
Restructuring the Economic Systems) from 1995. He was the vice ZZE=f# RELAHEKEBRITAEZQNHE
director general (BlEF) of KEMEINEEESAIELZES Berxi BEHRZEISEBRTHR L AE T LEEM - K
Foreign Trade & Economic Cooperation Committee) from 1998 untl #HRBE AFE A EREAE(ER)BROHER
2001. Since 2003, Mr. Chen has been the professor and the tutor for 2 8GRI E H X 5 A & H R 15 - 000881) &
doctorate students at REIET ABQAHEIRPELLBELT (School = °

of Public Administration and Law of Dalian University of Technology).

He is currently a director of FEIAERR & E(EE)BRHERAF

(China Dalian International Cooperation (Group) Holdings Ltd) (Shenzhen

Stock Exchange Stock Code: 000881).
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and

18

the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated on 24 May 2001 as an exempted
Islands under the

company with limited
Company Law of Cayman Islands.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

liability in the Cayman

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set
out in Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are
set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other

Comprehensive Income on pages 44 to 45.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend nor
transfer of any amount to reserves for the year ended 31 December

2014 (2013: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group and the Company during the year are set out in Note 17 to

the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set
out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman

Islands,

the share

premium of the Company is available for distribution as dividends to
its shareholders subject to the provisions of its Memorandum and
Articles of Association and a statutory solvency test. In accordance
with Article 137 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
dividends may be declared and paid out of the profits of the
Company or from any reserves set aside from profits which the

Directors determine to be no longer needed. With the sanction of

an ordinary resolution, dividends may also be declared or paid out
of share premium account. Accordingly, the Company’s reserves
available for distribution was HK$nil as at 31 December 2014.
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DIRECTORS S

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of FAREHEARELH AR EEESD

this report were as follows: N

Executive Directors BITES

Wang Wenming (Chairman) FXHR(EE)

Lee Yiu Sun (Chief Executive Officer) TR (TTEABEE)

Wang Jiawei TH=E

Song Binyang (resigned on 11 September 2014) KRG (R=ZFE—HFENA+—HEFT)

Haroon Hasan (@ppointed on 11 September 2014 and Haroon Hasan (R =ZF —/HF /N H+—H
resigned on 4 February 2015) EZTIR -FE—FAF - HAZT)

Chen Li (@ppointed on 28 October 2014) BMO(R=ZF—mFE+A=+/THEZF)

Non-executive Director FERITESE

Liu Runtong 28

James Beeland Rogers Jr. (@ppointed on 22 September 2014) James Beeland Rogers Jr. (K=& — g4

NAZF+=ZHEZ(F)

Independent Non-executive Directors BIAFERITESE
Zhang Benzheng RARIE

Tony | Tong &

Li Jianxing FRAT

Chen Shu Wen Bk 181 3¢

In accordance with Article 87(1) of the Company’s Articles of RIBEARRGE 2 AFIH L =248 87015 -
Association, the Directors retiing by rotation at the forthcoming ZFRHF AL FRALERZMEEELELEBR
annual general meeting are Mr. Lee Yiu Sun, Professor Zhang EEBRBEFASHESE - REARFZ
Benzheng and Mr. Tony | Tong. In accordance with Article 86(3), Mr. AR # S 2 MBI E86Q) 15 R k4L K
Chen Li and Mr. James Beeland Rogers Jr., being appointed by the  James Beeland Rogers Jr.%t £ A =& — IO F
Directors after the Company’s last annual general meeting held on 24 XA -+ WHBERT2 A QA E FEREBEFK
June 2014, will hold office until the annual general meeting. All five GREZITAES HETHEEREBEFL
directors are being eligible for re-election and will offer themselves for &A1t - IERZEEHFTAER T EER
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The remaining EER RBEFASEIRET - HpAE
Directors shall continue to hold office. FRBERT -

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS EERBEY

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming BRAEERERRFAEEREFT 2 EEH
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or EEARQ G K ET MM B AR HER AR
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employing Al R —FERNIEBBEIELEE CEERERIN)
company within one year without payment of compensation other 1& & IEZ RIEE L -

than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES

AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2014, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
taken under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and

the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(@) Long positions in shares of the Company

EERITHEBRNREQERY - HEH
BREREHFZERRER

RZE—WF+_A=+—H ESFRAR
RAITHARHEEARF SN EE @A EE(E
ERFEHFRHBEEGIEXVE) 2 &G - HE
BORESS  EEREFESFRBEIENE
W%%U@“%EﬂAK 7) K B 22 P 2 HEE
DRARE (BEBREEFRPEEMNEBIK
NHEEWEFESBIERBEZEZIRAR)
SR 15 75 5 N BRI B 5535214 78 70 8% A 7%
Rl ELEMR SRR - &mﬁﬂ
¥R TR B FE546E567IEBME AR
R Rz EmIORB T

(@) RELITRHZHEAR

Number of shares

478 4=

Approximate

Personal Family Corporate percentage of

Interests Interests Interests Total shareholding

Name of Directors EE & 1B N HE 23 RIEH#ERS AT R My BMAOBBRESL

Wang Wenming ED¢:;] 450,212,307 145,116,650 — 595,328,957 9.16%

(Note 1) (Ff5E1)

Lee Yiu Sun ol 110,060,000 — — 110,060,000 1.69%

Wang Jiawei B 202,043,628 — — 202,043,628 3.11%

Liu Runtong 21E 2,646,000 — — 2,646,000 0.04%

Note: Py iz

©) Mr. Wang Wenming held 450,212,307 shares of the Company. Ms. Chen ™) T B 5t A 450,212,307 8% AR A &) IR

Dongjin, the spouse of Mr. Wang Wenming, held 145,116,650 shares
of the Company. As such, Mr. Wang Wenming was deemed to be

interested in 595,328,957 shares of the Company.
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(b) Long positions in underlying shares of the Company (b) MREATHBEABKHBZEE
Share option scheme of the Company ARFIERERZ
The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 17 RKRABRZEE—F+HTEEHEK
December 2001 (the “Old Share Option Scheme”) has expired moBERETI(EERESTEDE
on 16 December 2011. The Company adopted a new share RZE——FF+ZA+X BER AR
option scheme on its annual general meeting held on 21 June AR ——FNAZ+—BRTZ2EK
2012 (the “New Share Option Scheme”) which complies with REFASHEMNTHEEIER ETHR
Chapter 23 of GEM Listing Rules. Bl 823% 2 7 8 AR 7 51 & ([ A8 A 1

FED -

The following table discloses the details of the share options TREBESRITRAHNEEC
held by the Directors and chief executive to subscribe for —mE+=ZA=+— EI IEFEFMF 75
shares of the Company during the year ended 31 December AIREARBIR O 2 BRREFS:
2014.

Number of share options

i
Outstanding Cancelled/  Outstanding
asat Granted Exercised lapsed as at Exercise
Name of 1 January during the during the during the 31 December price
Directors Date of grant 2014 year year year 2014  Option period (HK$)
R-B-ME RZF-ME
-A-H EmiEs$/ +-A=+-H fTEME
EEfE REAY HATE FREE ERTE ES HRTE BRESR (&)
Wang Wenming ~ 13/04/2010 11,682,577 - - — 11,682,577 13/04/2010-12/04/2020 0.419
ESL] “F-TFMA+=H “Z-FFNA+=RE=F-FFMA+=A
Lee Yiu Sun 13/04/2010 31,861,575 - - - 31,861,575  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 0.419
FEH “E-ZEMAT=H —E-TEMA+=AZ-T-FFMA+=H
Lee Yiu Sun 05/09/2007 4,248,210 - - - 4248210  05/09/2007-04/09/2017 0.215
FRH “ZTtFNARR —EE+ENARRE-E—tENANA
Liu Runtong 13/04/2010 31,861,575 - - — 31,861,575  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 0.419
28 “F-TFMA+=H “Z-FFMNA+=RE=F-FFMA+=A
Zhang Benzheng  13/04/2010 2,124,105 = = = 2124105  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 0.419
RAE “E-ZEMAT=H —E-TEMA+=AZ-T-FFMA+=H
Haroon Hasan ~ 22/09/2014 — 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000  22/09/2014-21/09/2024 0518
Haroon Hasan  =Z—MFAA=+=H (Note 2) —E-NEAAZ+T=AZE-Z-mEAA=+—-H
(K zE2)
James Beeland  22/09/2014 — 20,000,000 — - 20,000,000  22/09/2014-21/09/2024 0.518
Rogers Jr.
James Begland —E-MEAA-F+-H —E-MEAAZTZBE-Z-MEAA=T-A
Rogers Jr.
Chen Li 13/11/2014 — 15,000,000 = = 15,000,000  13/11/2014-12/11/2024 0.590
&5 “E-ME+-AT=H ZZ-WET-A+t=AE-Z-mEt+-AtZA
Note: B &
© With effect from 4 February 2015, Mr. Haroon Hasan resigned as ) BE-Z A= AVA# ' Haroon Hasan
an executive director of the Company. Accordingly his entitlement EEBEARTBNTES - Bt - REH
to share option lapsed on the same date. Reference is made to the ZHEBRERRBARK - LR AQFHH
announcement of the Company dated 4 February 2015. BT —RAF-_ANBZAf °
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(c) Short positions in underlying shares of the Company

() REQFHEERGBZXA

Number of shares

% 4 8B

Approximate

Personal Corporate percentage of

Name of Director Interest Interest shareholding

ESna B A HE 2 AT R BORRESL

Lee Yiu Sun (Note 3) 50,000,000 - 0.77%
R (M 5E3)

Note: B &

©)) Pursuant to an option deed dated 31 August 2005, Asia Network
Holdings Limited entered into an option deed with Mr. Lee Yiu Sun (“Mr.
Lee”) whereby Mr. Lee granted Asia Network Holdings Limited an option
to purchase all or part of his 50,000,000 shares in the Company at such
time and such price when Mr. Lee intends to transfer or dispose of all
or part of the shares to any person during the period commencing on
31 August 2005 till the date when Mr. Lee ceases to be interested in the
shares.

Save as disclosed above, during the year, none of the Directors nor
the chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have
any interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required (i) to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO); or (ii) are required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered into the register referred to therein; or (i) are required,
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ FERFRHMALTNALATRGER
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND HE ARy 2 HE 2 R ik

UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

So far as is known to any Directors of the Company, as at 31 EARAREZEEZMRMN R-_T—WNF+-A=
December 2014, the following persons (not being a Director of the +—H @ BIEB SR E K H FEI86IETFE
Company) had interests in the shares or underlying shares which 2 &2 MATEREE » THIA L (WIEARRFESE)
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant RAXeiEEER (DS - A D B R E A & 5
to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as E &l £ XVEBFE2R3D SF & X M & AR A
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the KB FT 2 i 2%

SFO:
(a) Long positions in shares of the Company (@) REATRGBZHE
Approximate
percentage of
Name of shareholders Capacity Number of shares shareholding
BEREE 5 5 BHEHEE #BMOBREDEL
Wang Wenming and Chen Dongjin (Note 1) Beneficial owners 595,328,957 9.16%
F B B PR A2 (P RE1) EnEAA
Zhu Wei Beneficial owners 350,004,000 5.39%
K EmEAA
Note: B &
) Ms. Chen Dongjin held 145,116,650 shares of the Company. Ms. 1) [ 2 12 77 1+ 5 H145,116,6500% & 2 A i
Chen Dongijin is the spouse of a director of the Company, Mr. Wang D RAEZLARARESIXHLE
Wenming, who held 450,212,307 shares of the Company. As such, they Z B8 - i F AR S A 45 5 450,212,307 %
were deemed to be collectively interested in 595,328,957 shares of the ARATRG - Bl - HERBRERFS
Company. 595,328,957 i AR N & B 1) o
(b) Long positions in underlying shares of the Company (b) REATHEAKRHNBZETE
Approximate
percentage of
Name of shareholders Capacity Number of shares shareholding
BRESE 5 BEHBE #SOBBRESH
Wang Wenming and Chen Dongjin (Note 2) Beneficial owners 11,682,577 0.18%
F B K PR &2 (Fff 7 2) EmEAA
Note: B &T -
) Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, Mr. Wang Wenming was granted © REEREE  R=ZFE—FFWOA+=
on 13 April 2010 share options, the number of shares underlying which H - T XA 5 A % AT 3R #811,682,5770%
was adjusted on 15 June 2010, to subscribe for 11,682,577 shares of ARARGOzEREEBARNBBER=
the Company. Ms. Chen Dongijin is the spouse of Mr. Wang Wenming E-ZTENATRAELARE)  RLE
so they were deemed to be collectively interested in the share options to ZEDEXRTEEZRB  WEFHR
subscribe for 11,682,577 shares of the Company. AR A T R 11,682,577 AN A & iR

02 BB AR HE -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, the Company
had not been notified of any other person (other than the Directors
whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” above) who had an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company and was required
to be recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336
of the SFO and/or was directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more
of the issued share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
at general meetings of any other members of the Group.

DETAILS OF THE OPTIONS GRANTED BY THE
COMPANY

Share Option Schemes of the Company

The Company has adopted a share option scheme under which the
Directors or employees of the Company or its subsidiaries or certain
other persons may be granted share options to subscribe for shares
of the Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated in the
Scheme.

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 17 December
2001 has expired on 16 December 2011. The Company adopted a
new share option scheme on its annual general meeting held on 21
June 2012 which complies with Chapter 23 of GEM Listing Rules.

(1) Summary of the Scheme

() Purpose of the scheme
The purpose of the scheme is to provide the people and
the parties working for the interest of the Group with an
opportunity to obtain equity interest in the Company, thus
linking their interest with the interest of the Group and
thereby providing them with an incentive to work better
for the interest of the Group.
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(i) Participants of the scheme (i)  EZEE L HEE
Pursuant to the scheme, the Company may grant share RIFEZTE - ARAIAI A A TA
options to (i) employees of the Company (whether fulltime TEREERE:()AAFZEES
or part-time) or any of its subsidiaries or associated (T AEB S EB) K AQFF
companies; (i) Directors (whether executive Directors, AMB ARSI E RRICEE:
non-executive Directors or independent non-executive (i) A2 &) 2 E A AT BT B~ ) ok B
Directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or BREICEF(TRAIITES
associated companies; (i) suppliers of goods and/or ERITEEXBIIERITESE)
services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries or (iii) 2N 2 &) sk B AF {a] B B 2 B ok B
associated companies; and (iv) professionals engaged ARz Emk SR B R
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries or associated K (iv) AR~ &) s E AT AT Y B A Bl 3k
companies. B R NRIFTZE 2 EEATLT -

(i) Total number of shares available for issue under the (i)  FZETE|E T o] #7172 K17 A8 &
schemes
As at 31 December 2014, the total number of shares RZE—WNWF+=—A=+—8"
available for issue under the New Share Option Scheme BB ERET S THET R
was 357,896,412 shares, representing 5.51% of the total 17 48 B A357,896,4120% 15 % 36
issued share capital. BEITIRAZ551% °
The maximum aggregate number of shares which may be RATERBE S ERE E R
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted SE 2 E R EAMERER SR
and yet to be exercised under the New Share Option B R EAEITE B ARITEE
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the R ZEI1T RN & KREE
Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares THBEBARRNRTHRETRGOZ
of the Company in issue from time to time. No options 30% ° MBBXE T EHEBBIR
may be granted under any schemes of the Company 2 AL AR AR IR AR B R
(or its subsidiary) if this will result in such limit being NE(HEMB AR 2 E MG S
exceeded. = e

(iv)  Maximum entitlement of each participant () H2EEERED LR
The maximum number of shares of the Company issued REBEEZERERTEBBIEEA+
and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted “ERHME BR2EERTE
and to be granted pursuant to the scheme and any other RARZ AT 8l R AR A R AT (o] H A HE
share option schemes of the Company (including the BHEFEEEERARESH
Pre-IPO Share Option Plan) to each participant in any ERETEMEREBERZ
12-month period up to the date of grant of the options EAREmMERITR B ERT LR
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the NEIRDEE  HRETFHEANR
Company in issue, save for those share options already NAIBETRMDEE1% - HER
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Plan. BERAHAEEMBRETSIX

2 R AR RR S

Annual Report 2014 —Z—mEEE 25



First China Financial Network Holdings Limited BHEBEHKEBER AT

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

V)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viff)

Option period

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the scheme at any time during a period of not more
than ten years to be notified by the Board of Directors
of the Company (the “Board”) to each participant which
period of time shall commence on the date on which an
offer of the grant of an option is accepted or deemed
to have been accepted in accordance with the scheme
and expire on the last day of such period as determined
by the Board. There is no minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised.

Payment on acceptance by option offer

HK$1.00 is payable by the participant to the Company on
acceptance of the option offer as consideration for the
grant and received by the Company within 14 days from
the offer date or within such offer period of time as may
be determined by the Board pursuant to the GEM Listing
Rules.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price per share of the Company under the
scheme is determined by the Board and notified to each
participant and shall be no less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange
on the date of offer, which must be a day on which the
Stock Exchange is open for the business of dealing in
securities (“Trading Day”), (i) the average closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five Trading Days immediately preceding the date of offer,
and (jii) the nominal value of a share of the Company.

Remaining life of the scheme

The Old Share Option Scheme has expired on 16
December 2011. The New Share Option Scheme will
remain valid for a period of 10 years commencing on 21
June 2012 (save that the Company, by ordinary resolution
in general meeting or Board may at any time terminate
the operation of the New Share Option Scheme) and in
such event, no further options will be offered but the
provisions of the New Share Option Scheme shall in all
other respects remain in full force and effect.

26 Annual Report 2014 =2 — [0 F F 5§

v)
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(vii)
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(2) Details of share options granted by the Company 2 FATFIEHEBREZER
On 5 September 2007, 13 April 2010, 22 September 2014 and RZZEZEELFNAAB -2 —F
13 November 2014, options to subscribe for 32,400,000 shares, FOMA+=BA ZFT—WmWFNLAZ
84,000,000 shares, 30,000,000 shares and 15,000,000 shares TZARZZE-—NME+-—A+=H
of the Company respectively were granted to the Directors and ARHMEZERARAAETEERD
certain employees of the Company. As at 31 December 2014, A 7R E#32,400,0000% * 84,000,000 -
details of the outstanding options were as follows: 30,000,0000% &15 000,000f% & A &

Bz EkiE R-_FT-HOF+-A=
+—8" rc‘q?kfﬂiﬁﬁﬂx%Z%—'I%ﬁuT:

13/04/2010 86,026,253 — — — 86,026,253  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 0.419

“Z-ZFWNA+=H —Z-ZENA+=AZ-_T-_FFMA+=A

05/09/2007 4,779,236 - — — 4,779,236 05/09/2007-04/09/2017 0.215

“ZTtENRTA —ZZ+FENARRE-T—+tFNARA

22/09/2014 — 30,000,000 - - 30,000,000  22/09/2014-21/09/2024 0.518
(Note 2)

—Z-mFAR=t=A (f#2) —Z-WMEAA-+-BE-T-_WMEAA-t—H

13/11/2014 — 15,000,000 — — 15,000,000  13/11/2014-12/11/2024 0.590

“Z-NF+—-A+=A —E-N&E+-—A+=BE-Z-_NE+-A+=A

Notes: M aE:

) Pursuant to the Old Share Option Scheme, 32,400,000 shares and ©) RIBERKRETE  AQREHFIR=-Z
84,000,000 shares of share options were granted by the Company on 5 Z+tFNLARAR-ZE—ZFTFMNA+=H
September 2007 and 13 April 2010 respectively and were adjusted on 15 ¥ H132,400,000/% £284,000,000/% Z & i%
June 2010. WA ZE-EFXATRAYLME

& #E 1 T EE o

@) With effect from 4 February 2015, Mr. Haroon Hasan resigned as 2 E-Z—hF=AHB# ' Haroon Hasan
an executive Director of the Company. Accordingly his entitlement FEBTEARRRTEST Bt B=H
to share option lapsed on the same date. Reference is made to the ZHERERRBRR - LR AQF HH
announcement of the Company dated 4 February 2015. ARZE-—RE-_AMBZAM -

Annual Report 2014 —B—mEE®R 27

D o P ,d




First China Financial Network Holdings Limited BHEBEHKEBER AT

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DIRECTOR’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme as described above and in
Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures)
of, the Company or any other body corporate and neither the
Directors, nor the chief executive, nor any of their respective spouses
or children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

There was no contract of significance, save as disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements, in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

LITIGATION

In November 2012, the SFC has served a petition under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance against one former Director (Mr.
Yin Yingneng Richard) and two current Directors (Mr. Wang Wenming
and Mr. Lee Yiu Sun) of the Company and the Company. By a High
Court order on 16 January 2015, the said Directors were ordered
to pay the Company a total sum of RMB18,692,000 with interest
as compensation. Consensus has been reached amongst the said
Directors and the Company that the compensation with accrued
interest will be paid in full to the Company by 6 May 2015 and that
Mr. Wang Wenming will bear the primary responsibility over the said
payment. A further hearing will be held on 30 September 2015 to
determine whether disqualification orders should be made against the
said Directors.

A summons has been initiated by the SFC on 9 March 2015 against
the proposed extension of time for the repayment of the said
compensation, with the relevant hearing fixed to be heard on 22 April
2015.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS FTEEFRRMER

For the year under review, the Group's turnover attributable to its [EEER @ AEB R AR R RNEF L%
five largest customers combined accounted for less that 2% of the A XLRAEEBLEFTN2% - ERA
Group’s total turnover. The Group had no major supplier due to the EBTEEKME AEEVETBHER -
nature of principal activities of the Group.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED fBE  BEofiHELHES
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries HF R @ KRR SHKETAHB AR FEHEE -
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities. BRI HERATEM LHES

COMPLIANCE WITH RULES 5.48 TO 5.67 OF THE GEM PRI R LR AI%55.48E5.671%
LISTING RULES

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’ ZARRIERMBEBESEITE LIS ZEST
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required 8|  MABMER 2 BEERETENA %
standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM 1R 8 B 5554856715 FT & i £ X 512
Listing Rules. The Company’s Directors have complied with such £ AAGIEEDETEBRTEINURR

code of conduct and the required standard of dealings. ERGIZLE o
PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS BhBERE

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s AR F Z ARIBEHSIZME|SHE S B0
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which WET AR ELEERE 2K BUFEARARD
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis &l ZBIZ LI AIRARFEIR ZEEHKMD -
to existing shareholders.
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AUDITORS

Since HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited tendered its resignation
on 11 November 2014 as auditors of the Company, the Board has
appointed Cheng & Cheng Limited as auditors of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2014.

Cheng & Cheng Limited shall retire in the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for reappointment.
A resolution for the reappointment of Cheng & Cheng Limited as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Lee Yiu Sun
Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 16 March 2015
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CoRrRPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES TEEEER

The Board assumes overall responsibility for the leadership and &#Z=S€EBBEREERER Y 2EHEIT -
control of the Group, including providing and setting the Group’s BIEEHEREIEFTARNEEBNEZERES
directions and strategies in the interests of the Group. It believes AN - EFE FERIFOEETAKTER
in good corporate governance and corporate governance practices MEEAFERANIESEEEEL  HHAX
that promote investor confidence, development of the Group, and SEEEBERELEIERE  RFEHRAEARN
transparency while having the long term interest of the Group and &£ BEAREERMNZLREFAREEEZ K
enhancement of shareholders’ value as the ultimate objectives. It has H1Z - EF @R MAIZE R -8 BIKT 8+
adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance R EESATFRIN({EE TR
Code contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules (the SFEMES - RAEI D ETREE AT o
“Corporate Governance Code”). The Company was in compliance

with the Corporate Governance Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS ESETEHXS

In respect of the standard of dealings required of directors, the ZAAGIEHEREZEAET  HHNEH
Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’ HEBETEERX S 2IRFAER] - AR
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required 212 E N R Al ¥R - R B $5.4855.67
standard set out in rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. (&R ELEE] c EEDETFARTIBHE
The directors have complied with the Company’s code of conduct EHITEERH R FER] o

regarding directors’ securities transactions.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS EEE

As a result of one of the executive director, Mr. Haroon Hasan, Haroon Hasan4t 4 B A 3£ 7% & E fih 25 75 7%
resigning with effect from 4 February 2015, due to his personal X BTN TEEERE BH_ZT—FHF—
business engagements and other commitments. Comprising of four HAPMBRAM - HITEESHULHITES
executive and six non-executive directors (including four independent KM NEZIEHNITES (BIENZE I IEHTES)
non-executive directors), the present board has an appropriate #BA( - HEKBRE - AR ARFIZEE
composition of directors. In ensuring that the Company has an &S # - B AR QTR B BT B AR
effective Board, the segregation of the role of Chairman and Chief B &9 =B RITEEE 2 BT o KI5 8| 2R
Executive Officer has been in place since the listing of the Company T8 All £5.001& &K & &) Y 5| & 7 38 37 IE &,
on the Stock Exchange. The Company has received from each of TEZEZEFEUERE REE2EBE VI
the independent non-executive directors an annual confirmation of HITEZEEABI AL - RITEESMHEBEBG
his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules =927 WBIEHTEEHK -

and is in the opinion that all independent non-executive directors are

independent. The present board is composed of more than one-third

of independent non-executive directors.
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The present board of directors consists of:

Wang Wenming (Chairman)

Lee Yiu Sun (Chief Executive Officer)

Wang Jiawei (Executive Director)

Song Binyang (resigned on 11 September 2014) (Executive Director)

Haroon Hasan (@ppointed on 11 Septermber 2014 and resigned
on 4 February 2015) (Executive Director)

Chen Li (@ppointed on 28 October 2014) (Executive Director)

Liu Runtong (Non-executive Director)

James Beeland Rogers Jr. (@appointed on 22 September 2014)
(Non-executive Director)

Zhang Benzheng (Independent Non-executive Director)

Tony | Tong (Independent Non-executive Director)

Li Jianxing (Independent Non-executive Director)

Chen Shu Wen (Independent Non-executive Director)

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 12 to
17 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management Profile” to this annual report, the Directors have no
other financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships
with one another.

The Board is mandated to determine and review strategic objectives,
appoint and supervise senior management, approve quarterly, interim
and annual reports, and review the principal risks of the Group’s
business to ensure that these risks are within manageable limits. It is
also mandated to approve any substantial investment, acquisition or
disposal by the Company. Major corporate matters that are delegated
to the management include the execution of business strategies and
initiatives approved by the Board and the preparation of quarterly,
interim and annual reports for the Board’s approval.
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Responsibilities, accountabilities and contributions of the
board and management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All
Directors should take decisions objectively in the interests of the
Company.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters relating
to policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and coordinating the daily operation and management of
the Company are delegated to the management.

There were four board meetings during the year. The attendance of
Directors at the board meetings was as follows:

B HEMHURHEESREEED
BR

E=ZREERENEHARR  THBE
BEEBESINEEARREBEMIEEARART

MY - 2BESREBUARR M ED
RTE °

EZ2REREMAEESEE EPFRK
REH KWLEE  AFEERERER -
EXRZG BRI ERE S RNEERE) B
BEH ZEEERARAHMEREES
H - ARNTEZESRR BERBAARR
ARFEEREENBERRTERE -

FAHBITORAEFS R EF2EFTY
ERLEENAT

Attendance number

of meetings attended/

Number of meetings

during term of service

HEEHBERRE
Members 2= EREITERRE
Wang Wenming F A 3/4
Lee Yiu Sun =3 4/4
Wang Jiawei EEE 4/4
Song Binyang RHBE(R=_ZT—NFHLA+—HE D

(resigned on 11 September 2014) 3/3
Haroon Hasan Haroon Hasan (R=Z — M F L A+ —H

(appointed on 11 September 2014 and EZAVYR-_ZT—AF_AWBET)

resigned on 4 February 2015) 11
Chen Li BRAOMRZZE—MOF+A=Z+/\BEZMT)

(appointed on 28 October 2014) 11
Liu Runtong 2158 4 4/4
James Beeland Rogers Jr. James Beeland Rogers Jr.

(appointed on 22 September 2014) (R=E—NFNLA=-+=—_BEZT) 11
Zhang Benzheng SR IE 4/4
Tony | Tong =R 4/4
Li Jianxing BRAT 4/4
Chen Shu Wen FeR 81 32 3/4
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There were three general meetings during the year. The attendance
of Directors at the general meeting was as follows:

FREBITZRBFERERD -
ZHEERNAT:

E=EkREAE

g

Attendance number
of meetings attended/
Number of meetings
during term of service

HEEHBEERRE
Members j24=] ERNETERRE
Wang Wenming F X ER 1/3
Lee Yiu Sun e 3/3
Wang Jiawei FEFE 1/3
Song Binyang Rl (R_ZF—WFNLA+—HFE)

(resigned on 11 September 2014) 0/1
Haroon Hasan Haroon Hasan (R=Z—MF N A+ —H

(appointed on 11 September 2014 and EZAIR_FT— ﬁi_ﬂ /Y B & )

resigned on 4 February 2015) 1/2
Chen Li (appointed on 28 October 2014) RA(R=ZZE—HF+A=+/\BEZF) 0/1
Liu Runtong 2158 4 0/3
James Beeland Rogers Jr. James Beeland Rogers Jr.

(appointed on 22 September 2014) (RMZZE—NFNA_+=HEZF) 0N
Zhang Benzheng SRR IE 0/3
Tony | Tong & 3/3
Li Jianxing BRAT 1/3
Chen Shu Wen FeR 81 > 0/3

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the board remains informed and relevant.

During the year, Mr. Lee Yiu Sun, Mr. Tony | Tong and Mr. Li
Jianxing have attended training courses conducted by professional
parties. The attended directors have provided the Company with their
respective training records pursuant to the Corporate Governance
Code. All directors were provided with reading materials on relevant
rules and regulatory updates.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee with
specific written terms of reference. The present Remuneration
Committee consists of a majority of independent non-executive
directors.
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As at year end date, the present Remuneration Committee
of six directors, Professor Zhang Benzheng, Mr. Wang Wen

CoRrRPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

consisted REH#H WITHFMNEZESHERAEHE
ming, Mr.  FXEREE - FRFEE  BELE - TH

Lee Yiu Sun, Mr. Tony | Tong, Mr. Li Jianxing and Mr. Chen Shu Wen. 1754 MBI XA NZESZHEHK - ~BE

Four out of the six directors are independent non-executive

directors. EHEANEZABIUIERNTES - EPET

Professor Zhang Benzheng, being an independent non-executive JFMITEERALHIBZAZEESTE - %

director, is the chairman of the committee. The Rem

uneraton ZEEZEBELBESERARFTEHEES

Committee’s role and function includes making recommendations to N SR EIE A SR HEBBE L 20E Mtk
the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for remuneraton M IFEMEFZAENREFHTHMEE @

of directors and senior management and on the establis
formal and transparent procedures for developing policy
remuneration. It also has the delegated responsibility to dete

hment of ZEEZEREEZ FTHZEGMERER
on such EEEHNTEELREREEAB ZETH M
rmine the 58 -

N

specific remuneration packages of all executive directors and senior

management.

The Company’s remuneration policies are determined on the basis of ZAAGZ H ML VL E T K& =7 1E & B

the contributions of staff and directors. Long-term incentive

schemes AREEEBTF BEINEZFZEHERAIE

for staff and directors include share options and cash bonuses. FEERERIREEAL -
The Remuneration Committee held four meetings during the year and #HMZE SN FRNG RTINS H  ERE
the attendance of its members was as follows: ZHEERNAT
Attendance number
of meetings attended/
Number of meetings
during term of service
HEEHBEERRE
Members B8 ERNEITERARE
Zhang Benzheng SR IE 4/4
Wang Wenming F 32 ER 4/4
Lee Yiu Sun = 4/4
Song Binyang Rl (R_ZF—WFNLA+—HEFE)

(resigned on 11 September 2014) 3/3
Tony | Tong & & 4/4
Li Jianxing BRAT 4/4
Chen Shu Wen FeR Af X 4/4
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During the vyear, the Remuneration Committee’s work includes
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
executive Directors and non-executive Director, considering the terms
of executive directors’ and non-executive Director’'s employment
contracts and making recommendations to the Board for granting
of share options under the Share Option Scheme of the Company.
Ensuring that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has established a Nomination Committee with
specific written terms of reference. As at year end date, Nomination
Committee consisted of six directors, Professor Zhang Benzheng,
Mr. Wang Wenming, Mr. Wang Jiawei, Mr. Tony | Tong, Mr. Li
Jianxing and Mr. Chen Shu Wen. Four out of the six directors are
independent non-executive directors. Professor Zhang Benzheng,
being an independent non-executive director, is the chairman of
the committee. Thus the present Committee consists a majority of
independent non-executive directors. The Nomination Committee’s
role and function includes, but is not limited to, reviewing the
structure, size, composition and diversity (including but not limited
to skills, knowledge and experience, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, or professional experience) of the board of
directors on a regular basis and making recommendations regarding
any proposed changes; identifying and recommending individuals
suitably qualified to become board members; and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive directors.

The Nomination Committee held three meetings during the year and
the attendance of its members was as follows:

FA - FHEE@2ITEREMNANTESER
HATESZFHAESSRLESR  BE
WTESMFRTEZRRA N ZIERRIK
BARBBEREFINEZTSHBERHBR
B-BEABMEESAETABREAZEE
EMECHFM

EERAE

ARBEKILIERZE S WEER ABE
#HE - NFER REZEBSHRALHER
IX\ARE - IRERLE BERLE T2
TERERREXEERNBRERTEAN: NBE
SPHEFMBARBUIRTES - HFBYL
FATEFRALBIRAZEEEF - At -
RBITREBZEGZ KO KE RIBILIFH
TEF -RRZEEZBBMBERE(E
TRAERRISEFEZIRE A4
B K % T (BFEE AR N EE &3 k&
B MRl Fik XERBEESHEEL
Bom) THREMEZSHRLER:
EREBABREERAETESTMHAL:
AR ZBILIFRTEST 2RI

"

o

REZBERFRAGRITZIR
Z R

i3

% HpKE

p=I1l

Y

Attendance number
of meetings attended/
Number of meetings
during term of service

HEEHBERRE
Members 54— EREITERRI
Zhang Benzheng NI 3/3
Wang Wenming T X7 3/3
Wang Jiawei FREE 3/3
Tony | Tong fE & 3/3
Li Jianxing T 3/3
Chen Shu Wen PR A8f X 3/3
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On the nomination process, the Nomination Committee review HRIRZBIRT @ RZZEeENEETSRE
suggested the candidates for directorship having regard to the A8~ A K Z ik (BIEE TSR A EEE
candidates’ reputation and the specific skills or expertise that Hl:kN&% - MR Fit  XERBEE S
these candidates can contribute to the Company in the light of the SXEEKLHRHTME) EEHERFEREAZEE
structure, size, composition and diversity (including but not limited A MAHREEFARN T 24555k pe ek = % M
to skills, knowledge and experience, gender, age, cultural and MNUEMZEFEEAETEEZREZEN -TH
educational background, or professional experience) of the board B BAEANNGEL B & BN MR FH AR
of directors. Only candidates who have integrity and can provide RAIEBEZREA HeERLZESERE
specific contributions to the Company thereby enhancing the value of RHMAEZEEE -

the Company are considered for nomination to the board of directors

by the Nomination Committee.

During the year, the Nomination Committee’s work included reviewing FR - ERZ8 € 2 I{EREBRFT=ZRES
three candidates for directorship, having regard to their reputations fEE A @ZEHREZBELERIELE @
and their specific skills, in view of their potential contribution to the B2 E M EH ARG AR EL T B - S BE
Company; it subsequently made recommendations thereon to the &gtitAIEESIR HESE -

board of directors.

AUDIT COMMITTEE BEZZEEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee with specific ZARRIEKYBIXEZES @ WEME:]HEE
written terms of reference. The Audit Committee consists of four & & - BREZES€hMEGELELE - RALHIR -
independent non-executive directors, Mr. Tony | Tong, Professor 2174 4 N R £ N Z BT IEHTT
Zhang Benzheng, Mr. Li Jianxing and Mr. Chen Shu Wen. Mr. ZBBEMAK - HhBIERNTESTEEELE A
Tony | Tong, being an independent non-executive director, is the ZEE®IF  EXRZESZHBENMRBESE
chairman of the Committee. The Audit Committee’s role and function FAMNEZEMMET  EFEINRERAE
includes making recommendations to the Board on the appointment, E&iR#E% A EXBEANFH L
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to approve the B2 FR{E 3 128 A E B i M BE R INEHX
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor; review HAIRABURBELEZHUEFEEAI M
and monitor the external auditors’ independence and objectivity and ~ ZEEHMNEE A% R AM I {1 JE A% AR FE & & B 5R -
the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable W FAETT ER AR BNBMERER F/E
standards; develop and implement policy on the engagement of an $R&ENMKER X FELRFTERENTENE -
external auditor to supply non-audit services; monitor the integrity WEHBRERMBREMABBEI B RFHNEKX
of financial statements, annual reports and accounts, half-yearly and E & @z A AR EEEHE - NEPEEIE
quarterly reports of the Company, and review significant financial RERERBHIE  URBTAEENTBELES
reporting judgments contained in them; review the Company’s &tEER -IBFNER -

financial controls, internal control and risk management systems; and

review the Group’s financial and accounting policies, procedures and

practices.

The Audit Committee have reviewed the consolidated financial EZZE S D IREAIZE R E#R I8+
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 HFIH M EEATIRMCEEAREZE
pursuant to the relevant provisions contained in the Corporate X BHAEEHEZ T —MNE+_H
Governance Code And Corporate Governance Report as set out in =+ —HIFFEZHGAMBRE  RAEXS
Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules and were of the opinion that &A@ A S TEL - YD I IEHEH
such statements had complied with applicable accounting standards — # &

and that adequate disclosures had been made in respect thereof.
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The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year and the
attendance of its members was as follows:

v

il

ERZBERFAGRTHORE
ZHEERWT

i3

% HAKE

=11

A

Attendance number
of meetings attended/
Number of meetings
during term of service

HEERHBEEERE
Members 24 ERETERRE
Tony | Tong fE & 3/4
Zhang Benzheng SRR IE 4/4
Li Jianxing TETT 4/4
Chen Shu Wen ReR A 32 3/4

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the accounts and the
reporting responsibilities of the auditors are set out on pages 42 to
43.

The accounts for the year ended 31 December 2014 were audited
by Cheng & Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire at
the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board
that Cheng & Cheng Limited be reappointed as the auditors of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
the Code Provision D.3.1. The Board reviewed the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the GEM Listing Rules,
and the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the remuneration paid to
the auditors, Cheng & Cheng Limited in respect of audit services
and non-audit services amounted to approximately HK$400,000 and
HK$20,000 respectively. For the year ended 31 December 2013, the
remuneration paid to the previous auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited, which tendered its resignation on 11 November
2014 as auditors of the Company, in respect of audit services and
non-audit services amounted to approximately HK$450,000 and
HK$80,500 respectively.
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CoRrRPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTERNAL CONTROL P &R B2 4=

The Board is responsible for the internal controls of the Group and ZEFE&BEREE 2 NEEIERE NIRRT R
for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board requires management HZBXRIME - BEEGEREBEERETAINE
to establish and maintain sound and effective internal controls. RELT#ZEREZEMAEN - BEEBE
Evaluation of the Group’s internal controls has been conducted by % 5% 7K & B 2 1A 30 85 4% DA & (R A 26 &5 422
management on an on-going basis to ensure that the system of ZXLZHAEXMERE MK -

internal control is effective and adequate.

During the year, the Audit Committee’s work included having held R BEZZE€ 2 I{FEEERTOAE
four meetings to liaise and discuss with the external auditors % @ EIMNEZHEBMELTH  WEEEE
and listening to reports from the management on the financial EREEEIR - MISHEN ABIMZE TIE
management, financial statements and audit of the Company. It #HREAFRMEFERKNEBERARNERERREZ D
was found that the management of the Company and its respective 2 E M MIFEBE - B HMIEB AR ZRE
subsidiaries performed their respective works wholeheartedly. They fTEBHERERLEKREFE NEEB
have discharged their duties in good faith in line with their corporate #H  ER M EHCHKENERINEFS
constitutions to make sure that the operations of the business run &% Filsm o HEBABIEE T « EIEEE -
compliantly. During the course of managerial control, advice and AR EELEKREEETFHREEANBAE
recommendation is collected and forwarded for discussion in the H¥E - it EECHEHEEAZTHEEE
board meetings. There has been no significant issue arising out of A% B B#E °

financial, operational, compliance and risk management controls in

the Group. Accordingly, the Board believed that there would be no

significant matter to be brought to the shareholders’ attention.

COMPANY SECRETARY ATIWE

The Company Secretary of the Company is Mr. Lee Yiu Sun. The ARRNAGMEESTRIF L - AEIME
Company Secretary assists the Board by ensuring good information HREEESXKECHEARABIFNBREE
flow within the Board and that Board policy and procedures are ZgHREBENREF #HMXEZEFE - R
followed. He has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional Z—MEDES N DIMSE/NEIEREH S
trainings to update his skills and knowledge in 2014. FA B E R pe R AN -
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CoRrRPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles and Associations of the
Company, any one or more shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Shareholders may put forward proposals at general meeting of the
Company by sending the same to the Company at the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong ten days before general
meeting.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Board of Directors/Company
Secretary at the Company’s head office. For the avoidance of doubt,
shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original duly signed written
requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be)
to the Company’s head office and provide their full name, contact
details and identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.
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CoRrRPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INVESTOR RELATIONS BREEMRE

The Company adheres to high standards with respect to the AR RIFLAR I AIZE R £ AR Bl m) B SR %1 88 A
disclosure all necessary information to the shareholders in AMWEBREFSIEE - KQRIE B MFE
compliance with GEM Listing Rules. The Company strengthens ANAFABIET|EAHLRERERE  BHERD
its communications with shareholders through various channels ARAFRIZAERZFIEERAFAETREE
including publication of interim and annual reports, press release  fN3% ER A% B 2 /& i@ o

and announcements of the latest development of the Company in its

corporate website in a timely manner.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, there is no significant HE-ZT—MNE+_A=Z+—HIFE XK

change in the Company’s memorandum and articles of association. NAIZHEBERRARER AR &EEMA
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B I EED IR

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
FIRST CHINA FINANCIAL NETWORK HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of First
China Financial Network Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 44 to 171, which comprise the consolidated and Company’s
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2014, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

% 3L 1% B A R &

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence it ¥R #7172 F A KEEUE B ?/.:.\57}7?‘3#&2%
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial FIEHGHELBEBEEHNZELRE -MET
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 22 FEUR R EEN 2 HE - BiEFEER
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material HMFFRERMEBR G AT K HREREFEEAX
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due $EFRFER Il 2 B - R HZ SRR E - &
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor & Eﬁ%)’%iﬁ%ﬁ"ﬂﬁﬁ%’%ﬁéﬁﬁ%i&ﬁbﬂ’ﬁﬁ
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of BEEMAFHRABEEAIBIEH - LAKS
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view EENEEF EBEMTIFEHQF Wﬁﬁ =
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the HIMBERMBRXRER BAOEIBEEHR
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on HAZEHHEZABEMERAEL Z €54
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes 2 A URTFEHEAMBRE 2 g
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the %3k A5 = ©

reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as

well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and ~ ZNAZ & ETHE(E - A BEMRES 2 BHHEE

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. REARMEE AR ZEM 2B B RIEMH
2o
OPINION BR

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and ZAZEBMR L GAMERRBEEFT A
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company as at R EEBEE M AT RMEALERNARQ
31 December 2014 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the ®IR-ZE—MNFE+_A=+—HZEHKML "

year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting RASE#HZZHITFEZ2FBERRERE -
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the H44& ﬁ7} ﬁ“iﬁ%aﬁiﬁﬁiﬁ /NEIK 3V s

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. BIRTEZB! mad o

Cheng & Cheng Limited BE S EBRMAERAT
Certified Public Accountants HESIED

Hong Kong, 16 March 2015 B —ET—AF=A+H
Cheng Hong Cheung B R

Practising Certificate number P01802 B 258 E 4R 57 P01802
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CoNSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT 0R Loss AND OTHER CoMPREHENSIVE INCOME
CEeEZRHEMBMEZEIANRE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—Z—WNF+-_A=+—HIFE

2013
—T—=F
Note HK$
B 5 BT
Continuing operations HEGEER
Revenue B 5 40,616,592 14,809,860
Cost of sales $HEMK A (2,243,738) —
Gross profit £ 7 38,372,854 14,809,860
Other income and gains H Al A R &= 7 86,365,886 470,679
Employee benefits expenses EERAMAX 10 (33,825,167) (15,433,126)
Depreciation of property, plant and W WERREBETE
equipment 17 (5,613,885) (4,525,365)
Amortization of intangible assets | EESH 19 (887,435) (2,518,360)
Impairment of goodwill EERIE - (3,700,843)
Impairment of trade receivables FEWE 5 R IERE - (119,484)
Write-down of inventories 17 & MR - (5,036,720)
Finance costs [ 5= WD 8 (399,844) (457,438)
Other operating expenses HEf &R (31,368,196) (25,956,731)
Gain on bargain purchase A ERE Y= 74,145,459
Change in fair value of contingent EWSAREB AT EE
consideration receivable (8,018,240) —
Share of profit of associate JEAG B & A ) 1,594,693 —
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETEBATFE(BE) 9 120,366,125 (42,467,528)
Income tax expense FrisBiF 2 13 (3,147,706) (844,111)
Profit/(loss) for the year from REFESEEBZERFE
continuing operations (E518) 117,218,419 (43,311,639)
Discontinued operation CRIEEEER
Profit for the year from discontinued REERIEEEEBIFRN
operation A 15 - 9,333,152
Profit/(loss) for the year FRFE(EE) 117,218,419 (33,978,487)
Other comprehensive income: Ht2mA:
Items that may be reclassified to profit or ~ H{ER[fE @ EH 7 FHE 1822
loss HA
Currency translation differences: EHENZ8:
— Group — 58 (235,204) 1,061,504
— Associates — BE QT (534,354) 450
Other comprehensive (expense)/income for R EM 2@ (B ) WA -
the year, net of tax =gk (769,558) 1,061,954
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for  FREML A (FIx)EE
the year 116,448,861 (32,916,533)
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CoNSOLIDATED STATEMENT oF PROFIT OR Loss AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

aEmkHEMBEEWANER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—Z—WNF+-A=+—HIFE

2013
—T—=F
Note HK$
=2 BT
Profit/(loss) attributable to: FEAEFIE(§518) :
Owners of the Company ARFEAA 14 114,540,442 (34,033,645)
Non-controlling interests FE 15 R b 2 2,677,977 55,158
117,218,419 (83,978,487)
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of FAATHHABGEUTZIE
the Company arises from: EEZAE(BE) :
Continuing operations BEKEER 114,540,442 (43,366,797)
Discontinued operation BRI EER - 9,333,152
114,540,442 (84,033,645)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) EREEZEW AN (FX)
for the year attributable to: “iE:
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEFEDN 113,788,027 (32,972,409)
Non-controlling interests FEVE AR 2,660,834 55,876
116,448,861 (82,916,533)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) AXATHEBAEEUTEIE
attributable to owners of EEZ2ZEHKA (FAX)
the Company arises from: “iE:
Continuing operations FBEKEER 113,788,027 (42,305,561)
Discontinued operation BRI E R - 9,333,152
113,788,027 (32,972,409)
Earnings/(loss) per share from FERFEATNHEBEANEEFER
continuing and discontinued ERLEEEEBREREN
operations attributable to owners (E518)
of the Company for the year
Basic earnings/(loss) per share (HK cents) &M EARZEF (EE)GEN) 16
From continuing operations RERFEREER 2.31 (1.03)
From discontinued operation REDRIEEEETRS - 0.22
From profit/(loss) for the year FRFE(EE) 2.31 (0.81)
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (HK cents) &R EEEN (E18)CGEA) 16
From continuing operations REBEBECEETR 214 (1.03)
From discontinued operation REDKIEEEERS - 0.22
From profit/(loss) for the year FERNFE(EE) 2.14 (0.81)
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL PosITION

B4 %5 ik L B R

As at 31 December 2014

R-E—NFE+=-A=+—H

The Group The Company
EN AAT
2014 2014
—E—ME —F-MmE
Note
B 5
Non-current assets REBEE
Property, plant and equipment W RN 17 42,547,096 43,716,964 44,121 222,447
Investment property BEME 18 - — - —
Intangible assets BB E 19 246,839,417 2 - —
Statutory deposits and other assets EEE & M Hih & E 20 6,106,735 6,907,850 - —
Investments in subsidiaries REBRATZRE 21 - - 4,771,260 4,771,260
Investments in associates REERRZRE 22 25,251,797 15,920 24,175,538 -
Contingent consideration receivable & 4 sk S R (B 23 4,232,422 — = —
324,977,467 50,640,736 28,990,919 4,993,707

Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 24 3,202,908 694,038 - —
Trade receivables EWE 5% E 25 7,507,770 6,488,374 = —
Loans and receivables B3 K R g 26 17,427,620 — - —
Financial assets at fair value through 2 AF{EFAEBZEZ

profit or loss EREE 27 197,682,520 — — —
Prepayments, deposits and other BRFIE  Re R

receivables H {th jE W3R IE 28 8,479,016 13,167,388 160,102 1,301,613
Amounts due from Directors and EWEERATEEFHIEA

a former Director 29 32,541,415 — 32,541,415 —
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE W B B8 A R 38 21 - - 466,981,941 79,206,519
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LR S 30 306,319,906 83,131,819 178,056,457 39,421,954
Restricted cash ZREIR & 30 1,910,811 — — —

575,071,966 103,481,619 677,739,915 119,930,086

Total assets EEHE 900,049,433 154,122,355 706,730,834 124,923,793
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL PosITION

B4 5 ik L B R

As at 31 December 2014 R=-Z—MN&E+=-A=+—H

The Group The Company
xE AAT
2014 2014
—T—mE —F—MmEF
Note
B 5
Current liabilities mENEE
Trade payables BN E 5 RIE 31 15,556,792 8,681,727 - —
Other payables and accruals o FE A 5RIB K FE R EE 32 6,743,910 7,421,149 1,106,936 2,084,136
Current income tax payable BIERFE S T8 /R 3,312,793 1,039,011 - —
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE BT BB A B 5RIB 21 - — 14,562,582 14,503,942
Amount due to an associate FEF — BB 2 R A
I8 22 - 2908 - —
Borrowings f&& 33 12,377,681 14,206,092 - —
37,991,176 31,348,277 15,669,518 16,588,078
Net current assets RENEEFE 537,080,790 72,133,342 662,070,397 103,342,008
Total assets less current EEHERRDER
liabilities 862,058,257 122,774,078 691,061,316 108,335,715
Non-current liabilities ERBHER
Deferred income tax liabilities EXEMEHARE 34 60,798,607 4,016,263 - —
60,798,607 4,016,263 - —
Net assets BEFE 801,259,650 118,757,815 691,061,316 108,335,715
Capital and reserves B R G#E
Share capital A& A 35 64,989,582 44,589,602 64,989,582 44,589,602
Share premium & 17 34 & 35 1,614,798,866  1,075,500,687 1,614,798,866  1,075,500,687
Special reserve 5 B 8 1 36 4,778,740 4,778,740 = —
Translation reserve ME 5 # 10,038,887 10,791,302 - -
Warrants reserve R IETE B 39 - 223,224 - 223,224
Share-based compensation reserve & {7 % {5 # 1 37 29,832,788 23,254,749 29,832,788 23,254,749
Accumulated losses 2:EER (928,447,064) (1,042,987,506) (1,018,559,920) (1,035,232,547)
Equity attributable to owners of ZAASHEH ARG
the Company S 795,991,799 116,150,798 691,061,316 108,335,715
Non-controlling interests FiIEBERS 5,267,851 2,607,017 - =
Total equity R EE 801,259,650 118,757,815 691,061,316 108,335,715

Wang Wenming Lee Yiu Sun

E B e
Director Director
EF EZE
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Bl

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EquiTy
B # & B) 3R &

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—Z—WNF+-_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATHAAELE
Share-based Non-
Share Share Special T { Warrants i A d controlling
The Group capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests  Total equity
g3 1) &3 RHpEE  HRIEE ERfin DREEHE ROWEEE RitBH BFE  FEREZ EReE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT B BT BT oy oy BT B BT
(Note 35) (Note 35)  (Note 36) (Note 39) (Note 37)
(i385 (Wi35)  (Hi3Es6) (Mi7139) (Wi 337)
Balance as at 1 January 2013 RZZ-=§-A-RBZ
&4 40,289,642 1,028,819484 4,778,740 9,730,066 223,224 23,254,749 (1,008,953,861) 98,142,044 1 98,142,045
Total comprehensive expense for the year FNZEATEE - - - 1,061,236 - - (34,033,645)  (32,972,409) 55876 (32,916,533
Capital contribution from non-controlling interest 312 RE# £ & - - - - - - - - 2,551,140 2,551,140
Issue of shares by way of placement RARERTRG 4299960 47,729,556 - - - - - 52029516 - 52029516
Transaction costs attributable to the placement &R EER SHK A
of shares - (1,048,353 - - - - - (1,048,353) - (1,048,353)
Balance as at 31 December 2013 RZE-=F+2A
t-HZES 44589,602 1,075500,687 4,778,740 10,791,302 223,224 23,254,749 (1,042,987,506) 116,150,798 2,607,017 118,757,815
Balance as at 1 January 2014 RZZ2-mE-A-A2
e 44,589,602 1,075,500,687 4,778,740 10,791,302 223,224 23,254,749  (1,042,987,506) 116,150,798 2,607,017 118,757,815
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZAMALE - - - (752,415) - - 114,540,442 113,788,027 2,660,834 116,448,861
Equity-settled share option arrangements IBREEE 2 BRERH - - - - - 6,578,039 - 6,578,039 - 6,578,039
Issue of shares by way of placement BBRERIRG 8,899,980 355,999,200 - - - - - 364,899,180 - 364,899,180
Issue of shares upon exercise of warrant RRAREEETHEMET
B&{n 8,000,000 91,423,224 - - (223,224) - - 99,200,000 - 99,200,000
Issue of shares related with business combination 5t £ 4 #8177 3,500,000 101,500,000 - - - - - 105,000,000 - 105,000,000
Transaction costs attributable to the placement  BLER (3 (5 R M A
of sheres - (9,624,245) = = = = —  (9,624,245) ~  (9,624,245)
Balance as at 31 December 2014 RZZ-mE+ZA
=t-HzHi% 64,989,582 1,614,798,866 4,778,740 10,038,887 - 29,832,788  (928,447,064) 795,991,799 5,267,851 801,259,650
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EaquiTy
B # & B 3R &

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—Z—WNF+-_A=+—HILFE

Share-based

Share Warrants compensation Accumulated
The Company Share capital premium reserve reserve losses  Total equity
AT (& BHiE RREIRE RBEERE RitBR EREE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT B B #T BT
(Note 35) (Note 35) (Note 39) (Note 37)
(P ££35) (W £35) (P 3£39) (i 3£37)
Balance as at 1 January 2013 RZZ—-=%-A—A2
i 40,289,642  1,028,819,484 228,224 23,254,749 (1,020,309,868) 72,277,231
Total comprehensive expense for the year FAZERYAE - - - - (14,922,679)  (14,922,679)
Issue of shares by way of placement BBRERTRG 4,299,960 47,729,556 - - - 52,029,516
Transaction costs attributable to the placement of RERGHEERHKE
shares — (1,048,353 - - — (1,048,353
Balance as at 31 December 2013 R-Z—=F+=A
=t+—Bz#&H 44,589,602  1,075,500,687 223,224 23,254,749 (1,035,232,547) 108,335,715
Balance as at 1 January 2014 RZZE-NE—A—-B2
i 44,589,602 1,075,500,687 223,224 23,254,749 (1,035,232,547) 108,335,715
Total comprehensive income for the year FREAKALE - - - - 16,672,627 16,672,627
Equity-settled share option arrangements INRELEE 2 BREL T - - - 6,578,039 - 6,578,039
Issue of shares by way of placement BRESEITRG 8,899,980 355,999,200 - - — 364,899,180
Issue of shares upon exercise of warrant RREBETEMENT
& fn 8,000,000 91,423,224 (223,224) - - 99,200,000
Issue of ordinary shares related with business REBAFEITRG
combination 3,500,000 101,500,000 - - — 105,000,000
Transaction costs attributable to the placement of RERNELEZIHA
shares - (9,624,245) - - - (9,624,245)
Balance as at 31 December 2014 RZT-ME+=A
=t+—-HZz&% 64,989,582 1,614,798,866 - 29,832,788 (1,018,559,920) 691,061,316
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e RanER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—Z—WNF+-_A=+—HIFE

2013
—E—=
HK$
BT
Cash flows from operating activities IEEHRRERE
Profit/(loss) before income tax from continuing & B3 E KL 2742
operations BRETEBAIFE(B18) 120,366,125 (42,467,528)
Profit before income tax from discontinued REDKRIEEEEBT
operation R BT 15 B A0 R B - 9,333,152
120,366,125 (33,134,376)
Adjustments for: RTIZIEAE:
— Depreciation of property, plant and — W HERBEE
equipment 5,613,885 4,525,365
— Loss on disposal of property, plant and — HEWE - HERBHEZ
equipment g} - 12,061
— Gain on disposal of an investment property — &R EY E RS - (8,898,530)
— Amortization of intangible assets — EREESH 887,435 2,518,360
— Impairment of goodwill — BERE - 3,700,843
— Impairment of trade receivables — BWESFIBERE - 119,484
— Write-down of inventories — FEMR - 5,036,720
— Written off of property, plant and — WE - MRS KRR HUR
equipment 3,511 -
— Gain on bargain purchase — EEWE Y (74,145,459) —
— Change in fair value of contingent — ERSAREBEZATFE
consideration receivable bk 8,018,240 —
— Fair value gains on securities trading — BHERGzAFERTE (49,886,317) —
— Share of results of associate — BB ERNREE (1,594,693) —
— Equity-settled share based arrangements — — ARREAEE 2 BRE L HE 6,578,039 —
— Interest income — FBMWA (9,336,918) (402,013)
Operating cash flows before changes in ZEZLEHHZELRS
working capital ME 6,503,848 (26,522,086)
— Statutory deposits and other assets — EEReRAEMEE 801,115 (4,877,850)
— Inventories - FE (2,224,673) (338,063)
— Restricted cash — ZREIBE (1,910,811) —
— Trade receivables — BB S HIE (1,019,396) (2,458,976)
— Prepayments, deposits and other — FERHIE - R REAM
receivables J& WK IE 7,067,289 3,236,114
— Amounts due from Directors and — BEWEERAEES
a former Director ] (24,099,781) =
— Purchase of financial assets at fair value — BERAFEFARERZ
through profit or loss THREE (147,796,203) =
— Segregated trust bank balances — BUERERPER (8,205,583) (250,463)
— Trade payables — ENESFIA 6,875,065 544,630
— Other payables and accruals — E b FE S FRE K FE AT RUE (7,216,244) 4,442,726
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CoNSOLIDATED STATEMENT oF CAsH FLows

meE R ERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE_Z—NE+_A=+—HILFE

2013
—T—=F
Note HK$
B 5 T
Cash used in operations KEHHZHRE (171,225,374) (26,223,968)
Income tax (paid)/refunded (B BREMEH (1,069,657) 1,457,827
Interest received 2 W F & 895,284 402,013
Net cash used in operating activities CEGEEEBRAZIREEE (171,399,747) (24,364,128)
Cash flows from investing activities BEEHMBHRER=E
Payments for investments in associates REEE RRIEE 2% (24,175,538) —
Payments for acquisition of subsidiary U B BT B A B 2 A 3R 38 (18,207,283) —
Purchases of property, plant and equipment — BEZE 42 - #22 K & & (3,657,435) (4,063,077)
Proceeds from disposal of a property, plant & &2 - #28 K& &
equipment P18 518 - 30,220
Net proceeds from disposal of an investment & & & ¥ ¥ Fr 15 38 FE
property - 55,398,530
Increase in loans and receivables B3 % W FRIE 18 0 (17,427,620) —
Net cash generated (used in)/from BEEHSH(BH) EE
investing activities ZH&FE (63,467,876) 51,365,673
Cash flows from financing activities Eﬂ && EJ FiIRIR&RE
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares X ITEBRGIIBRIA 464,099,180 52,029,516
Payments for share issue expenses Hx MEBETHI Z2M®K (9,624,245) (1,048,353)
Repayments of bank borrowings RITIER Z BN (1,828,411) (18,860,080)
Capital contribution from non-controlling EERERTE
interests - 2,651,140
Net cash generated from financing MEERHELEZELFHE
activities 452,646,524 34,672,223
Net increase in cash and cash HeRkBEEEEEEE NI
equivalents 2E 217,778,901 61,673,768
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of FzHRSRAESEBEEE
year 77,090,712 14,561,958
Exchange (losses)/gains on cash and cash RekReEBEBEEZER
equivalents (&18), /W= (2,796,397) 854,986
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year &2 ZIHE& R L ZHIEH 30 292,073,216 77,090,712
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First China Financial Network Holdings Limited BHZEBKRKEBER D A

NoTES To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A BT RM A

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—Z—WNF+-_A=+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION
First China Financial Network Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”).

INFORMATION OF THE GROUP

The Group is principally engaged in (i) the precious metals spot
trading and brokerage services, (i) research, exploration and
development of the student safety network project and the
electronic student card, (i) provision of stock information and
research services through the internet network in the PRC, (iv)
provision of securities and futures trading services and wealth
management services in Hong Kong, and (v) trading and
principal investments in the PRC and Hong Kong.

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s registered office
is situated at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Company’s
principal place of business is situated at 16th Floor, CMA
Building, No.64-66 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, while the functional currencies of certain
subsidiaries are Renminbi (“RMB”). The Company has selected
Hong Kong dollar as its presentation currency as management
considered it is more beneficial to the users of the consolidated
financial statements. These consolidated financial statements
have been approved and authorized for issue by the Board of
Directors on 16 March 2015.
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First China Financial Network Holdings Limited B ZE&LREEEEGR D T

NoTES To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SaMBHREME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—Z—WNF+-_A=+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEENBEHEE

POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation RENEREVMERETEMNZEE
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. SERTEEREINOT - BREEFAEEN
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years WERREREERTEERER -

presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation 21 RREE
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared HRAVBRERDBER BV IR
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting HEB(HE BT BHHREERDAT
Standards (“HKFRSs”). The consolidated financial BE -GEPBBRERDIEES
statements have been prepared under the historical cost RATRER - Wtz 2 FEE
convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial ANEmzemEERERBENU
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or REEMESHUERATFETE)
loss and investment properties, which are carried at fair YEHERT ©
value.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HRBEAVBRSENRRIE
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting WERBAELE TEEZZETE
estimates. It also requires management to exercise MERBEEEREAFTERES
its judgment in the process of applying the Group’s BERRERAE  mMEEEERS
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree I BT B B e R 2 # B SR
of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions B R AT AR A B RS R R
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial EECHE BRAMNF4EE -

statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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NoTES To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E B ER KM

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—MNFE+-A=+—HIIEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. XEEFNHRBMERE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEEE)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures BB EREEBEREZEE
(a)  New and amended standards adopted by the @ AEERPFETRAEE
Group GTER

Amendments to  Investment entities
HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27,

Amendments to  Offsetting financial assets and

HKAS 32, financial liabilities
Amendments to  Recoverable amount disclosures
HKAS 36, for non-financial assets

Amendments to  Novation of Derivatives and

HKAS 39, Continuation of Hedge
Accounting
HK(FRIC) 21, Levies

These financial statements also comply with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, which for this financial year
and the comparative period continue to be those of
the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 32), in accordance with transitional and
saving arrangements for Part 9 of the new Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts
and Audit”, which are set out in sections 76 to 87
of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance.
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NoTES To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SaMBHREME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_Z—NE+_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. B BREBEE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEEE)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures B HEREEREZEE(E)
(continued)
(a)  New and amended standards adopted by the @)  AEERNZFETRAEE
Group (continued) FTZER(4B)
The impact of the application of these standards is JERZEEA 2w EEHT
set out below. s e
Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS ERMBRELRIEI105 -
27, Investment entities BB B #& = 4 Bl 551255

KkEE G ERIE275 (&
HEIE T”:éff‘éf’%%

The amendments provide consolidation relief to ZEE Jﬂ‘ﬁﬁl% FE e
those parents which qualify to be an investment BERCERE =S
entity as defined in the amended HKFRS 10. RARAECIREE afz N
Investment entities are required to measure their AMEEAREX - KE
subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss. BERANQNTEFAER
These amendments do not have an impact on FFERECZHB AR - &
these financial statements as the company do not REARBETIANFEREE
qualify to be an investment entity. B2ER WZEFEEBITAR
HZEHBMRLETM
T
Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting financial assets BEEGFERFERRUSET
and financial liabilities R emEER imﬁﬁﬁaﬁfﬁ
#H
The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing BEGFERERRUSET
application issues relating to the offset of financial NESHSREERESR
assets and financial liabilities requirements. BEEEETERZER
Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning EREE ABME %
of “currently has a legally enforceable right of set- LB AE B REERA
off” and “simultaneous realization and settlement.” AR AIImITZ EiEE] R
The amendments do not have an impact on these [RIFERREE] 2 RE -
financial statements as the Group does not have HRAEB W EITMEE
any financial assets and financial liabilities that BIERHEs ERMEERS
qualify for offset. BEE WZEBIIARY
REBZ2ZEVBHRERL
WA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—MNFE+-A=+—HIIEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
21 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

@

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable amount
disclosure for non-financial assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 remove the
requirement to disclose the recoverable amount of
a cash-generating unit (“CGU”) to which goodwiill
or other intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives had been allocated when there has been no
impairment or reversal of impairment of the related
CGU. Furthermore, the amendments introduce
additional disclosure requirements regarding the
fair value hierarchy, key assumptions and valuation
techniques used when the recoverable amount of
an asset of CGU was determined based on its fair
value less costs of disposal. The amendments do
not have an impact on these financial statements
as the recoverable amount of the CGU is not based
on fair value less costs of disposal.
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SaMBHREME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—Z—WNF+-_A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2, FEESHBRBERE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEEE)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures B HEREEREZEE(E)

(continued)

(a)  New and amended standards adopted by the @)  AEERNZFETRAEE
Group (continued) FTZER(4B)
The HKAS 39 Amendments provide an exception to AR GFEREIRUEET
the requirement of discontinuing hedge accounting ) 5 B B A B S A #R - Bk
in situations where over-the-counter derivatives SIAEFISOER - BHR
designated in hedging relationships are directly HHBEPTIETE ZH I
or indirectly, novated to a central counterparty METEEESAEERE
as a consequence of laws or regulations, or the BEREEZERGHFKR &
introduction of laws or regulations. For continuance LSRR E 2 OIINE
of hedge accounting under this exception, all of S R BEOIINMERT
the following criteria must be met : (i) the novations FEFE B P SFEME
must arise as a consequence of laws or regulations, WA EUTAHA LA ()
or the introduction of laws or regulations; (i) the EBEMEREMSER
parties to the hedging instrument agree that one or S| A EBISOE R T E R
more clearing counterparties replace their original (VE R T EBETH T WE
counterparty to become the new counterparty —HAXEEEERSGETF
to each of the parties; and (i) the novations do BRERERSHF K
not result in changes to the terms of the original BEFTHNHIRMZZETF
derivative other than changes directly attributable to R EE T TSBHRENT
the change in counterparty to achieve clearing. The ATAZEREREZS -
amendments have had no impact on the Group as ERETHEEMEHIS
the Group has not novated any derivatives during HFMEESIBNEH K
the current and prior years. Ghe BRAEBERAFEE

FEBEFETEEZTM
TTETA B&FETYH
AEEBELE -

HK(FRIC)-Int 21 provides guidance on when a BEBEUBRERES
liability to pay a levy imposed by a government BE)-REFAWR AR
should be recognized. The interpretation has had RENBNAKEBE 2R
no impact on the Group. R IEMIES - ZERE

BASEMEZE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—Z—WNF+-_A=+—HIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

21

®)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
The Group has not early applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle'

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle!

Amendments to HKFRs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle?

HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments*

Amendments to HKAS 27, Equity method in
separate financial statement?

Amendments to HKAS 19, Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contribution’

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 on
clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation
and amortisation?

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers®
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—Z—WNF+-_A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. XEEFNHRBMERE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEEE)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures BB FEREEREZEE(E)
(continued)
(b)  New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (b) R ERA I FTER K i FE

(continued) (&)
! Effective for annual periods beginning on 1 July 2014 !

RZZT—MFELA—HB=k
ZiERB 2 FEBRREER -

2 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements 2 RZZE-—RE-A—H%z
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. ERBCERFERBY
BMEEABERERER

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 8 R-ZT—tF—A—Hzz
January 2017. BEGZ FEBBER -
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 4 RZE—NF—A—A% 2
January 2018 BB FERRAER -
In addition, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance gt AN - A QAR AI(E
(Cap.622) will affect the presentation and disclosure pE) R EE TERR
of certain information in the consolidated financial HE-_Z—AF+=-A=+
statements for the year ending 31 December —BILFEHEUBRE
2015. The Group is in the process of making an ME5RFEE - NEEIE
assessment of the impact of these changes. MZEEHH T EELT
e
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments BAEMBRELANERE
BT A
HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new —EENFREMBERY
requirements for the classification and measurement %R 5 AR FE95 5| A B
of financial assets. HKFRS 9 was amended in TREEDHREFGENN
2010 to include requirements for the classification HE- NR_E—ZFFEF]
and measurement of financial liabilities and for BV B HRELEAFEOR
derecognition, and further amended in 2013 FAFHEREBESHE
to include the new requirements for hedging FrENRLIEERRE -
accounting. ER_Z—=FFE—F1E
FINBREAEHNTE
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—Z—WNF+-_A=+—HIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

21

(continued)

(b)  New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(continued)
Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as
follows:

HKFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”, effective for
annual periods on or after 1st January 2018,
addresses the classification, measurement and
recognition of financial assets and liabilities.
The complete version of HKFRS 9 replaces
most of the guidance in HKAS 39. HKFRS 9
retains but simplifies the mixed measurement
model and establishes three primary
measurement categories for fair value through
profit or loss. The basis of classification
depends on the entity’s business model and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial asset. Investments in equity
instruments are required to be measured
at fair value through profit or loss with the
irrevocable option at inception to present
changes in fair value in other comprehensive
income. There is now a new expected credit
losses model that replaces the incurred loss
impairment model used in HKAS 39. For
financial liabilities, there were no changes to
classification and measurement, except for
the recognition of changes in own credit risk
in other comprehensive income, for liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or
loss. HKFRS 9 relaxes the requirements for
hedge effectiveness by replacing the bright
line hedge effectiveness tests. It requires
an economic relationship between the
hedged item and hedging instrument and
for the “hedged ratio” to be the same as
the one management actually use for risk
management purposes. Contemporaneous
documentation is still required but is different
to that currently prepared under HKAS 39.
The new standard is not expected to have
a significant impact on the Group’s financial
position or performance.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—Z—WNF+-_A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2, FEESHBRBERE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEEE)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures B HEREEREZEE(E)

(continued)

(b)  New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (b) R ERA I FTER K i FE
(continued) (#&)
HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning BAM B R ELERBIRN
on or after 1 January 2018, with earlier application ZE-NF-A—Hm%Z’E
permitted. Mz FEBRBER I

AR EA -
The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS EE=TEH BEEMBB
9 in the future may have significant impact on Wi S R Bo9R AT s
the amounts reported in respect of the Group’s rEBZzZeREER SR
financial assets and financial liabilities. Regarding BEMERSBEKNERKR
the Group’s financial assets, it is not practicable to TE - HREAEESHE
provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a E R TR E A
detailed review has been completed. B EREEEMEL
AAAT °

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the EARE G ENFRERE
principle in HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 that revenue BEETERIEI8H (BETA)
reflects a pattern of economic benefits that are BB R B g ER F1698
generated from operating business (of which the & A gt £ F385% F
asset is part) rather than the economic benefits that B R A - B R RO B A
are consumed through the use of the asset. As a EEG(ZEERE—ER)
result, a revenue-based method cannot be used B HE YA B 25 T 3E R B
to depreciate property, plant and equipment and FPREEEBEENKLENR
may only be used in very limited circumstances to mER Bt s ED
amortise intangible assets. The amendments are SARTEDE BER
to be applied prospectively. The amendments are BB WEHEBEFREER
no expected to have any impact on the financial B 15 S0 T AT R 8 R Y
position or performance of the Group upon BE o BB EEER -
adoption on 1 January 2016 as the Group has not FEHZEEITIR T —R
used a revenue based method for the calculation of F-HA—BHEMNESHZ TS
depreciation of its non-current assets. AR E B B MO 3k &

RELERAZE REE
ZN LR L 6
BEFERDEENFTE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—MNFE+-A=+—HIIEE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

21

®)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(continued)

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012
Cycle issued in January 2014 sets out amendments
to a number of HKFRSs. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments from 1 January 2015,
none of the amendments are expected to have a
significant financial impact on the Group. Details of
the amendment most applicable to the Group are
as follows:

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments clarifies that an
entity must disclose the judgments made by
management in applying the aggregation criteria in
HKFRS 8, including a brief description of operating
segments that have been aggregated and the
economic characteristics used to assess whether
the segments are similar. The amendments also
clarify that a reconciliation of segment assets to
total assets is only required to be disclosed if the
reconciliation is reported to the chief operating
decision maker.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

21

®)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(continued)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 deals with revenue recognition
and establishes principles for reporting useful
information to users of financial statements about
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of
revenue and cash flows arising from an entity’s
contracts with customers. Revenue is recognised
when a customers obtains control of a good or
service and thus has the ability to direct the use
and obtain the benefits from the good or service.
The standard replaces HKAS 18 Revenue and
HKAS 11 Construction contracts and the related
interpretations on revenue recognition for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
and earlier application is permitted. The Group is
assessing the impact of HKAS 15.

2.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
21 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)
(b)  New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(continued)

There are no other HKFRSs or HK (IFRIC)
interpretations that are not effective that would be
expected to have a material impact on the Group.

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

(@) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquire and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
|dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continueq)

@)

Business combinations (continued)

The Group recognizes any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognized amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at
their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’'s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value
at the acquisition date; any gains or losses
arising from such re-measurement are
recognized in profit or loss.

2. FEEHBRBMEAE)

2.2 MEBATE)
221 &8 (&)
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

@)

Business combinations (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognized at fair value at
the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to
the fair value of the contingent consideration
that is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognized in accordance with HKAS 39
either in profit or loss or as a change to
other comprehensive Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
re-measured, and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity.

income.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognized and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognized directly in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealized gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealized
losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the Group’s
accounting policies.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. XEEFNHRBMERE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (continued) 22 MEBATE)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued) 221 &8& (&)
(b)  Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries b))  RHERELZ B
without change of control Hm AL
P
Transactions with non-controlling interests a8 WK EE
that do not result in loss of control are BZIEERERRS
accounted for as equity transactions - TERIRER S AN
that is, as transactions with the owners of — BIENBAE%E
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. EANEERAHEBA
The difference between fair value of any ZEMETIRE
consideration paid and the relevant share FT A 2 AE (X (B B
acquired of the carrying amount of net assets HEEGKRERER
of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains RIFEEZERAEEZ
or losses on disposals to non-controlling EBETAER o M3
interests are also recorded in equity. PERR R e B 2 W

BRI AREL °

(©)  Disposal of subsidiaries © HEHN B2 A

When the Group ceases to have control, any WAEETBESE
retained interest in the entity is re-measured i HRZERZ
to its fair value at the date when control is ETR B R 2 8 0 5k
lost, with the change in carrying amount EERIEEBIZ AT
recognized in profit or loss. The fair value is BEFTE MEE
the initial carrying amount for the purposes BEZ2E28BAIRNERF
of subsequently accounting for the retained R phE®Z AR
interest as an associate, joint venture or EltE Al - &R
financial asset. In addition, any amounts XL emEEZRE
previously recognized in other comprehensive Emms RFEE
income in respect of that entity are accounted TR E b -
for as if the Group had directly disposed of SRR E A2 E U A
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean AERHEZEREEH
that amounts previously recognized in other 2RSS BB
comprehensive income are reclassified to rEBEERLER
profit or loss. HMEEXBEZAN

AR - G ERZE

SRR E A 2N

NER S EREN

/A EHEE -
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.

2.3 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognized at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognize the investor's share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the
ownership interest in an associate, any difference
between the cost of the associate and the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets
and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2, FEEFNBERBEE

POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Associates (continued) 23 BEATE)
The Group’s share of post-acquisition profits or losses is REBEEERERFBEXEER
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss meiEn RAEM K ARKE
and other comprehensive income, and its share of post- RomEGEz A2 EKRA ZIK
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income BreHAERNEMEE KA
is recognized in other comprehensive income with a WHAEHEEREEELFAE -
corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of fisi A5 5 B 4G — BB & R F 2 B
the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an BERNBBEEZBZE QA
associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, 2w BIE A B A K
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group WHkIE  REB ISR AE—F
does not recognize further losses, unless it has incurred B8 RIEAEEERERBERD
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on AIAYE A TE S HEE B ESEH T
behalf of the associate. oo
The Group determines at each reporting date whether AEBRESREDHEERS
there is any objective evidence that the investment in FREBEFEBEERANBE A A2
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group WEHRFME - MERRE &
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference SEERRECEEREE QT
between the recoverable amount of the associate and ZA e EEEREE . ZFE
its carrying value and recognizes the amount adjacent FE U REGAEREREMET
to “share of profit of associates” accounted for equity W N R 3R R DA 2505 A BRTEAG
method in the consolidated statement of profit or loss NSV | Dl l odic S R

and other comprehensive income.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and REBEERE AR 2Bz Lk
downstream transactions between the Group and ETHERSEAZFBRER -
its associate are recognized in the Group’s financial ReRRNEREEELHE AR
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s aBEEARE 2B BREA
interests in the associates. Unrealized losses are MR RIZBERXZGEBBERET
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an FEEEEDRE  TAXRER
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies BT ASENE  -BEAR 2R
of associates have been changed where necessary to BEREEFERCIENS) - AW
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the REREEMERE - -
Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates REE AR Em 2B E ISR
are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or EBREGFEERREMEERA
loss and other comprehensive income. WMRMER -
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ME+=—A=+—RItFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing

2.5

performance of the operating segments,

has been

identified as the steering committee that makes strategic
decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (HK$), which is the
Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognized in
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets, such as equities classified as available-for-
sale, are included in other comprehensive income.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2, FEESHBRBERE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued) 25 SEBREE)
(c) Group companies (c) ZEEETLE

The results and financial position of all the group REBETHBENEER
entities (none of which has the currency of a HEHREE IR EE (%
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional LERBUERBEREBRIR
currency different from the presentation currency KEBRCEBI 2 EER
are translated into the presentation currency as AR - AT KR
follows: BEREWMEE:

. assets and liabilities for each statement of . EMBARAmEAE
financial position presented are translated at NEERBE &Y
the closing rate at the date of that statement BRAmKEERZ
of financial position; W ERBmE

. income and expenses for each statement . EEEkEMEEK
of profit or loss and other comprehensive AFRERZWA KT
income are translated at average exchange BEHEXRBRE R
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable FEZTFHIEIIER
approximation of the cumulative effect of SERERERXRZRE
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, FEZAEENE T
in which case income and expenses are ERT - WA R
translated at the rates on the dates of the TRRXSEHEXKR
transactions); and g R

e all resulting currency translation differences e MMAEEECZEBH®
are recognized in other comprehensive EEREMEEERA
income. R o

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the WEIINEEERMELERDE

acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets RAFEAEEEIRE

and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at BreEERAGBRERE I

the closing rate. Currency translation differences RWmERBE  TESE

arising are recognised in other comprehensive ZAINEME EE RN E A 2

income. HRAFER °
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ME+=—A=+—RItFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(d)

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a
joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over
an associate that includes a foreign operation), all
of the currency translation differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the company are reclassified to profit
or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share
of accumulated currency translation differences
are reattributed to non-controlling interests and
are not recognized in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the Group’s
ownership interest in associates or joint ventures
that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control) the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange difference is reclassified
to profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2, FEESHBRBERE)

POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment 26 Y HBREE
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical Y2 - eS8 R B TR I S A AR
cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes TEINER BFLRABEEER
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition BlWEEBEEE 2MAX - HEX
of the items. Subsequent costs are included in the NEREBHIEER 2 B1&LER
asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate @Al mARNEBEBZER Z K
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future e R ER AFABER
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to MEXERAEBLEEGREA
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured BAME) - HEBRIBS ZEE
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is EFRIEER - MBEEMEER
derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are REREAZUBBHELELRESE
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss BamkEMm2EBAIREIMR -

and other comprehensive income during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is WME WERREBEZTEDNUE
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their BOEFHE - EMEAIFEASFE
cost to their residual values over their estimated useful HEKESEZEFHREE - T
lives, as follows: RAFRBmT:

Land Over the term of leases + i BHEAFH
Buildings 25 years BgF 254
Leasehold improvements Over the term of leases HEMEEE LA F
Office equipment and furniture 3 to 5 years MAEHRMEREM 3EF
Computer equipment 3 years BIEE 3F

Motor vehicles 3 to 10 years mE 3E10%F

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, BEJHBEBERIERFHR
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting SmEREARIERY  WEE
period. EREHFE -

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately WMEE 2 REESNEMETATK
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount EEE EEAENRHBRZET
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. el & 58 o

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by HERBZMERIELREE
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and ZHEBREE YR EERE
are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or thEERARKAER o

loss and other comprehensive income.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, are held for long-term rental yields
or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not
occupied by the Group. Investment properties comprise
land and buildings under operating leases. Land held
under operating leases and buildings are classified and
accounted for as investment properties when the rest of
the definition of investment property is met. The operating
lease is accounted for as if it were a finance lease.

Investment properties are measured initially at
cost, including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. After initial recognition at
cost, investment properties are carried at fair value,
representing open market value determined at each
reporting date by external valuers. Fair value is based
on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset. If the information is not available, the
Group uses alternative valuation methods such as recent
prices on less active markets or discounted cash flow
projections. Changes in fair values are recorded in profit
or loss as part of a valuation gain or loss.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they
have been disposed of or when the investment properties
are permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefit is expected from its disposal.

When an investment property undergoes a change in
use, evidenced by commencement of development with
a view to sale, the property is transferred to completed
properties held for sale at its fair value at the date of
change in use.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment, except that
the land portion is reclassified as leasehold land and land
use rights if it is operating lease in nature, and its fair
value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for
accounting purposes.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2, FEESHBRBERE)

POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Investment properties (continued) 27 BREWMEE)
If a property becomes an investment property because WMYERERGBREMK R
its use has changed, any difference resulting between the BEME  ZWERERBHZER
carrying amount and the fair value of this property at the HEEAFEZEMEELER
date of transfer is recognized in equity as revaluation of FERAEVME MERRECE
property, plant and equipment. However, if the fair value e M WAFESBUEZ
gives rise to a reversal of a previous impairment, this BERD  AZEBERGE2AE
write-back is recognized in the consolidated statement WARKBER - ZEHFEENE
of comprehensive income. This revaluation reserve shall ERMEEBARBRERZ =
remain and be transferred to revenue reserve upon i -

disposal of this property.

2.8 Intangible assets 28 WBEEE
(a) Goodwill (a) BE

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries EEakaRLE L= NS
and associates and represents the excess of the ENTIRES  BMEE
consideration transferred over the Group’s interest SRR P SETR g
in net fair value of the net identifiable assets, THAHRNFEE BF
liabilites and contingent liabilites of the acquiree R ARBENATEFE
and the fair value of the non-controlling interest in o B 77 /) FE 15 AR B
the acquiree. N EERREE o

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill MREBANRANS  2%4&
acquired in a business combination is allocated HAEHNEERSEIEES
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or &l °] 2 =R & O 1 B J s
groups of CGUSs, that is expected to benefit from WReELEBEM(HReE
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or HENDIREEEEM
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated HAEA BEE I EHEW
represents the lowest level within the entity at which BUNAHEAZERKNA
the goodwill is monitored for internal management AR EIRMERGEN
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating SEREE HEREED
segment level, MEmER -

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken HEGEFEHNERORE
annually or more frequently if events or changes WE BEBESHAELE
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment. BHERENIRFE A
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the SRMNEFFANL - HED
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value REEET e EEBENFE
in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. BAEAERRFER D EK
Any impairment is recognized immediately as an N -BERSE)ELR &
expense and is not subsequently reversed. LR BENRER AR -

HErggm -
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

Intangible assets (continued)

(b) Trading rights
The Group’s intangible assets represent eligibility
rights to trade on or through the Stock Exchange
and on the Hong Kong Future Exchange
Limited. The trading rights are carried at cost
less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses.

(c) Software
The software has a finite useful life and is carried at
cost less accumulated amortization and impairment.
Amortization is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost of software over its
estimated useful life from 2 to 10 years.

(d) Contractual customer relationships
Contractual customer relationships acquired in a
business combination are recognized at fair value
at the acquisition date. The contractual customer
relations have an infinite useful life.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortization and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortization are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2, FEEFNBERBEE
POLICIES (continued)
2.10 Discontinued operations 210 BERILESERE

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s ERITEEEBRRAEBEBRZ
business, the operations and cash flows of which can — &85 E%E&iﬁfi\?ﬁTEﬁMX
be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and EEHMEBER AR &
which represents a separate major line of business or *Iéﬂ;z%f%jﬂﬂli%nz%ii
geographic area of operations, or is part of a single X SMERHE —BIZER
coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line BB DB L EFEEK 2B
of business or geographical area of operations, or is a —HEFTE By XA
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale. HrEEMREZNBAR -

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single EEE D EY B EE - 8

amount is presented in the consolidated statement of gRiFEERE R EMEEEAR

profit or loss and other comprehensive income, which EEREE-—HHEEY EHREER

comprises the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued B A FE TS 2 BR B AR R B ok s

operation and the post-tax gain or loss recognized on B &Ef%ﬁ%ﬂn\ REXEBZE

the measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on EXHEAE  FFEAFERE
the disposal, of the assets constituting the discontinued ERAS N HERERZBREE

operation. B o

211 Financial assets 211 SREE

Classification L]
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following AEBZUTHENSEESRHE
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans EIEAFETA éﬁﬁzfﬁﬁﬁﬁ
and receivables and available-for-sale. The classification E - -BERRERFERAELE
depends on the purpose for which the financial assets TREE SERTEACHE
were acquired. Management determines the classification EZEHNME EBEERVILHE
of its financial assets at initial recognition. RERETEMEEZDE -

(a)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss @ A FEFAEZZ L
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BRAFEFABRZ SR
are financial assets held-for-trading. A financial asset EEAFESHMEE -
is classified in this category if acquired principally BARTFZEMN AR
for the purpose of selling in the short term. Assets ALE AleREERA
in this category are classified as current assets. UbAE Rl - L BE R 2 B E

DERRBDEE °
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2.

78 Annual Report 2014

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.11 Financial assets (continued)

Classification (continued)

(b)  Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included
in current assets, except for the amounts that are
settled or expected to be settled more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s
loans and receivables comprise “trade receivables”,
“deposits and other receivables” and “bank
balances and cash” in the statement of financial
position.

(c)  Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They
are included in non-current assets unless the
investment matures or management intends to
dispose of it within 12 months of the end of the
reporting period.

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognized on the trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-
for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortized cost using the effective interest method.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2, FEESHBRBERE)

POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Financial assets (continued) 211 £MEEE)
Recognition and measurement (continued) AR E (E)
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of KEMHEAFEFABEZNTBE
the “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” BEIEIORATEEBMEL
category are presented in the consolidated statement MAEE WAELHEGEER
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income within NMEMEEWK ARERAHEAM
“Other (losses)/gains — net” in the period in which they (B18), W — 5k o kg
arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair value RATHEAABEZNVBEEN
through profit or loss is recognized in the consolidated REWA  BEAREEREFEWRRE
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive BRIEMNERE  RNEaEa Rk
income as part of other income when the Group’s right Hih2EBARKRAER B EAM
to receive payments is established. WA z—8 5 -
Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary ENoBAERENIFEERESZA
securities classified as available-for-sale are recognized in 1B & E) T E b2 R A
other comprehensive income. RAEAHEE -
When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold GHEAHIEE,ZHFEHEN
or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments BB EREDERZ 25 A
recognized in equity are included in the consolidated FTEAERGTAGAEEREM
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive FPEBARKIBHEREMELE
income as “gains and losses from investment securities”. BB
Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated NEBRRMEEFE 2 H B ER
using the effective interest method is recognized in HFHERGeERRHEMET
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other WARKER BEMUWA Z2—56
comprehensive income as part of other income. Dividends 5 o NG B WER AR B 2 HE N B L
on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognized B AREERATEZRER
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other REEmEEMAZERARKE
comprehensive income as part of other income when the REBEMBAZ—E5D -

Group’s right to receive payments is established.

2.12 Impairment of financial assets 212 SR EERE

Assets carried at amortized cost BHEEEINEZEE

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period AEBEBEREARTIEES
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset ERBEBEERLIBEsREE
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset S HASHMEELERE - M
or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment ARBREREERTEZ—E
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence HZHEEH(BEEHDMER
of impairment as a result of one or more events that EEREREE mMEZEBESMH
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss (FEEEHEH - EeEENK
event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on —HEMEE MBI RKESR
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or BB MM - AIZIE
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. cREENZEEREET AL

BRE YELRERESSE-
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.12 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets carried at amortized cost (continued)

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset
is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognized in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. If a loan or held-to-maturity
investment has a variable interest rate, the discount
rate for measuring any impairment losses is the current
effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a
practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment
on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an
observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognized (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognized
impairment loss is recognized in the consolidated income
statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2, FEESHBRBERE)

POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets (continued) 212 £MEEREE)
Assets classified as available-for-sale DEBTHHEZEE
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period REEBRSHREPELERETE
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset EREREBFEEEHHEeRE
or a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case EX—HemEEHERRE - 3t
of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a DERAHEECERETREMS -
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the BHATFERNBRERABKEERR
security below its cost is also evidence that the assets HARMAEELRBECEE
are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available- WAt ESRMEEFEZEE
for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured R EBRRKREAAERE AR
as the difference between the acquisition cost and FEzEZFHE RSB EEZH
the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that RIBRER R EEETE)
financial asset previously recognized in profit or loss B H% WHRIBEER -
- is removed from equity and recognized in profit or RirEEEREMEEmKARE
loss. Impairment losses recognized in the consolidated BRIEZTIEREEBEETEE
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive BIREERLEMEEKARSE
income on equity instruments are not reversed through BE o

the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

2.13 Inventories 213 #E&

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net GFENUKAEEZEFEmE S
realizable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first- ZBURE DR o BN DA dn A an
out (FIFO) method for the commodities finished goods 2R EE(RE LT IED U
and the weighted average method for the student cards REEFRRERZZEMME
and school safety products. The cost of finished goods TR EE TE o B mm A AN IR B AR K
is arrived at purchase cost. It excludes borrowing costs. KErE BTAEEEERE- 7
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the FRFENAREEBBAEPME
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable 5T H & B B R E R ) B 8 & B
selling expenses. X&EtE -

2.14 Trade and other receivables 214 BEWEBESREREGEKRE
Trade receivables are amount due from customers for KRB REBEDRATEKBRE
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary FREFIEEEmaE MRS
course of business. If collection of trade and other FEW 2 RIA - W E 5 I8 K&
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the Hfh fEUR R IB T B S 7 — F ek A
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are RAKE(EERANEEBRLEEL
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as RN AIFEARBEE
non-current assets. HA 2 RIERBEE -
Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at FEWE 5 3118 K H i fE W SR IR 9]
fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost FIRATFERR  EEABEERAR
using the effective interest method, less provision for EORRB N ARG 2 - WHRR
impairment. BREE -
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

215

2.16

217

2.18

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction,
net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade payables are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortized cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2, FEESHBRBERE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.19 Borrowing costs 219 EERE
General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable BN BEREESEREE
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying (A EBE—RERSMAEETH
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a ErESLERR CBEE)EEMN
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended Bz MEBEEEERATUE
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until Kb  tEBZEEEZKRA B
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their EREEERABREZEHEBE SN
intended use or sale. HERERARL -
Investment income earned on the temporary investment EEREERERIESEREE
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on ZHASIERBRERmBRIZRE
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs Wz HEERIEERNMELZEE
eligible for capitalization. AR o
All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss FiEEMEERANREEEBHE
in the period in which they are incurred. ERmPER -
2.20 Financial guarantee contracts 220 ABEREH
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires MBERGHNDEEHIARE
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the HERDBENSEEEBAREZE
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor HZBERTEREITARFTEA
fails to make payments when due in accordance with the INFETeRUAEERLMZEX
terms of a debt instrument. LER o
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are RASEEETZYEEREYN
initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated M ZREQNTFEERN  HER
as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher HRBRNATERR  BIHEZ
of: PRI
e the amount of the obligation under the contract, as e REFEGFEIEIN
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, BE AAREBERASRE
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and EEE2BEEHNEBETEE
FEE R
. the amount initially recognized less, where . VAR 2 R (AEA)
appropriate, cumulative amortization recognized in RiEE B gt £ F185%
accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue. Yeas R BEtEE -

Annual Report 2014 —Z—-mE4%E 83



First China Financial Network Holdings Limited BHZEBKRKEBER D A

NoTES To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE M EmERNE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—Z—WNF+-_A=+—HIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case the tax is also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries where
the Company’s subsidiaries and associates operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if they
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilized.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2, FEESHBRBERE)

POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (continued) 2.21 BIHAREREFTEH(E)
Deferred income tax (continued) BEFTRRH (E)
Outside basis differences ShF BN EE
Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable BRIEFMBHAERRAMBART R
temporary differences arising from investments in BENRICIREMELEERER
subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred income FHREE  MIRTEAMEEHAER
tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the SN FELEIE AT - A E AT T
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is BETREE HEARERES
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse N R AT e A B] T8 R 2R B =1 Al
in the foreseeable future. Generally the Group is unable BRON o —REM 5 - AN E LT
to control the reversal of the temporary difference for A AR s EREZFEED - E
associates. Only when there is an agreement in place BRI MEETASEE HES
that gives the Group the ability to control the reversal RETE R R B O E R =R
of the temporary difference in the foreseeable future, FRERZHERE 2 RD IR
deferred tax liability in relation to taxable temporary HRMEARRMNEREZERER
differences arising from the associate’s undistributed ELERIBEE °

profits is not recognized.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized on deductible EEYRFERE RN R REE
temporary differences arising from investments in BeeF AE R E=EENE AN
subsidiaries and associates only to the extent that it FERBMAEE - FEeRiBELEMSE
is probable the temporary difference will reverse in the MEEWRBBENKE QR R
future and there is sufficient taxable profit available ERAIZIREFEE 2O MNBE
against which the temporary difference can be utilized. %8 o
Offsetting il
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset EZ B MK AT R RE R & BN ER
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current FristiEERBEMmEH a8 ER
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the H O UREREMSHEEREA
deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to BESRE—BEESERTE
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on BAEERFHEEELEES
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where WTRERTEBBUAED
there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis. AR RS EERAET
K o
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully within
the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group
when the employee leaves employment prior to
the contributions vesting fully, in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. During the reporting
period, the total amount of forfeited contributions,
which arose upon employees leaving the MPF
Scheme and available to reduce the contribution
payable in future years was nil (2013: Nil).

Retirement benefits to employees in the PRC
are provided through a defined contribution plan.
The Group is required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. The Group is required to contribute
certain percentage of its payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
after payment of the fixed contribution.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2, FEESHBRBERE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Employee benefits (continued) 222 EEREHNE)
(b) Share-based compensation (b) BREH#HE

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based REBFZEZ ERANEE
compensation plan, under which the entity receives B AR A 2 B AT
services from employees as consideration for equity Bl RIBEZSHE - B
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of ERESESMREMH R
the employee services received in exchange for the BAERAEEERZTA
grant of the options is recognized as an expense. (BRE)ZRE - UEH
The total amount to be expensed is determined by EREEAREMESZ
reference to the fair value of the options granted: EBERBE 2 A FEBRE

X - XHBBIHD2EM
REBREZ X FEEE

. including any market performance conditions . BREEMATSERAE

(for example, an entity’s share price); HHm—EEEZ
f& (&)

. excluding the impact of any service and non- . NEEE MRS R IE
market performance vesting conditions (for MBREB L HEBGH
example, profitability, sales growth targets (Blan & 7 ge h - 88
and remaining an employee of the entity over ERREELRR —K
a specified time period); and BFERBRES DA

REZEBERBIZEB)Z
TER

. including the impact of any non-vesting . BREEMAIEFBIE T
conditions (for example, the requirement for ZEBBInEER
employees to save). BZHE) -

Non-market performance and service conditions RIELEHEBEHEBER

are included in assumptions about the number BEEBZBRRE  25TA

of options that are expected to vest. The total EMHME RIE R RB &
expense is recognized over the vesting period, e MYBEREBHMN
which is the period over which all of the specified MR- MEBHERmE
vesting conditions are to be satisfied. FRBEHmB GG 2 B -

In addition, in some circumstances employees may N EREBRT B

provide services in advance of the grant date and BRI EREHAH 2 AR

therefore the grant date fair value is estimated for HERH AL BAEDY

the purposes of recognizing the expense during the N B Bt 52 AR 7% 7 45 B

period between service commencement period and sl =R -t a0

grant date. XAEHAE -
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

(c)

Share-based compensation (continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognizes
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital.

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant
date fair value, is recognized over the vesting
period as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity
in the parent entity accounts.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognizes termination benefits
at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the
group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognizes costs
for a restructuring that is within the scope of
HKAS 37 and involves the payment of termination
benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are
measured based on the number of employees
expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due
more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to their present value.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2, FEESHBRBERE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.23 Provisions 2.23 ##1E
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present MAEEREBEEE ZEMHAEE
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past ERBEEEXHEREMBEE A
events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will BEEBRERBREM - AlfEa
be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has WA FEHEETE 2B RATRE
been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized for REE - AREEEBETSWRE
future operating losses. R -
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the WAREEEESETEUEE B
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is ETHRRECESFTEREER
determined by considering the class of obligations as a B BEREBEME - BIFERLE
whole. A provision is recognized even if the likelihood of EREREM—-—EEREERER
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the M2 ER  TE®ER
same class of obligations may be small. 1o
Provisions are measured at the present value of the BEREREREEMFERS -
expenditures expected to be required to settle the AR RE R s HE B HEER
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market BEERER R G2 BB AT
assessments of the time value of money and the risks B REFE - ARERMFTE
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision EBEEN gRALNNER
due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense. e
2.24 Revenue recognition 2.24 W iRtERR
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration Wz i B S E AR (B 2 &
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable FEFERR BATREERZ
for goods supplied, stated net of discounts returns and FEUERIE - B R S I 0 &I
value added taxes. The Group recognizes revenue when BRI - Sl =5
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it FPE - RREEMNRBAIERA
is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the BERERN MASESEEHHERF
entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each EEEER  NEBES W XA
of the Group’s activities, as described below: i T FR UK
(@ Commission income from securites and futures @ BERBAELLEASKA
brokerage is recognized on a trade date basis. BRXS5HEERER -
(0)  Commission income from precious metal brokerage b)) B2BL&LAW AR
is recognized on a trade date basis. SAELERR o
(€ Fees and service income are recognized when the © BREBRBWARERZH
relevant transactions have been arranged or the BRI EREEBAR
relevant services have been rendered. TERFHER o

Annual Report 2014 —Z-—mE4E 89



First China Financial Network Holdings Limited BHZEBKRKEBER D A

NoTES To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A BT RM A

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—Z—WNF+-_A=+—HIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.24 Revenue recognition (continued)

(@

Realized gains or losses on spot trading on
precious metal contracts are recorded on a trade
date basis whilst unrealized fair value gains or
losses are recognized by translating the contract
amounts at the prices ruling at the end of each
reporting period.

Realized fair value gains or losses on securities
trading are recorded on a trade date basis whilst
unrealized fair value gains or losses are recorded
on change in fair value on the reporting period.

Interest income is recognized using the effective
interest method. When a loan and receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount
to its recoverable amount, being the estimated
future cash flow discounted at the original effective
interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired loans and receivables is
recognized using the original effective interest rate.

Dividend income is recognized when the right to
receive payment is established.

Rental income from investment property is
recognized in the consolidated statement of Profit
or loss and other comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised upon
transfer of significant risk and rewards of ownership,
which generally coincides with the time when the
goods are delivered and the title has passed to the
customers.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2, FEESHBRBERE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.25 Leases 2.25 F 4
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and RHER 2 &R H Rk & E®
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are REBEARBZHLY - 95 A&
classified as operating leases. Payments made under Y - BEBELEHEOZN A
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the (EHRE L E AR ZEM
lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement of profit BER) REARZNHEEHRRA
or loss and other comprehensive income on a straight- FiFeEE kAR ARE
line basis over the period of the lease. S o
2.26 Related parties 2.26 FRAEANTL
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: IUTATHERBERNEEFEE
i -
(@ the party is a person or a close member of that @ ZALTABFTEUATEHD
person’s family and that person AT SEZEA TR
() has control or joint control over the Group; 0] 2 1) ok 3 [R) 438 i) A &
;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or iy HEAEBEBEKNY
235
(i) is a member of the key management (i) BAAEASEENAKE
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the FRRIMFEZEEREA
Group; =
or B4
(o) the party is an entity where any of the following ) ZATAERBETIEM
conditions applies: M@ A
()  the entity and the Group are members of the () ZEBAXEEHBR
same group; —SBHKNERR
(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of iy ZEEBARSEE®
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or BE RN NEBEDLE
fellow subsidiary of the other entity); (KZEBAES—E
BOELAE - HBA
RIKARWBAR)
(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of iy ZEREAEERHA
the same third party; RA—%=7M&a&1t
E
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.26 Related parties (continued)
(b)  (continued)
(ivy  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a); and

(vij a person identified in (a)() has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price
risk, fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. MBEREEEE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 BMBEMKBRERE)
(a) Market risk (a) HHERE
(i) Foreign exchange risk 0 SMNEREE

Transactional currency exposures arise from RPEERRKRKASE
the sales or purchase by operating units EEMNEAEAY6E
in currency other than the unit’s functional BEENAIINEEETZ
currency. The Group’s exposure to foreign HENHE - ARA
currency risk is minimal as almost all of the SRR EETR
Group’s revenue and costs of the operating EBEAL KA TT
units are denominated in the HK$ and RMB, RAR®KYIME BXR
with most of the group’s monetary assets, SEZRHENERE
liabilities are principally denominated in HK$ ENBEFTENAET
and RMB. The Group manages the foreign RAR®E - At
exchange exposure arising from its normal 7 & B 2 N E R
course of business activities and investments B K o REEFE B
in foreign operations by funding its local BEWEBIHGEEZ
operations and investments through cash ReEmmAEmEE
flow generated from business transactions RIEEREES N
locally. The Group currently does not have EENRATERBE
a foreign currency hedging policy. However, ERGINER 2 -E
the management monitors foreign exchange FEEZELRERR -
exposure closely and will consider hedging A& B B AT SN
significant foreign currency exposure should HHEE - A &
the need arise. B ER Y B RINER

B RN EBERE

EERERINER R o

(i) Price risk (i) 1EEE R

The Group is exposed to equity price risk REE 7 BAERKR
arising from trading of listed equity securities B TIRERBAERXS
which are listed on the Stock Exchange of FrEmz EmESE
Hong Kong. To manage its price risk arising EoREBRBILEER
from the investments in equity securities, the Rk AEEBFEEDT
Group diversifies its portfolio. The sensitivity RER&HE 2 IRER
analysis has been determined based on the G BREITIHE
exposure to equity price risk. A HE 2 IRAN(E 4%

[\ fi B R ©

At the end of the reporting period, if the RFEHR MEE
quoted market prices of the trading securities BEZMBGHRE LA
had been 10% higher or lower while all other o T B&10% i H fth B
variables were held constant, the Group’s net FEHEFETE K
profit for the year would increase or decrease SEB 2 FRFNBEK
by approximately HK$9,900,000 (2013: Nil) as HEEZEHFZAFE
a result of changes in fair value of securities B B iy 18 0 =k R A &Y
trading. 9,900,000 7T (ZF —
=F )
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ME+=—A=+—RItFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)

3.1

(@

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

During the years ended 31 December 2014
and 2013, the Group is exposed to cash
flow interest rate risk due to the fluctuation
of the prevailing market interest rate on
bank deposits and borrowings which carry
prevailing market interest rates. Borrowings
issued at variable rates expose the Group
to cashflow interest rate risk. The directors
considered that the Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest
rates.

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the
Group’s cashflow interest rate risk relates
primarily to its variable bank deposits and rate
borrowings. The Group currently does not use
any derivative contracts to hedge its exposure
to interest rate risk. However, management
will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)

3.1

(@

(b)

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(continued)

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, if interest
rates on the bank deposits and borrowings
had been decreased by 50 basis points with
all other variables held constant, the Group’s
pre-tax profit and loss for the years ended
31 December 2014 and 2013 would increase
and decrease by approximately HK$52,000
and HK$61,000 respectively.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group is
exposed to the fair value interest rate risk
relates to the loans and receivables. However,
the Directors consider the repayable term of
the loans and receivables is within one vyear,
therefore, the fair value interest rate risk is
immaterial.

Credit risk

The Group reviews the recoverability of its financial
assets periodically to ensure that potential credit
risk of the counterparty is managed at an early
stage and sufficient provision is made for possible

defaults.

In addition, receivable balances are

monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

3.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

3.1

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables, loans and receivables and amounts
due from Directors and a former Director, arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
has certain concentrations of credit risk as
approximately 38% (2013: 35%) and 94% (2013:
87%) of the Group’s trade receivables were due
from the Group’s largest trade debtor and the
five largest trade debtors respectively. Further
quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
disclosed in Note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management
rests with the board of directors. The Group
manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves and reserve borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial
assets and liabilities.

At 31 December 2014, the Group had a
borrowings with carrying amounts of approximately
HK$12,378,000 (2013: HK$14,206,000) (Note 33).
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. WHBERERE
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 BMBEMKBRERE)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) HEELELE)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities AEBE2BRBERREH
as at the reporting period, based on the contractual B R R B A Q) RITIRAT K
undiscounted payments, was as follows: ZEEIRWNTE
On demand Total Total
or within Between Between Over undiscounted carrying
1year 1and 2years 2and5years 5 years cash flow amount
RERY KT
DRE 1E2% 2E5F S5ELE HEREEE AWIREE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
T BT T BT T # T
2014 —E—-MmE
Trade payables e E 55008 15,556,792 - - - 15,556,792 15,556,792
Other payables and HAth R FRIE &
accruals J& &t SRR 6,743,910 - - - 6,743,910 6,743,910
Borrowings (Note) fE R (B3 5E) 13,557,075 - - - 13,557,075 12,377,681
2013 —E-=F
Trade payables ENESHE 8,681,727 - - - 8,681,727 8,681,727
Other payables and Hofth 5018 ]
accruals EEH A 7,421,149 - - - 7,421,149 7,421,149
Amount due to an JE T — e &
associate RNAIFRIE 298 - - - 298 298
Borrowings (Note) EEAGED) 15,784,917 - - - 15,784,917 14,206,092
Note: N
Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are included in BEREREEGRRZRITEE
the “on demand or within 1 year” time band in the above maturity £ L BB A Et AR 2R K
analysis. At 31 December 2014, the aggregate undiscounted DIMFEIzEBESEER - RZT—
principal amounts of the bank loans amounted to HK$13,557,075 ME+=ZA=+—8 " FITEHK
(2013: HK$15,784,917). Taking into account the Group’s financial IR A e8| A £ R13,557,075/8 T
position, the directors do not believe that it is probable that the (ZZ—=% :15,784,917/8 7T) ° &t
banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate RAREEZBMBMKRE  EEAB
repayment. The directors believe that such bank loans will be FRIT P RATREITE L ZK A
repaid over a period of 6 (2013: 7) years in accordance with the ERzHEE - EFEHEE ZE
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. RITEEBREERBHTEE

TFEFAH  ReF(ZZE—=%F:
TE) RN EE -
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3.

ME+=—A=+—RItFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2

Capital risk management

Certain of the Group’s subsidiaries are regulated by the
SFC and are required to comply with certain minimum
capital requirements according to the rules of the SFC. In
addition, the Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-
to-adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net
debt divided by adjusted capital. Net debt is calculated
as total debt (including current and non-current liabilities
but excluding current or deferred income tax liabilities
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position) less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital
comprises all components of equity (including share
capital and premium, reserves, accumulated losses and
non-controlling interests as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position).
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. MBEREEEE)
3.2 Capital risk management (continued) 3.2 BEfEREHEE)
During 2014, the Group’s strategy was to maintain the REBTE T —NFEEZFITZ
debt-to-adjusted capital ratio within 50%, which was T——FMXK BEABER
unchanged from 2013. The debt-to-adjusted capital ratios B ERA L RIS E50% A °
as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 were as follows: RZE—NWFERZF—=F+=
A=+ —RZ2EBHEHAZBRAE
Ho T
2013
—ET—=5F
HK$
BT
Total debt BE 34,678,383 30,309,266
Less: Bank balances and cash, including & : SR1T4 8% &
bank trust accounts (Note 30) Re - B
RITEFEERP
(M 3£30) (306,319,906) (83,131,819)
Net debt BT A (271,641,523) (52,822,553)
Total equity s RE 801,259,650 118,757,815
Adjusted capital KRR 801,259,650 118,757,815
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio & 745 ¥ 48 A B iR AR
Lt & N/AFiE F N/AZ 3 A
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AFEZzMEE
The table below analyzes financial instruments carried at TRZGHEZEDTARFEE
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have EZEMTAE - ZBERZ2TEED
been defined as follows: N
. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for . HREESABGR/ERT
identical assets or liabilities (level 1). 2 RECREFAE)(E—
;) o
. Inputs other than quoted prices included within . BESBEINEEER)
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, SEAECREER BR 2
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that WMABEBECTRIEE K2
is, derived from prices) (level 2). WE)N(EZR) -
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HMBEBEEEGE)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AFEZMEFE)

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based . BEXABGBWFRETE
on observable market data (that is, unobservable RymBHIE 2@ ABE
inputs) (level 3). (EEERsu ANBE)(H

=)
The Group
AEE
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
et E— £ £=4
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT 7T T BT
At 31 December 2014 R-E—NWF
+=—RA=+—8
Financial assets at fair value &2 F{EzHA
through profit or loss BamseREE
(Note 27) (Bt 5E27)
— securities held for trading — #{EE&E&E% 197,682,520 197,682,520 - —
Contingent consideration FEU S ARAB
receivable 4,232,422 — — 4,232,422

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, there were no
transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and
Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group did not have any
assets and liabilities that were measured at the fair value
measurement hierarchy.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HMBRAREEE
3.4 Financial instruments by category 34 ERMIADE
The Group The Company
FEH EAT

Financial assets as per statement 8175 ik & 2

of financial position TRLEE
Statutory deposits and other FEEEREE REAM
assets EE 6,106,735 6,907,850 - —
Contingent consideration EM S ARE
receivable 4,232,422 — - —
Trade receivables JE W E 5 I 7,507,770 6,488,374 - -
Deposits and other receivables 1% & K Hth g Uk
KIA 7,549,318 10,916,016 1,600 1,177,340
Financial assets at fair value BEAFEFABR
through profit or loss ZEmMEE 197,682,520 — = —
Loans and receivables ER R EWREIE 17,427,620 — - —
Amounts due from Directors and [ % F & A (T
a former Director EEFA 32,541,415 — 32,541,415 —
Amounts due from subsidiaries & Ut B A TR IE - — 466,981,941 79,206,519
Bank balances and cash, RITHEBRERS (B
including restricted cash FEXREIRE) 308,230,717 83,131,819 178,056,457 39,421,954
581,278,517 107,444,059 677,581,413 119,805,813
Financial liabilities as per WA R I|RE 2
statements of financial Ea =k
position
Trade payables BN E S50 15,556,792 8,681,727 — —
Other payables and accruals H M EARE R
JE T FRIE 6,743,910 7,421,149 1,106,936 2,084,136
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN NSNCIE/SE] - — 14,562,582 14,503,942
Amounts due to an associate FE — R B & AR
IR - 298 - -
Borrowings =R 12,377,681 14,206,092 - =

34,678,383 30,309,266 15,669,518 16,588,078
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

(a) Estimated impairment of goodwill
The Group tests annually whether goodwill has
suffered any impairment, in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in Note 2.8. The
recoverable amounts of CGU have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates.

(b) Estimated useful lives of intangible assets
other than goodwill
The Group has significant intangible assets. The
Group is required to estimate the useful lives of
intangible assets, in order to ascertain the amount
of amortization charges for each reporting period.

(c) Estimated impairment of intangible assets
other than goodwill
The Group periodically reviews internal or external
resources to identify indications that the intangible
assets other than goodwill have suffered any
impairment in accordance with accounting policy
stated in Note 2.8. If the recoverable amount of
an intangible asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
intangible asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. The assessment of the recoverable amount
requires the use of estimates and assumptions.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4, EXEsHERHEE)
JUDGMENTS (continued)
41 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 41 EBEXEsHEFIREBRE)
(continued)
(d) Estimated impairment of trade and other (d) f1HitEKESFERAM
receivables FE W =6 JE it (B
The Group’s management determines the AEEEEETHETRE
impairment of trade and other receivables on W B 5 5IR K H fth & YR
a regular basis. This estimate is based on the HemBE WIREEFE
credit history of its customers and current market B AL 8 RIR R TR S
conditions. Management reassesses the impairment Fre BREESR®ESHM
of trade and other receivables at the end of the ERBEEFTEERKES
reporting period. FRIE K EAth fE W SR IE 2R
(&
(e) Estimated useful lives and impairment of (e) Y¥ #ERZHEZEE

property, plant and equipment
The Group has significant property, plant and
equipment. The Group is required to estimate
the useful lives of property, plant and equipment
in order to ascertain the amount of depreciation
charges for each reporting period.

The useful lives are estimated at the time of
purchase of these assets after considering business
developments and the Group’s strategies. The
Group performs annual reviews to assess the
appropriateness of the estimated useful lives.
Such review takes into account any unexpected
adverse changes in circumstances or events,
including declines in projected operating results,
negative industry and economic trends. The Group
extends or shortens the useful lives and/or makes
impairment provisions according to the results of
the review.

o] & i 4 R R 6 (5
AEBEHRBERZYME
W kRE - AEEER
AR BERREBEZH
REM UEESZHH
MZESHE -

SZEBEZARFEHRIRN
BARKEREHERR
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

41 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(continued)

(")

(9)

(h)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in certain
jurisdictions other than Hong Kong. Significant
judgment is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
The Group recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax
issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination are made.

Business combination

The Group acquired a subsidiary which engaged
in trading of electronic student cards in the PRC.
Please refer to Note 38 for details of the business
combination.

The Group assessed the business combination in
accordance with HKFRS and concluded that the
acquisition constitutes a business combination.
To account for the assets and liabilities acquired,
significant judgment was required in determining
the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed.

Fair value of contingent consideration
receivable

The Directors of the Group use their judgment
in selecting appropriate valuation techniques for
contingent consideration receivable. A discounted
cash flow method, which is commonly used by
market practitioners, has been applied for estimating
the fair value of contingent consideration receivable.
The estimation of fair values of the contingent
consideration receivables are derived after taking
into account the input and parameters, such as the
probabilities, discount rate and settlement date etc.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4, EXEsHERHEE)
JUDGMENTS (continued)
4.2 Critical judgments in applying the company’s 42 FERAXRASIEHBREELZ

accounting policies B XHE

(i)  Determining whether the interests in Shenzhen (i) EERFINEGEEEREE
Qianhai First China International Commodities BRXSPOERLEFZ
Exchange Centre Limited is an associate or a EnB—HHEELTGHE
joint arrangement —EHEALH
The Group holds 38% of the voting rights of REBERFYANE G
the interests in Shenzhen Qianhai First China BramRSHLERAR (E
International Commodities Exchange Centre ERRBERAT) ZE=mR
Limited which is structured as a limited company. AN R - BERE
The management has assessed the level of the B EAEEEZ AR E
influence that the Group has on it and determined BB NHICEE BHRE
that the Group has significant influence, not the FERRABREH B
joint control because of the board representation MEEAEBEHZARA
and contractual terms. Consequently, the interests BEARFE  MIEHXRZS -
in Shenzhen Qianhai First China International At - R IJIAE /EEEI
Commodities Exchange Centre Limited is classified BEEmxsF0EBRAQA
as an associate. LEESER—MHEER

=)

(i)  Recognition of other incomes (i) EFERMBEA
Regarding the petition lodged by SFC in T FE2ON AT IR e 2 BB B
November 2012 mentioned in Note 29, after taking ER_E—Z—-F+—AF
consideration of the legal opinion given by the TE' RZEFME  KERE
Group’s legal advisor and the attendance of the AEBEZERER_-Z
first hearing in November 2014, the involved two —ME+—AzEREA
Directors paid the sum of HK$14,016,266 in total BIBHZERER Y
to the Company as part of the claimed sums as EzmeaEERN _ZT—
compensations to the Company in December 2014. FT_AMARRAEZNR
In additions, by the high court order made on 16 EREn—do a1 A
January 2015, the involved two Directors and a 14,016,266 7T ° L0+ 1R
former Director were ordered to pay the Company BeSEhER_T—A1F
the compensations specified in Note 29. —A+TXRE#ELZHAS

ﬁﬁiﬁ&ZFﬁ%%%&*%
FEEEWHESAAR

Bt %E\ZQWFE%EEZEE
B3R e
The Directors considered all the above events EECERMBELMEH
and exercised their judgment to conclude that it WELHE  REER L
was virtually certain for the Company to receive Al B 5 AN A A g U B ﬁ ﬁg
such compensations; therefore, the Group has BEE B $%l A=E
recognized the said compensation income in 2014. —HFEE®R LB ERK
Ao
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5.

REVENUE
An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year from continuing
operations is as follows:

EXH
AEEAFERERERLERTNE
EBEoMmT

2013
—E—=
HK$
78 T
Continuing operations FIEEEET
Commission income from securities and BERBELLAS
futures brokerage A 1,621,449 1,587,840
Commission income from precious metals EeBELASKBA
brokerage 13,464,606 2,799,223
Spot trading profits on precious metals EeBREANIRS
contracts, net FEFEE 22,792,383 9,874,117
Trading of electronic student cards and HEBTFTELEEFERRK
school safety products ZEEM 2,603,689 —
Interest income from clients REFZFZFBYWA 381,593 370,985
Net loss on trading of securities BEEREHFZBIBFE (803,239) —
Income from provision of wealth management 2 it 81 = & 12 RS 2
services A 8,749 71,892
Consultancy fee income mE R A 547,362 —
Income from provision of a trading platform REZXZFFEERA - 105,803
40,616,592 14,809,860
SEGMENT INFORMATION SEEE

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
executive directors (the “Executive Directors”) of the Company.
The Executive Directors review the Group’s internal reporting in
order to assess performance and allocate resources. Operating
segments were determined based on these reports.

In prior financial years, the Group was organised into seven
operating divisions and each of the operating divisions
represented an operating and reportable segment: (1) provision
of brokerage and securities margin financing services; (2)
precious metals brokerage and spot trading; (3) corporate
finance services; (4) trading and principal investments; (5)
provision of wealth management services; (6) provision of stock
information and research services; and (7) provision of a trading
platform. During the year ended 31 December 2014, the chief
operating decision maker no longer considered the corporate
finance as an operating and reportable segment. In addition,
the chief operating decision maker considers the new business
of the trading of electronic student cards and school safety
products after the business combination as a single operating
and reportable segment.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. SEEAHGE)
As a result, the Group is now organised into the seven new $ EEREEATHALEFEE
operating divisions as (1) provision of brokerage and securities EFR/E - (NIRELLRFE %1% *’3 0
margin financing services; (2) precious metals brokerage and mﬁl ER%:QESBELRRERS:
spot trading; (3) trading of electronic student cards and school QIEEETELBRIRELZE2ER: (4
safety products; (4) trading and principal investments; (5) BEERBERE  ORUVEEERE
provision of wealth management services; (6) provision of stock ORUEKREEARM RS R(7)E
information and research services; and (7) provision of a trading HRZH5HFE - At - #Z=2013F12H31
platform. Accordingly, the aggregate segment results for the AEFEs o BEFEBBETHRD
year ended 31 December 2013 have been restated due to the ERERGREESHEHEY -
exclusion of the corporate finance service segment.
The segment information of the reportable segments from HE-_Z-—NF+_A=+—HLFE
continuing operations for the year ended 31 December 2014 is KA ij"i KEXBsAMEIE 2D
as follows: HERMT:
Brokerage Trading of
and electronic Stock
securities Precious student information
margin  metals spot cards and Trading and Wealth and Provision of
financing  trading and school safety principal management  research a trading
services brokerage products investments services services platform Total
BERES HEETEE
RESHA RLENK EREEE2  EER REAR
RE XBEREL ERh BERS UEEBERE RWRRE REXSTEE @z
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
Segment revenue from PIRBEESBEMA
external customers 2,003,042 36,256,989 2,603,689  (803,239) 8749 547,362 — 40,616,592
Segment results EES (2,442,414) 9,290,299 (7,400,430) 46,133,146 7,934  (7,560,168) (350) 38,028,017
Net unallocated expenses AOERAZFE (29,156,568)
Sundry income HIEWA 27,199,043
Gain on bargaining purchase & {8 It 8 %5 74,145,459
Finance costs BERAE (399,844)
Interest income Y ON 8,955,325
Share of profit of associate  [E{f & A& FI 1,594,693
Profit before income tax B BT 15 B4 A A8 120,366,125
Income tax expense FEHEX (3,147,706)
Profit for the year from FARBRHELE
continuing operations ES 117,218,419
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. HEEHGE
The segment information of the reportable segments from B ET—=F+_-_A=+t—HIFE
continuing operations for the year ended 31 December 2013 is REFBLEEB 2 BREDE S
as follows: HERDT:
Brokerage Stock
and securities Precious metals Trading and Wealth information Provision of
margin financing ~ spot trading principal  management  and research a trading
services and brokerage investments services services platform Total
BrRRES
RESHE EBeBRE B REER
B%  RERER BERE MEERRE KHRERE RHRS5TA @it
HK$ HKS HK$ HKS HK$ HK$ HK$
BT B BT B BT BT BT
Segment revenue from external MR EF D BUA
customers 1,958,825 12,673,340 - 71,892 - 105,803 14,809,860
Segment results DELE (3,622,594) 116,840 (753,329) 49302 (12,966,427) 7943 (17,168,169)
Net unallocated expenses ANEBRIFE (24,866,451)
Finance costs BAKA (457,438)
Interest income FlEMA 24,530
Loss before income tax BRETERAIES (42,467,528)
Income tax expense FEHEX (844,111)
Loss for the year from Continuing FRREHELLEK
operations ZEBE (43,311,639)

Other segment information from continuing operations for the
year ended 31 December 2014 is as follows:

BE_ZE-—NWEF+_A=1+—HILFE

EB Ry EERN

+ L2 e R
KEFELE
T
Continuing operations
BEGEEY
Trading of
Brokerage electronic
and securities Precious student Stock
margin metals spot cards and  Trading and Wealth information Provision
financing trading and  school safety principal  management and research of a trading
services brokerage products  investments services services platform  Unallocated Total
BERESH
RESHE HLERE HETTR4E EE REERER R#%S
BE  RHEREL RKER2ER BERA MEEERE HERB T8 RHE a3t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
&R #R ET &R #R ET #T ET #T
Addition to property, plant NE BERRETE
and equipment - 370,022 4,384,239 - - 7,267 - 46,015 4,807,543
Addition to intangible assets BVEERE - — 244,471,500 - - - - — 244,471,500
Depreciation and amortization HERBH 32,420 1,302,294 1,149,487 16,980 - 1,799,206 - 2,200,933 6,501,320
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. ﬁ maEHE
Other segment information from continuing operations for the (EE-=F+_A=T—HLFE
year ended 31 December 2013 is as follows: REBELEER Bty BERD
T
Continuing operations
iz»’ G ¥ S
Brokerage
and securities Stock
margin Precious metals ~ Trading and Wealth  information  Provision of
financing  spot trading principal  management and research a trading
services and brokerage investments services services platform  Unallocated Total
BRRESH
RrELHE EBeBRE BER BREAAR RH#ERS
®%E RIRER BERE BEEERE  HERE Ta AAE @it
HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$
BT owe ome ou BT owe ou BT
Addition to property, plant ME BERRE
and equipment RE 5,450 3,201,739 — - 9,421 - 846,467 4,063,077
Depreciation and amortization  #7 & % # 5 49,065 392,272 58,684 — 1,898,458 — 45845246 7,043,725
Impairment of goodwil HERA - - - - - — 3,700,843 3,700,843
Impairment of trade receivables f&I & 5 8 5l 36,000 - - - - - 83484 119,484
Write down of inventories FEHA - - - — 5,086,720 - — 5,036,720
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2014 HE-_Z-NER-_T—=F+=-A=
and 2013 are as follows: T—ANSBEEERBENT:
Segment assets 2013
SHEE ==
HK$
T
Continuing operations HEGEETR
Brokerage and securities margin financing K kBHRFEHE
services R 44,268,840 28,719,243
Precious metals spot trading and brokerage @E&EBIRERXH KEL 23,365,846 16,734,165
Trading of electronic student cards and school & &7 £ 4 & KR E
safety products TR Em 299,061,284 —
Trading and principal investments BEEREAERE 221,961,043 1,480,450
Wealth management services =B ERS — 550,120
Stock information and research services i 3R & 5 K B 9T AR 75 38,149,439 30,081,103
Provision of a trading platform RERSFE 25,236,261 101,743
652,042,713 77,666,824
Unallocated AHE 248,006,720 76,455,531
Consolidated assets REBE 900,049,433 154,122,355
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) SEEH(E)
Segment liabilities 2013
SEAR —E-=F
HK$
P TT
Continuing operations BEGCEER
Brokerage and securities margin financing LRELREBHFRECHE
services BR 7% 16,691,352 8,101,610
Precious metals spot trading and brokerage @B 2EBIREXHREL 4,883,404 3,854,296
Trading of electronic student cards and school $H%& & T &4 & MR E
safety products = Em 58,967,296 —
Trading and principal investments BEERBERE 43,834 20,215
Wealth management services MEEERS 25,579 25,579
Stock information and research services % =& & R % R 645,182 267,739
Provision of a trading platform REHZHFE — —
81,256,647 12,269,439
Unallocated Kok 17,533,136 23,095,101
Consolidated liabilities magE 98,789,783 35,364,540

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, statutory deposits and other
assets, investments in associates, contingent consideration
receivable, inventories, trade and other receivables, loan
receivables, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and bank balances and cash.

Segment liabilities consist primarily of trade payables, other
payables and accruals, income tax payables.

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the PRC.

DHREETEBRRYME  HEAR
BVEE ZERELEMEE R
”**’“TZ&% W HARE - 7
© JEWE B R IE K H e R R E
EH&ET BAVEFABRZ ZE R
BEAMRITEKBRERS -

DHEBETIEERENESNA
fEEMNKIA R BT ER - BFASE fR‘J

AEETBHNEBRAIEE -

2013
—EF—=
HK$
7T
Revenue from continuing operations REFESEERZ
= %1
Hong Kong BB 849,749 2,136,520
The PRC s 39,766,843 12,673,340
40,616,592 14,809,860
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Revenue from continuing operations from external customers
are allocated based on the country in which the customer is
located.

6.

SEEHE)
KREMNBEFPHFELEEBEER
BMEPHEBRZKED -

2013
—F—=

HK$
BT

Total assets BEHEE
Hong Kong 55 490,728,721 110,503,960
The PRC i 409,320,712 43,618,395
900,049,433 154,122,355

Investments in associates are allocated based on the location
of operations, other assets are allocated based on where the
assets are located.

REERRIZREREELS
HtWEEREEMEHLE D -

2 -

2013
—ZE—=

HK$
&I

Capital expenditure BEXMAX
Hong Kong BB 42,440 851,917
The PRC H 249,236,603 3,211,160
249,279,043 4,063,077

Capital expenditure is allocated on where the fixed assets are
located and intangible assets are in use.

Information about major customers

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, none of the customers
accounted for 10% or more of total revenue from continuing
operations.

EARXREETEEMEB R ELE
EEMMmEE D -

EEEFZEH
RZE—NFER-T—=F+=ZA=+
—H VTERBFELEEBREA
10% s A E 2 &P o
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7. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

7. HWARWE

2013
HK$
BT

Continuing operations FIEEEET

Other income Hib i A

CCASS fee income TREERRERUEA 30,829 77,232

Handling fee income % BBRKA 199,404 54,607

Interest income on bank deposits 1717 ZF) B A 84,685 23,859

Other interest income' ﬁ ‘rlﬂ B U A 8,870,640 671

Exchange gain JE 5 W E 94,968 —

Sundry income? FEIE A2 27,199,043 314,310

36,479,569 470,679

Other gains H b Uy 2=

Financial assets at fair value through profit or R A FEFAEF 2

loss (Note 27) S RE E (MFE27)
— Fair value gains on securities trading — BEZAHLLATE
Y &5 49,886,317 —

1 Included in the other interest income of the Group for the year ended 31 ! AEEBE-T-—NF+=-A=+—H JJ:
December 2014 were the HK$8,441,634 results from the court judgments FEZEM ﬂ SWABBEER AR
on interest compensations from the Company’s Directors and a former EER—EMESZHEBMEELZH /?&
Director. Please refer to Note 29 for details of the court judgments. & ¥68,441,6347%8 7T - BB AT H R 2 5F

& m2EME29 -

2 Included in the sundry income of the Group for the year ended 31 2 AEEBE-T-—NF+-A=+—H1t
December 2014 were the HK$26,924,441 results from the court FEZHBRABRBEZEZRR ARG EER
judgments on the dividend compensations from the Company’s Directors —EBREES (MF20) 2 R B EELZ
and a former Director (Note 29) and the reimbursement of the legal fee Ik & 526,924,441 7 T R A AR BE W &
incurred by the Company for the two existing Directors in previous years. REEEHEBZBAFEREZFAE

HER -
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. HMERRK
2013
—E—=
HK$
/% JC
Continuing operations BEGCEER
Interest expenses on bank borrowings not MERZ: BEARMRS
wholly repayable within one year from the M & REFB —F
end of the reporting period but contain a NEHEEEBSE
repayment on demand clause: EREERE 2B IR
17 f& X 399,844 457,438
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PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. KRFIEHmAE(HHE)
2013
—F—=
HK$
7T
Profit/(loss) before income tax from continuing 8 B # & & L %5 2 %
operations has been arrived at after Fris®imAE,/ (&8)
charging: EHERT P& 18 -
Auditors’ remuneration 1% R B &
— audit services — FatBR% 400,000 450,000
— tax services — RSB R - 80,500
— other services — Hi R 20,000 —
Foreign exchange difference, net R EREFE 2,650 118,680
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWZE KSR E
equipment (included in other operating ZEB(BEFAEM
expenses) LERT) - 12,061
Operating lease rentals in respect of rented HEWMHE ZKERYD
premises itk 5,526,352 2,593,284
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 10. EE®EFIBX
2013
—F—=
HK$
& T
Continuing operations BEEEETR
Wages and salaries TERY® 27,010,071 15,222,187
Share options granted to Directors and ETEEkEEZ
employees A 6,578,039 -
Pension costs — defined contribution schemes EIkE& KA — F&E
ARG 2 237,057 210,939
Employee benefits expenses, including EERAMAX 21
Directors’ remuneration EEME 33,825,167 15,433,126
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 11. EERFETHAENZ
EMOLUMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2014 BEEZE-—ZT—MNE+-A=+—H1
EE
Salaries,

allowances, Employer’s
and benefits contributions
in kind to pension

Name of Director Note Fees (Note (vi)) scheme Total
Fe o EMR
BEYAE  BHEA
Exfa ik e (M) ZEEHX @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT & BT ET
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Wang Wenming (Chairman) ITXHEE(ER) - 1,200,000 16,750 1,216,750
Mr. Lee Yiu Sun (Chief Executive) TR EAEGTHER) - 1,200,000 16,750 1,216,750
Mr. Wang Jiawei TRELLE - 300,000 12,000 312,000
Ms. Song Binyang ARG L (i 83,507 - - 83,507
Mr. Haroon Hasan Haroon Hasan %t 4 (ii) 363,334 1,296,721 4,500 1,664,555
Mr. Chen Li BRhEE (iii 212,903 2,193,618 - 2,406,521
Non-executive Directors kQTES
Mr. Liu Runtong SEmEE - - - -
Mr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. James Beeland Rogers Jr.
bk (iv) - 3,087,700 - 3,087,700
Independent non-executive Directors BIUERTES
Professor Zhang Benzheng RAEHE 130,000 - - 130,000
Mr. Tony | Tong BEEE 125,000 - - 125,000
Mr. Li Jianxing FEOKKE 120,000 - - 120,000
Professor Chen Shu Wen BRAE S H 120,000 - - 120,000
1,154,744 9,278,039 50,000 10,482,783
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 1. BEERETETHAENE(E)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE-_T—=%+-HA=+—HL
w8
Salaries,
allowances, Employer’s
and benefits in contributions
kind to pension
Name of Director Note Fees (Note (vi) scheme Total
e RMR
ENF = RIKEFHE
EEMS it 5% we (P & (vi) ZEEHR Bt
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
AT BT AT AT
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Wang Wenming (Chairman) IXHEE(ER) - 1,200,000 15,000 1,215,000
Mr. Lee Yiu Sun (Chief Executive) TRAMEEITRER) - 1,200,000 15,000 1,215,000
Mr. Wang Jiawei ITERETE v) - 240,000 12,000 252,000
Ms. Song Binyang ARG L ) 80,000 - - 80,000
Non-executive Director ERTES
Mr. Liu Runtong 2 EmELE - - - -
Independent non-executive Directors BAEHTES
Professor Zhang Benzheng RREHK 130,000 - - 130,000
Mr. Tony | Tong BELE 125,000 - - 125,000
Mr. Li Jianxing TEIRAE 120,000 - - 120,000
Professor Chen Shu Wen RSB 120,000 - - 120,000
575,000 2,640,000 42,000 3,257,000
Notes: B &
(i) Resigned on 11 September 2014. 0] RZZT—WNFERA+—HEHSE -
(ii) Appointed on 11 September 2014 and resigned on 4 February 2015. (ii) RZZE—WFAAT —HEZATR=F

—AF-_AMBEHT-

(iii) Appointed on 28 October 2014. (i) RZTE—NE+A=ZFTN\AEEZE -

(iv) Appointed on 22 September 2014. (iv) RZFE—NMFAAZ+=—ARZEE -

v) Appointed on 3 May 2013. (v) RZE—=FRA=-HEZT-

(vi) Benefits in kind include share options. During the year ended 31 (vi) ENHNaneoEERE-BZE-_Z—H©
December 2014, 45,000,000 share options with an aggregate fair value F+_A=+-—BLFE 2TFEEH#
of HK$6,578,039 were granted by the Group to the Directors of the 6,578,039/ T 2 45,000,00017 & A% 1 F A
Company under the Company’s share option scheme. No share options SEBBEARBBRETEIMR TAAF
were granted to the Directors of the Company under the Company’s BEF - HEZT—=F+=-A=+—HL
share option scheme during the year ended 31 December 2013. FE HEBRERBRAARBRETE

M FARAESE -
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 1. EERFETBRAEME&HE)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the FR - AREBEWEMEE A
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group CIEAWSI MBS RINBEAERRZ
or as compensation for loss of office (2013: Nil). None of the REIEASEBAE(CTE—=F 8-
directors waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during FR UREEREXRBHRELM
the year (2013: Nil). e (T —=5F: M)
12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 12. ABREHAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the FRNEAEB ARG EaFATRERE(Z
Group for the year include five (2013: two) directors of whose T-—=F WMRB)ESF BEZ2HeH
remuneration are set out in Note 11. The emoluments payable R EF1 - RZE—=FENAHBT=F
to the remaining three individuals during 2013 are as follows: ALEZBlET:
2013
—E-=F
HK$
7T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RUAREYN G - 1,386,000
Pension costs — defined contribution scheme EIkE& KA — F&E
kA &l — 45,000
- 1,431,000
Their emoluments fell within the following bands: BEZHME N FATEE:
2014 2013
—F—NE —T—=F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
EEAR EEBAH
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = %1,000,0007% 7T - 3
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the FR - AEBVYERAEESHTAL
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon X ASTAE o] B & 1F % TR 51 H0 B2 sk 7 a0 R
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2013: AEEK ZBSIIERERFGECT
Nil). —=F |
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. FiRBHEX
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% BEBENGUBRAEFEREBEENIR
(2013: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit arising in or B &8 2 f 5T E SRR B % B %E16.5%
derived from Hong Kong for the year. No provision for Hong ZE—=F:165%) T H - AAX K E
Kong Profits Tax has been made in the financial statements as FARSHBER WL ERT B R
the Group incurred a tax loss for the year (2013: Nil). Taxation EHBABNESRIELRE (2T —=5F:
on overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated ) BINNE 2 IR IR AN B E T
assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing FERERBRACHE  BEEM
in the countries in which the Group operates. JERTEFBEAE -
2013
—E—=
HK$
T
Continuing operations BHEGCEER
Current income tax: BVER PS5 -
Current tax on profits for the year FEFE 2 BV EAT 18
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — BEMEH - —
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax — PR EMER 3,343,438 1,025,660
Total current tax BIERT 18 42 (8 3,343,438 1,025,660
Deferred income tax (Note 34): IEEPTISHL (M 5E34) ¢
Current year KEE (195,732) (181,549)
Income tax expense g’ = 3,147,706 844,111
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13.

14.

15.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 13. F@RBEXZ(E)
The tax on the Group’s profit/(loss) before income tax differs fitt Bk FB LA T & 8 B 15 T R16.6% (= F
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong —=F:165%) 5t 8 REBE ZKRFTE
Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) as follows: BAFE(BE)BESEER S E
ENGCE
2013
—F—=
HK$
78T
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations before REFEKLE XK
income tax BRETEBRLATFE,
(E518) 120,366,125 (42,467,528)
Tax calculated at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate 2 & /& |18 1 £16.5%
of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) ZE—=%:16.5%)
AEZME 19,860,410 (7,007,142)
Tax effects of: INTIHBEZMBZE:
— Different tax rates of subsidiaries operating — R E/MEARER &S
in other jurisdictions 2B AEZ TR
RS 5,232,842 (1,765,528)
— Income not subject to tax — BARBBA (47,483,244) (168)
— Expenses not deductible for tax purposes — I8 B & 7] H1
Z X 16,847,405 849,751
— Others — Hith 8,448,403 8,585,649
— Utilization of deductible temporary — BEHRERTIR
differences previously not recognized ETREE2HA 241,890 181,549
Income tax expense PS8 F 2 3,147,706 844,111

PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to owners of the Company is dealt with
in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
HK$16,672,627 (2013: loss of HK$14,922,679).

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

In March 2013, First China Property Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party in relation to
disposal of the investment property at a cash consideration of
HK$56,000,000. The disposal was completed on 31 May 2013.
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15. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 15.
The results of the discontinued property investments business
for the year ended 31 December 2013, which have been
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income were as follows:

ERIEEEXRE)
HE-T—=F+-A=1+—HILFE
EfAGRAREREMEEKRARSE
MERIEMERBERBZEEAWT

2013
—F—=
HK$
78T
Profit for the year from discontinued FRERILEEERE
operation: FRiFImHE
Revenue EEE - 624,000
Other gains H iy = - 8,898,530
Other income H A - 6,498
Finance costs A& B AR — (172,655)
Other operating expenses Hib g - (23,221)
Profit for the year FRFE - 9,333,152
Profit for the year from discontinued FRERILEEERE
operation includes the following: FRBFESELT
&IE:
Rental income HEWA - (624,000)
Less: direct operating expenses from an W REEEHESWEA
investment property that generated NEEYWEZE
rental income BIEERY - 174,671
- (449,329)
Gain on disposal of an investment property HEREMEMERE - (8,898,530)
Cash flows from discontinued operation: B#RIFESXEFHRE
W&
Net cash used in operating activities KEFESEHAIES
F1E - (38,591,598
Net cash generated from investing activities I EFRSHELE 2R &
FE — 55,398,530
Net cash used in financing activities MmEFHEBAZRS
FE — (17,089,274)
Net cash outflow REmtFE - (282,342)
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16. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 16. BEREH (&HiE)

From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per
share attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

ARBFEBEANEBIEERERNLEBER
A BR)IRBEATBEH

2013
—F—=
HK$
& T
Profit/(loss) @ (FBiE)
Profit/(loss) for the purpose of basic and ARTESRERK
diluted earnings/(loss) per share BEAN(EE)Z
FE (B8 114,540,442 (34,033,645)
Less: R
Profit for the year from discontinued operation R B 248 |F & & %
5 6 A — 9,333,152
Profit/(loss) for the purpose of basic and RARETEREFEKLE
diluted earnings/(loss) per share from ES W AS E-VINE:
continuing operations SERF(EB)ZF
B (EE) 114,540,442 (43,366,797)
2013
—E—=F
HK$
7T
Number of shares BB
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—A—HZB3#1T
E R 4,458,960,120 4,028,964,120
Effect of warrant exercised EITRRAREE ZE 170,684,932 —
Effect of new issues of share BTNz E 336,136,597 159,039,616
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Lt EGREREF]
in issue for calculating basic earnings/(loss) (BE)zB#{TLRA
per share % 0 A S5 2R 4,965,781,649 4,188,003,736
Effect of deemed issue of shares under the ~ ANAFEREEI TR
Company’s share option scheme for nil EmERITRMDZ
consideration T 2,089,837 =
Effect of warrant issued BERTABREECZE 391,790,387 —
Weighted average number of ordinary shares st E G & EEF 2
in issue for calculating diluted earnings per BETERRMET
share (Note) 5 £ (Bt &) 5,359,661,873 4,188,003,736
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EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued) 16. SEREF (BR)(E)
2013
—F—=
HK$
BT
Earnings/(loss) per share from continuing REHEEZEE%E2
operations BREH (BE) 0.0231 (0.0103)
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share KREBESEEBZ
from continuing operations BREBEERN
(B548) 0.0214 (0.0108)
Note: B &
The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December HE-Z—=F+-A=+—HLEFENGRH
2013 did not assume the exercise of the Company’s share options and warrants BEBZAETERRARBHE=ZE—=F1
outstanding during the year ended 31 December 2013 since their exercise would ZAEtT—HIEFEZRITEERERRRES
result in a decrease in loss per share. BE - ATEeRSERES -
From discontinued operation RECRILEBELR
Basic and diluted earnings per share for the discontinued HEZZT—=F+-_A=1T—HLFE
operation for the year ended 31 December 2013 is HK0.22 cent REERIEKEXEB BRERR#E
per share, based on the profit for the year ended 31 December SERAMAEFR22BW  HWBFEHE
2013 from the discontinued operation of HK$9,333,152 and RBZE-_Z—=F+-A=+—HBILF
the denominators detailed above for both basic and diluted ERE DRI & ¥ 2 F))H9,333,152
earnings per share. B EXFRERREREARR#

BRENZz O EBMEESL -
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17.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. ¥1%E - BBRRRE
Office
equipment
Plant and Land and Leasehold and Computer Motor
The Group machinery  buildings improvements  furniture equipment  vehicles Total
BAZRME
558 HEREE tHREF HEMERE RiEH BHERG RE @z
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
As at 1 January 2013 R-B-=%-8-8
Cost A — 40,327,455 2,279,450 14,079,703 971,651 5,764,719 63,422,978
Accumulated depreciation RHFE — (3091,771) (1,653,037) (0,816,663  (870,661) (3957,400) (19,389,532)
Net book amount REFE — 37,235,684 626,413 4,263,040 100,990 1,807,319 44,033,446
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE-F-=f+=-A=+-H
LEE
Opening net book amount BUNERFE — 37,235,684 626,413 4,263,040 100,990 1,807,319 44,033,446
Additions nE - - 2,462,292 777978 - 822,807 4,063,077
Currency translation difference ERRBER - - 32,187 110,849 - 45,051 188,087
Disposals e - - - - —  @2281)  (42,281)
Depreciation charge RERX —  (1,613,098) (709517) (1,684,579  (51024)  (467147) (4,525,365)
Closing net book amount HERERFE — 35,622,586 2,411,375 3,467,288 49966 2,165,749 43,716,964
As at 31 December 2013 R-B-=%+-H=+-8
Cost B AR — 40,327,455 3,750,820 15,186,529 899,761 6,459,657 66,624,222
Acoumulated depreciation 2iHE —  (4704869)  (1,339445) (11719241)  (849,795) (4,293,908) (22,907,258)
Net book amount REFE — 35,622,586 2,411,375 3,467,288 49966 2,165,749 43,716,964
Year ended 31 December 2014 BE-F-WE+=-A=+-8H
LEE
Opening net book amount HYEETE — 35,622,586 2,411,375 3,467,288 49,966 2,165,749 43,716,964
Additions NE 49,257 - 773,467 2,368,463 42,440 423,808 3,657,435
Additions from acquisition of subsidiary ~ B EMB AR ZRE
(Note 38) (Biz+38) 478,802 = - 133123 — 336144 948,069
Currency translation difference ERRBER 6,273 - (50,140)  (84,394) - (29,715)  (157,976)
Disposals HE - - - (3,511) - = (3,511)
Depreciation charge RERX (34,917) (1,613,098  (1,522,814) (1,817,279)  (40,151) (585,626) (5,613,885)
Closing net book amount HERERFE 499,415 34,009,488 1,611,888 4,063,690 52,255 2,310,360 42,547,096
As at 31 December 2014 R-F-ME+=A=+-H
Cost B AR 638,274 40,327,455 4,438,435 17,392,893 942,201 7,143,663 70,882,921
Accumulated depreciation e (138,859) (6,317,967) (2,826,547) (13,329,203)  (889,946) (4,833,303) (28,335,825)
Net book amount REFE 499,415 34,009,488 1,611,888 4,063,690 52,255 2,310,360 42,547,096
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 17. Y% - BR/RBEE
Note: B 2
As at 31 December 2014, land and buildings held in Hong Kong under long RZZ—MOF+_A=+—8 BRERHALHR
lease with a carrying value of HK$34,009,488 (2013: HK$35,622,586) was BB FAIRMEEA34,0004888 L (ZE—=F:
pledged to secure the bank borrowings of the Group (Note 33). 35,622,586/ L) 2 T RIEFEREE AR E

B 2 R1T7 85K (M 7E33) ©

Office
equipment
Leasehold and Computer Motor
The Company improvements furniture equipment vehicles Total
WAEERME
AATF HEMERE Rix#h  ERERME RE @t
HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
As at 1 January 2013 N=—®—-=%—H—H
Cost AR 678,000 195,891 208,557 1,731,412 2,903,860
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (272,331) (140,603) (293,158)  (1,635,222)  (2,341,314)
Net book amount REFE 405,669 55,288 5,399 96,190 562,546
Year ended BE-_T—=%+=A8
31 December 2013 =+—BLEEE
Opening net book amount BV R FE 405,669 55,288 5,399 96,190 562,546
Additions NE — 23,660 — — 23,660
Depreciation charge WERX (226,000) (37,220) (4,349) (96,190) (363,759)
Closing net book amount B4R AR E F A 179,669 41,728 1,050 - 222,447
As at 31 December 2013 RZZE—=F+=-A=+—H
Cost AR 678,000 219,551 298,557 1,781,412 2,927,520
Accumulated depreciation 2t E (498,331) (177,823) (297,507)  (1,731,412)  (2,705,073)
Net book amount BREF(E 179,669 41,728 1,050 - 222,447
Year ended BE-_T—MmNE+=A
31 December 2014 =+—BLEE
Opening net book amount YRR FE 179,669 41,728 1,050 - 222,447
Additions RE = — 42,440 - 42,440
Depreciation charge MERX (179,669) (30,976) (10,121) = (220,766)
Closing net book amount B BR T RE - 10,752 33,369 - 44,121
As at 31 December 2014 R-B—-MNE+=-A=+—H
Cost [N 678,000 208,408 334,997 1,731,412 2,952,817
Accumulated depreciation i E (678,000) (197,656) (301,628) (1,731,412) (2,908,696)
Net book amount REFE - 10,752 33,369 — 44,121

Annual Report 2014 —Z-—mE£H 123



First China Financial Network Holdings Limited BHZEBKRKEBER D A

NoTES To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A BT RM A

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—Z—MNFE+-A=+—HIIEE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 18. HEME
The Group
AEHE
2013
—_F—=

HK$

BT
At fair value BAFHE
As at 1 January n—H—H - 46,500,000
Disposal s - (46,500,000)
As at 31 December R+=H=+—H - —

(@ On 31 May 2013, First China Property Limited, a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, disposed of
the investment property to an independent third party
for a total cash consideration of HK$56,000,000. The
Company recognized a disposal gain of approximately
HK$8,898,000, net of related disposal costs of
approximately HK$602,000.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. BEEE
Contractual
Trading customer
The Group Goodwill Software rights relationship Total
F&EHE i 04 X5 GHEFHE st
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT

As at 1 January 2013 W=-F—=%—HA—8H
Cost BN 693,827,539 8,586,847 3,224,000 — 705,638,386
Accumulated amortization and ZETEERORE

impairment (690,184,626)  (6,107,907)  (3,223,998) —  (699,516,531)
Net book amount IR EFE 3,642,913 2,478,940 2 — 6,121,855
Year ended 31 December 2013 B#EZ=-F—=%+—"H

=+—HIEEE

Opening net book amount BRI F A 3,642,913 2,478,940 2 — 6,121,855
Currency translation difference BN BERE 57,930 39,420 — — 97,350
Impairment (Note (iii) SRUE (P 5 (i) (3,700,843) - - — (3,700,843
Amortization charge B — (2,518,360) — — (2,518,360)
Closing net book amount B EREFE — — 2 — 2
As at 31 December 2013 RZZE—=F+-A=+—H
Cost K AS 693,827,539 8,586,847 3,224,000 — 705,638,386
Accumulated amortization and RET RO E

impairment (693,827,539)  (8,586,847)  (3,223,998) —  (705,638,384)
Net book amount BE E B — — 2 — 2
Year ended 31 December 2014 #EZ=-F—MNFE+=H

=+—HIEEE

Opening net book amount BRI AR EDF (A - - 2 - 2
Additions from acquisition BRERBARZAE

of subsidiary (Notes (i), (ii)) GEIVED) — 20,884,500 — 223,587,000 244,471,500
Currency translation difference BEEEIGESS - 283,290 - 2,972,060 3,255,350
Amortization charge i $iclaba - (887,435) - - (887,435)
Closing net book amount B4R BRI A — 20,280,355 2 226,559,060 246,839,417
As at 31 December 2014 MN-F—NE+=A=+—H
Cost B A 693,827,530 29,754,637 3,224,000 226,559,060 953,365,236
Accumulated amortization RETEE KORE

and impairment (693,827,539) (9,474,282) (3,223,998) — (706,525,819)
Net book amount BREFE — 20,280,355 2 226,559,060 246,839,417
The amortization charge for the year is presented in AFEERERINGEERREME
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other HBRAREABILZT o

comprehensive income separately.
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19.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(0

(i

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group acquired 100% of
FINT K £ 3B R B R A 5 (transliterated as Shenzhen Star Technology
Co., Ltd). One of the intangible assets arised from acquisition of
subsidiary represents the softwares namely X £ i E {7 R F = &1
V2.0 (Registration No.:2013SR144807), X B BRI G B R F =&+
V2.0 (Registration No.:2013SR144929), & £ i it iz AR 75 48 Ik #1F v2.0
(Registration No:2013SR145090) and 2.4G A JR RFID &5 B 12 %% #x A =X 84
(Registration No:2014SR037656) with the estimated useful life of 10 years.
The valuation of the intangible assets in amount of RMB17,000,000,
which is equivalent to HK$20,884,500, at the time of acquisition were
carried out by the independent firm of professional valuer.

The contractual relationships with customers are acquired through the
acquisition of AT RKEBEKABMRAA (transliterated as Shenzhen
Star Technology Co., Ltd) are assessed to be indefinite useful lives when,
based on an analysis of all of the relevant factors, there is no foreseeable
limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net
cash inflows for the Group. The recoverable amount of the contractual
relationships with customers that has indefinite useful life is estimated
annually whether or not there is any indication of impairment.

at 31 December 2014, the
been allocated to a CGU
RYTREBRRARRA
(transliterated as Shenzhen Star Technology Co., Ltd). An impairment test
of this intangible asset was carried out by management based on value-
in-use calculation and with reference to business valuation conducted by
an independent professional valuer.

For the purpose of impairment testing
contractual customer relationship has

representing the operating activities of

The recoverable amount of the contractual relationships with customers
with indefinite useful life is determined based on value-in-use calculations
by preparing cash flow projections of the relevant CGU derived from the
most recent financial forecast approved by the management covering
a three year period. The growth rates and discount rate are the key
assumptions used by the Group to determine the recoverable amount of
CGU. Estimated cash flows and discount rate are after tax.

The basis for calculating future growth rate of 3% is based on Mainland
Consumer Price Index. The applied discount rate is 22% and based on
the Weighted Average Cost of Capital (“WACC”). The cost of the Group’s
debt and equity capital, weighted accordingly to reflect its capital
structure, gives the Group’s weighted average cost of capital. The WACC
rates which are used to discount future cash flows are based on market
risk free interest rates adjusted for inflation differentials and also include
the debt premium, market risk premium, gearing corporate tax rate and
asset beta. No impairment loss was recognized during the year ended
31 December 2014.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iii)

(V)

For the purpose of impairment testing at 31 December 2013, goodwill
has been allocated to a CGU representing the operating activities of &
YEERLTHEBERIHEBRAB(EHERL") (transliterated as Shenzhen
First China School Safety Network Technology Company Limited). An
impairment test of this goodwill was carried out by management based
on value-in-use calculation and with reference to business valuation
conducted by an independent professional valuer.

The recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit is determined based
on value-in-use calculation. This calculation uses pre-tax cash flow
projection based on financial budgets approved by management covering
a five-year period. The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
is 23.75%.

The management of the Group reviewed the business operations of &
# % and considered that & Z X% would not generate positive cash
flows. The goodwill amount of HK$3,700,843 was determined to be
fully impaired with reference to a business valuation conducted by an
independent professional valuer.

The trading rights as at 31 December 2014 represent two (2013: two)
trading rights on the Stock Exchange and one (2013: one) trading right
on the Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited (“HKFE”).

19.

BEEEE)
B ¢ (4%)

(iii)

(iv)

MR _Z—=F+_A=+—HETHE
AHME  BELORERRRIEER
RRENBEARAF(EERLDEEE
PrRAcELEL EEECRERMA
BEMET2EHBIEEGEMETZ
EBEEH LR EETRERR -

ReELEM A RESBERE-LRE
EffEET ZAEDREBEERELE
BRELFRZBBREZHARASRE
BR-REREBAMRBZIERER
23.75% °

FAEBEEERMNEERLZEBLEE -
TRAEERZHTEELERESRE -
2EMBUEEGEMETZEBHHER
78 #3,700,843/8 TLiK 8 T /3 B BURE -

RIE-—NF+-_A=+-B2X5#i
MEA(CE—=F MA)BRIAXHER
—R(EEE-=FCR)BEHERFM
BERAB(ERMNZRFH
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20. STATUTORY DEPOSITS AND OTHER ASSETS 20. EZEHRERHMEE

The Group
X5EH
2013
—ET—=5F
HK$
BT
Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company BEAEFPREFEBR A
Limited (“HKSCC”) (EBHEED
— Contribution fund deposit — REEEES 100,000 100,000
— Admission fee deposit — g EIZS 100,000 100,000
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ERBBMERIMBR
NS
— Compensation fund deposit — BEESES 100,000 100,000
— Fidelity fund deposit — BERESES 100,000 100,000
— Stamp duty deposit — ElfERiL & 5,000 30,000
The Securities and Futures Commission of BEABLFRBMESH
Hong Kong ERELZEE
— Deposits for responsible officers — BEABES® 100,000 100,000
Shenzhen Qianhai First China International RIINATE & B RS m
Commodities Exchange Centre Limited R SR LB R AR (A
(Formerly known as Shenzhen Qianhai First AU EEES
China Precious Metals Exchange Limited) BXSHLBERRAR)
— Reserve fund deposit — fEEsEe 3,734,490 —
Guangdong Precious Metals Exchange Limited EREEEBRX HH D
(“PMEC”) ERAFR(EBXR
SH0])
— Reserve fund deposit — REESES 1,867,245 6,377,850
6,106,735 6,907,850
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21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 21. RBASZIRE

The Company

EAT

2013

e

HK$

om

Unlisted shares, at cost JEETMRA - KA 4,771,262 4,771,262
Less: Impairment loss recognized W ERAEEE (2) (@)
4,771,260 4,771,260

Amounts due from and due to subsidiaries FE Wt % FE 1+ Bid /B A SRR IE

For the years ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December HE_T—NOMF+-_A=+—HKZZ
2013, the amounts due from and due to subsidiaries are —ZF+_A=+—HLFE BEARQ
shown on the Company’s statement of financial position are A B 75 AR R #R 3R PR 2 FE UK K A R
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. BRARIFRENAEEMR £ S RAER
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—Z—WNF+-_A=+—HIFE

21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 2. PHBASZERE(E)
The following is a list of the Company’s principal subsidiaries NTARZZE—NF+_A=1+T—RH2
as at 31 December 2014: AARIFENBARIZE:

Place of incorporation/

Principal activities

Particulars of issued

establishment and kind and place of share capital/ Interest
Name of legal entity operations registered capital held
S AL ST R 3L 3 B R BEITERE
b1 EEEEER TEEBREEME HEMBEAFE HAEER
First China Financial British Virgin Islands, Limited Investment holding 611,700 ordinary shares 100%
Holdings (BVI) Limited liability company of US$1 each
First China Financial RBRAEE ARLAF  KEER 611,700/ @R EE13E T
Holdings (BVI) Limited 2R
Stockmartnet Limited Hong Kong, Limited liability — Securities trading in HK$3 100%
company Hong Kong
TRIEBRAR HE - ARQA REBRERFES 3BT
First China Securities Hong Kong, Limited liability =~ Securities and futures HK$67,000,000 100%
Limited company brokerage and
securities margin
financing services in
Hong Kong
BEEFARAOA & BRLQA REEBREBSFLHE 67,000,0007% 7T
B AR FE FIRFE
SRA R
First China Processing Hong Kong, Limited liability ~ Provision of a trading HK$2 100%
Services Limited company platform in Hong
Kong
First China Processing B BRAA REBRERZFESR 27 7T
Services Limited
IFN-GT Financial Holdings ~ British Virgin Islands, Limited Investment holding 1 ordinary share 100%
Limited liability company of US$1 each
IFN-GT Financial Holdings HEBEXHS @ BRAF KEZEK 1 EREEIETZ
Limited T AR
First China Global Wealth  Hong Kong, Limited liability = Provision of wealth HK$6,000,000 100%
Management Limited company management services
in Hong Kong
BERMREBHER LA HE - ARQA REBREMEEER 6,000,000/% 7T
%
First China Property Limited Hong Kong, Limited liability — Discontinued operation HK$1 100%
company since May 2013
BEHEERAA &t BRAF “E-=FTARK 185
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21,

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of incorporation/

21. RMBABZIRE(E)

Principal activities Particulars of issued

establishment and kind and place of share capital/ Interest
Name of legal entity operations registered capital held
SR IL R I Hh BE R EBITHRE
&8 EEBRER TEEBREEME HEMRAFEE HEER
First China Estates Hong Kong, Limited liability ~ Property holding HK$1 100%
Company Limited company
BEBEXERAA HE ARRQA REME 18T
Aceview International British Virgin Islands, Limited Investment holding 1 ordinary share 100%
Limited liability company of US$1 each
HEBIBRARAR] RERLZESE BRAR REER 1REREEIETZ
il
GoHi Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands, Limited Investment holding 35,000 ordinary shares 100%
liability company of US$1 each
GoHi Holdings Limited REBERES  BRAE  BEER 35,000 &R EE1ZE T2
il
BEZEFBORYN)ABER  PRC, Foreign wholly-owned  Provision of stock Registered capital of 100%
‘A A] (transliterated as enterprise information and RMB40,000,000
First China Securities research services in
Consultancy (Shenzhen) the PRC
Co., Ltd.)
EEHHFEACRINER PE - 2ONELE REDREREENR AR RARSE
NG| ot 7% AR 7% 40,000,0007T
FINERFEXEEEE  PRC, Limited liability Investment holding Registered capital of 100%
[} A \] (transliterated as company and provision RMB3,000,000
Shenzhen Sky Picture of development
Culture Communications and design of TV
Company Limited) (Note) programs and
artwork in the PRC
RINERTRULEREE HE - BRAF RHEEEZER R EMERRARE
NSNS KB EREE K E 3,000,0007T
1l
FIEERLZHLEIEE  PRC, Limited liability Development and Registered capital of 100%
(R A A] (transliterated as company sales of school RMB7,000,000
Shenzhen First China safety products and
School Safety Network electronic student
Technology Company cards
Limited)
FINEERZREREE HE - BRAF RERHEERBLZ2E AMERRARE 100%
R Q7] mREFELFE 7,000,0007T
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21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 2. PHBASZERE(E)
Place of incorporation/ Principal activities Particulars of issued
establishment and kind and place of share capital/ Interest
Name of legal entity operations registered capital held
SR IL R 3L M BE R EETERE
&8 EEBRER TEEBREEME HEMRAFEE HEER
Y= EARENE PRC, Limited liability Development and Registered capital of 100%
[} @] (transliterated company sales of software RMB10,000,000
as Shenzhen Wealth for information
Alliance Networking network equipment,
Company Limited) terminal products
(“Wealth Alliance”) (Note) and calculators in the
PRC
RYEABBRMERE  FE - FRAF R BRI R A EMERAARY
A(ME 8 D) BB BB 05 10,000,0007C
EmkitEEs
FYMXEBREE PRC, Limited liability Trading of electronic Registered capital of 100%
[ A @] (transliterated company student cards RMB20,100,000

as Shenzhen Star
Technology Co., Ltd)

AYTREBRZRAR FE - BRAR HEETFE24E A ERRARE
NE] 20,100,0007T
FAYIBIR R B S BAE  PRC, Limited liability Precious metals Registered capital of 55%
BRRAFA (transliterated company brokerage and spot RMB20,000,000 (of
as Shenzhen Guoyin trading which RMB10,000,000
Brilliant Precious Metals has been paid up as at
Limited) (“Guoyin”) 31 December 2014)
AYBREHESBLE T BRAA EeBRLERRERS EMERRARE
BRAF(ER]D 20,000,0007T (&
A F#10,000,0007T *
R-F—MF+_A
=t+—BE&R)

Note: The equity interests in these subsidiaries are directly or indirectly held by Ha: ARBARRAEEEESHAEFAZ
nominees on behalf of the Group and the Group holds 100% effective EMBARI AR  RAKEREZ
interest in the subsidiary. /& R E00% E R AE R ©

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in TREVNNESAEAEERERELENE

the opinion of the Directors, principally affect the results or ERKEEZE2HBRAR - EER

assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, B FHANNEMKE AR 2 BRI ER

in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive RIRBRITE °

length.
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 2. REBATZ®/EE)
Material non-controlling interests BERFERERS
The total non-controlling interests for the year is HK$5,267,851 F N IEE I = 48 E 55,267,851
(2013: HK$2,607,017), of which HK$5,267,850 (2013: TT(ZE—=%:2607017% L)+ HAF
HK$2,607,016) is for Guoyin. The non-controlling interests in iR & (55,267,850 L (Z T — =4 :
respect of other subsidiary is not material. 2,607,01678 7T) - B E M B AR/
EEREETTEK -
The Proportion of ownership interests held by non-controlling FEREEFEEBNEZLN A
interests in Guoyin is 45% (2013: 45%). 45% (ZF — =4 : 45%) °
Summarized financial information on the subsidiary with FEXHERERZZHIELEZEHFE
material non-controlling interests BHHE
Set out below are the summarized financial information for the TXHIMEBARER (LR ZIE
subsidiary, Guoyin, that has a non-controlling interests that is TREZHASEMEBEER) VB
material to the Group. Guoyin was incorporated on 9 July 2013, BERBMEZE -BRN=_ZFT—=FLAN
=Ry VA
Summarized statement of financial position B IR K I E
2013
—ZF—=
HK$
7T
Current %)
Assets BE 21,514,701 7,510,278
Liabilities BE (4,883,404) (3,854,296)
Total current net assets MENEEEFE 16,631,297 3,655,982
Non-current FERE
Assets BE 1,851,145 9,223,887
Liabilities B&E - —
Total non-current net assets ERBEELEFE 1,851,145 9,223,887
Net assets BEFE 18,482,442 12,879,869
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21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 2. RHBATRZEE(E)
Material non-controlling interests (continued) BEXFERERE)
Summarized financial information on the subsidiary with FEAFERERZRZHEBLGZHE
material non-controlling interests (continued) BEHBEE)

Bam REMEERAFLHE

Summarized statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income

2013
—F—=

HK$

& TT

Revenue HER 36,256,989 12,673,340

Profit before income tax K BT 15 F4 A A1) 9,294,499 1,148,234

Income tax expense g R = (3,343,439) (1,025,660)

Profit for the year F AT HE 5,951,060 122,574

Other comprehensive (expense)/income Hmz2m(EL) RA (38,095) 1,595

Total comprehensive income ZEBABE 5,912,965 124,169
Total comprehensive income allocated to ErkEFERERZ

non-controlling interests FHEABE 2,660,834 55,876

Dividend paid to non-controlling interests

REZELS 3= es)

134 Annual Report 2014 =2 — [0 F F 5§



First China Financial Network Holdings Limited B ZE&LREEEEGR D T

NoTES To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M B SRR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—Z—WNF+-_A=+—HIFE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 2. PHBASZERE(E)

Material non-controlling interests (continued) BEXFERERE)

Summarized financial information on the subsidiary with FEAFERERZRZHEBLGZHE
material non-controlling interests (continued) BEHBEE)

Summarized statement of cash flows B REaXkmE

2013
—F—=
HK$
BT
Cash flows from operating activities KEEHMEHRSRAE
Cash generated from/(used in) operations KEEE /(B8R 2
" 10,386,409 (5,347,563)
Interest received 2 WA 8 13,745 5,736
Tax paid BB IE (1,035,009) -
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating  && EBEL (FA)
activities ZReFE 9,365,145 (5,341,827)
Net cash used in investing activities RETHHHZ RS
F1E (370,022) (3,201,739)
Net cash generated from financing activites ~ Bl & /EEHEL 2R E
FE - 12,591,800
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RekREEBEER
ZanFE 8,995,123 4,048,234
Cash equivalents at beginning of the year FUzHSFEMBEER 4,100,927 —
Exchange gains/(losses) on cash and cash RekReFEBEEBERZ
equivalents PE X Uezs, (B 18) (151,240) 52,693
Cash equivalents at end of the year FRZESEFEER 12,944,810 4,100,927

The information above is the amount before inter-company

eliminations.
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22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 22, REBEATIZIRE
The Group The Company
TEH AAT

At 1 January Kn—H—H 15,920 15,470 - —
Additions NE 24,175,538 — 24,175,538 —
Share of profit JE& 15 A8 1,594,693 — - —
Currency translation BB HIRER

differences (534,354) 450 - —
At 31 December RT+ZA=+—H 25,251,797 15,920 24,175,538 —
Details of the Group’s associates as at 31 December 2014 are NZE—NF+_A=+—H &%
as follows: /NS o= o g (I

Particulars of issued Interest

Name Place of incorporation Principal activities shares held held

&8 = MM AX 3T 3t Bh TEER FFHERTRNFEE MAisER

I B S BT PRC, Limited liability Development and Registered capital of 40%
BRAF] company sales of software RMB1,000,000

for information
network equipment,
terminal products
and calculators in the

PRC
R B B iR S BT HhE - BRAF RHBEREREEEA EMERRARE
AR QA WERRE 2B - 42 1,000,0007%
R R
AYIAE HERERE PRC, Limited liability Provision of trading Registered capital of 38%
MRGHALERRA company platform for precious RMB100,000,000
Al (transliterated as metal and provision
Shenzhen Qianhai First of related consultancy
China International services
Commodities Exchange
Centre Limited (formerly
known as J&IIETEEH
EECBRXIHPLAR
/A7) Shenzhen Qianhai
First China Previous
Metals Exchange Centre
Limited)
RABSERABALR  FE ARAA EHESBIPTAY AR AARSE
S OAR AT (FIER 12 (48 B 55 A PR 75 100,000,000

JAEEERSERS
fb AR A )
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INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements.

The above associates are private companies and there is no
quoted market value available.

Commitments and contingent liabilities in respect of
associates

The Group has the following commitments relating to its
associates

22.

REEATZRE(E)
EAR P B B R R B R A m A AR
B HWREAAR -

A EBERRHBILARRBILRE
mEEEAERSE -

FHABEABZRBERIAEH

AEEHGABRERE QR ZIATE

=

Commitment to provide funding if called

EERERERE S

23,651,754 —

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interest
in the associates.

Material Associate

The Directors consider Shenghen Qianhai First China
International Commodities Exchange Centre Limited is a
material associate to the Group.

Set out below are the summarized financial information in
respect of the Shenghen Qianhai First China International

Commodities Exchange Centre Limited.

Summarized statement of financial position

B 2 ) 5 R SR A 2 2 5K
mEMH -

EEHEAT
EEMR/RAIAEEERRBMX
SPTPLERARIBAKEHEZRER
7 o

v

TXENBBRNAEEEERA®R
REPLERABDNUBENBE -

AERRBEXE

Current mEh

Cash and cash equivalent HeMReZEER 167,050,143
Other current assets (excluding cash) Hume & EGEE2BRIN 12,322,120
Total current assets MEBEEBE 179,372,263
Other current liabilities HimEas (121,632,670)
Non-current JE M &

Assets BE 8,671,620
Net assets BEFE 66,411,213
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22.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
Material Associate (continued)

Summarized statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income

REEATZRE(E)
EERZAEE)
B REMEEWRARKHE

Revenue BER 20,945,766
Depreciation and amortization -3 763,071

Interest income A B U A 244,495
Profit or loss from continuing operation RERFBEKEER 2 BR 4,964,279
Income tax expenses FriSF > (767,718)
Post-tax profit from continuing operation REFBEKEEG 2 REE T 4,196,561

Translation reserve bE 5 1 (26,864)
Total comprehensive income ZHEU A 4E5E 4,169,697

Dividends received from associate

[7) Bt 2 % @) AR AR B

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the
financial statements of the material associate, adjusted for
differences in accounting policies between the Group and
the material associate, and not the Group’s share of these
amounts.

Reconciliation of summarised financial information
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented

to the carrying amount of its interest in the material associate.

Summarised financial information

bl BB R BR B OKEE R E) B RS R
NESZze2B(MIEAEEHZEZSHE
MG WERAREESERBER
AzHEEABEZERFEHRE -

AEERBEZ HK
FRERzMHERBEEENE X
BRBZEmZ REEYRE -

HMBEERBE

Closing net assets FREEFE
Carrying value of interest in material

associate @ 38%

66,411,213

REABE QR 2 2 FRE{E@38%

25,236,261
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INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
Set out below are the aggregate information of an associate

that are not individually material:

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_Z—NE+_A=+—HILFE

22. RBMEATZRERE)
AR FER 2 M ERAEREH
#HT

2013
—T—=F
HK$
T
The Group’s share of loss NEBEGEE - —
The Group’s share of other AEEEBEGEMEE
comprehensive income WA (384) —
The Group’s share of total AEEEEZERA
comprehensive income #®iE (384) -
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s AEBER —EHE AR
interest in an associate w2z BEE 15,536 15,920
Amounts due to associate JEIT & 22 ] 50 E
The amounts due to associate are unsecured, interest-free, FE T B = T RIEREER 28

denominated in RMB and repayable on demand. During the
year, the Group has written off such amounts (2013: HK$298).

RARBINERAREREE - FA -
AEBEMBEZERACT =5

29878 7T) °
23. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLE 23. FEUERAKE
The Group
X&EE
2013
—F—=
HK$
BT

At acquisition date of 14 July 2014

R-E—mFLA -+

(Note 38) B U B B HA (M 5£38) 12,039,300 —
Change in fair value NEEES (8,018,240) —
Currency translation difference EHElE =R 211,362 —

4,232,422 =

The fair value of contingent consideration receivable is related
to the acquisition of Shenzhen Star Technology Co., Limited (see

Note 38).

W AREBZ A FETEKBERI
MAEBMEARAR(REMHEISE
B -
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23.

24,

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLE
(continued)

Pursuant to the acquisition agreement, the vendors guarantee
to the Group that the net profit after tax of Shenzhen Star
Technology Co., Ltd. (based on its audited accounts) for each
of the three financial years ending 31 December 2015, 31
December 2016 and 31 December 2017 shall be as follows:
(i for the year ending 31 December 2015: not less than
RMB20,000,000; (i) for the year ending 31 December 2016:
not less than RMB30,000,000; (i) for the year ending 31
December 2017: not less than RMB40,000,000. If the Vendors
fail to achieve the profit targets within a specified period, the
Group will receive cash from the Vendors for the purchase of
the shares under escrow arrangement.

The fair value of the contingent consideration receivable
at acquisition date is based on valuation results from the
professional valuer, by using a discounted cash flow method.
The discount rate of 19% was used.

INVENTORIES

23.

24,

FEWr sl 2R K (B (42
REBERBHE EHAAEERE -

FIMREBREBRAGREBES
T—RAF+-_A=1+—H - —_ZF—R"HF
+—A=+—-BRZE—+F+/A=
+—RL=ERFESF2BRIE
FAMERBHELAEZEB AT ()&
B AT A=+T—HILEFE:
T~ A R #20,000,0007T : (i) & ==
T—XRNF+_A=Z+—HLEFE : T~
H A R #30,000,0007T : (il EZ=—F—
+tEF+_ A=+ —HIEFEE : TPRA
R #40,000,0007T ° 4 & 75 7 I8 & #
FAREEBRMNEE  AEEHH®
BETELHETHRMNMAE FUEIR

N
S

RUWEHBERKAREZAFET
BEEEGHEMAMSHZEHEELERT
FEAMRRESRETE FAZHR
K 519%

Finished goods X o

£~}
=
The Group
X5EEH

2013

—E—=%

HK$

T

3,202,908 694,038

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense and included in profit or loss is as follows:

EEBECHERAEBRIZFESE D
Wi :

The Group
xEH

2013
=5
HK$
7T
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFEREE 2,147,621 —
Write down of inventories 7 & WOR - 5,036,720
2,147,621 5,036,720
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25. TRADE RECEIVABLES 25. EWESMIA
The Group
X5EH
2013
—ET—=5F
HK$
BT
Amounts receivable arising from securities BEKGOLEBEE
broking: FE W R IE
Margin clients RBFEEEP 3,527,388 4,311,263
Cash clients Be®P 700,445 862,750
Brokers and dealers BERR5E 6 6
HKSCC (net) HEEHE(CFE) - 904,923
Amounts receivable arising from precious EeBRERS R
metals spot trading and brokerage: R EBEEZ
JE WK IE
PMEC (net) E2BRHHPL
C%1E) 32,600 409,432
Shenzhen Qianhai First China International Y BE E ER R
Commodities Exchange Centre Limited HmRXZHHHER
(net) RECEE) 1,304,360 -
Other trade receivables HEh e E 5508 1,978,971 120,570
7,543,770 6,608,944
Less: Provision for impairment loss B R (B S 1A (36,000) (120,570)
Trade receivables, net JEW B 5 IE - FE 7,507,770 6,488,374
Amounts receivable from margin clients are repayable ERRBE2EPRIEBEAEZRZKE
on demand, bearing interest at prevailing market rates B RBTITBMNEHE TUE
and are secured by clients’ pledged securities which are FR-ZZE—NWNF+-_A=+—H#
listed on the Stock Exchange with a total market value of ™ 1& 4919,268,000%8 L (ZF — = F
approximately HK$19,268,000 as at 31 December 2014 23,300,000 JT.) 2 Bt 22 B i 3K 1 &8
(2013: HK$23,300,000). No aged analysis is disclosed as, FEEE ERNFHRESHEED
in the opinion of the directors, the aged analysis does not ZUHE EERAERERITILEEM
give additional value in view of the nature of the business of BIINBEE WAERBREDNT -

securities margin financing.
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25.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The settlement terms of amounts receivable arising from
securities broking are one or two trade days after the trade
execution date. Except for the amounts receivable from margin
clients as mentioned above, these balances are aged within 30
days.

Other trade receivables arising from the trading of electronic
student card are due immediately from date of biling but
the Group will generally grant a credit period of 60 days on
average to its customers. Trade receivables arising from the
provision of corporate finance service and wealth management
service in prior year are with credit term of 30 to 90 days in
20183.

The following is an aged analysis of other trade receivables at
the reporting period:

25.

FEW B 5 ®RIE (47)
B RLCEBELE BUGRIANETT
RZEME-—SIMEIHARAMN -
B bl BURBEEEPRIAN - K
ZHRIRB=THRA o

HEETEAREL CEMBNES
A RBEHREZEANEGE - E
AEE-—REHETHES FHAR+THE
ZEEM NBEFERHELCERE
MBULMEERRFEE ZEINE
SHRBEZEERAR_ZTE—=FR=1
EATH-

HiEKREZHRARRENEZ Rk
DI :

The Group
F
2013
=

HK$

T

0-30 days 0£30H 1,942,971 —
31-90 days 31£90H - —
91-180 days 91£180H - —
181-365 days 181£2365H — —
Over 365 days 365H M — —
1,942,971 —

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the
reporting period is the carrying amounts of trade receivables.
Other than the amounts receivable from margin clients, the
Group does not hold any collateral as security in respect of its
trade receivables.

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, all other
trade receivables were not past due.
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25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 25.
Movements on the provision of impairment of trade receivables
are as follows:

FEWESRIEE)
EWE S RIBRERBZE BB RNM
T

The Group
¥
2013
—E—=
HK$
BT
At 1 January n—H—H 120,570 —
Provision for impairment of trade receivables &Y E 5 7k 8 il (& % 1 - 119,484
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables FEWE 5B IR R ERE (84,570) —
Currency translation differences BN hERE - 1,086
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 36,000 120,570

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group’s trade
receivables of HK$36,000 (2013: HK$120,570) were individually
determined to be impaired.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

RZE—NER_ZT—=F+=-A=+
—HB - AEE 2 EKE S K IE36,000
7 (= F — =4 120,570 7T) A (A
FERFESFORE -

AEERKESRBZREBERAT
BEH¥IE:

The Group
8
2013
—F—=

HK$

BT

Hong Kong dollars BT 4,227,839 6,078,942
RMB AR 3,279,931 409,432
7,507,770 6,488,374
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26.

ME+=—A=+—RItFE

LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

In November, 2014, B ZEE 5740 ORI BRAF] (transliterated
as First China Securities Consultancy (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, entered into loans
agreement with independent third parties and agreed to
grant six months loans with principal amount in total of RMB
14,000,000 at fixed interest rate of 15% to 18% per annum.

The repayment of the loan principal will be at maturity
and interest is repayable monthly. The loan is secured by
the pledged securities which are listed on Shanghai Stock
Exchange and Shenzhen Stock Exchange and such securities
were transferred to the nominee of the Group and in his
custody.

At initial recognition, the Group determined the fair value of

26.

BERE B RIE
RZF-—WE+—A BEESFES®

(FRINERRRI(REBZ2EWBR
a);ﬁéﬁj%_ﬁﬂ—ig Tﬁuﬁ H
%ﬁ$@%ﬁAE%M@mmmxzﬂ

BEAER  REEFFE16EE18E
8 o

ERAS AN 6 (E Effﬁﬂbb\&

AER - ETAJ«/UJ‘AJ:’E R 5 &
RINBEHFRGH LT 2 BRESFER
B MZFESFCEETAKEZAK
AANLAERE

RERERR AEEETRKRER

the loans receivable equivalent to their principal amounts. ZATFERERERSE - BRER
The analysis of the carrying amount of loans receivable is as ZEEEITET:
follows:
The Group
AEH
2013
—F—=

HK$

T
Current B ER 17,427,620 —
Management of the Group determined no impairment loss on AEFETIEE AT - & EE AN EE A
these loans receivable are required to be recognized, after BECZEBERE BEMAZEER

taking into account the collaterals held by the Group.
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27. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 27. BAFEANEGZEHMEE
PROFIT OR LOSS
The Group
AEH

2013

HK$

T
Listed equity — held for trading Lmki#E — BEEE
Equity securites — Hong Kong ARFES — BB 197,682,520 —
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are EAFEFAEGZ eREERES
presented within “operating activities” as part of changes in MERRNKCLEETHIAZY  BLEE
working capital in the statement of cash flows. BEe#EHo—8H -
Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through BEAVFETFAEGCeRMEEZATF
profit or loss are recorded in “other gains” in the consolidated R ALRAEEREMEEEA
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. MR 2TEMU =R -
The fair value of all equity securities is based on their current FTERAFZL 2 A FEDIBRERSER
bid prices in an active market. ERMSE ECEBEAEBRE -

28. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 28. FAMRIE & RHEMEKRIE
RECEIVABLES
The Group The Company
X&EH EAT

Other receivables H b & Y 3k I8 1,351,016 5,764,091 - —

Other deposits and Hibiz & RFEHN
prepayments E 7,128,000 7,403,297 160,102 1,301,613
8,479,016 13,167,388 160,102 1,301,613
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29. AMOUNTS DUE FROM DIRECTORS AND A FORMER 29. FEMEERAEEENIE

DIRECTOR
The Group The Company
3 L] AaT

Amounts due from Directors & U & = % B (T
and a former Director EEHE

32,541,415

— 32,541,415 —

The SFC has served a petition under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance against the Company, one former Director (Mr.
Yin Yingneng Richard) and two current Directors (Mr. Wang
Wenming and Mr. Lee Yiu Sun) of the Company in November
2012. SFC was seeking disqualification orders against such
Directors and an order that the Company should itself or
otherwise procure Aceview International Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, to bring court proceedings
against Fame Treasure Limited and/or other parties at fault
to recover the dividend of RMB18,692,000 (equivalent to
HK$23,268,362) to it.

The judgment from the High Court of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region of First Instance was made on 16
January 2015. The court ordered that the two current Directors
and one former Director should compensate the dividend paid
of RMB18,692,000 with the interest accruing at 1% above the
prime rate published by the HSBC from 31 December 2008 to
the date hereof and thereafter at the judgment rate (the “Judgment
interest”) until the date of payment to the Company. Such
interest accrued is HK$8,441,634.

Half of the Company’s professional and legal fees in the
amounts of HK$831,419 incurred in relation to this litigation
amounted to should also be paid by Mr. Yin Yingneng Richard,
Mr. Wang Wenming and Mr. Lee Yiu Sun jointly and severally.
The above amounts due from the Directors represent the
dividend compensations, the Judgment interest and the
reimbursements of Company’s professional and legal costs in
relation to this litigation to the Group by the Directors.
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BEeN _T——F+—AREZES
MEEEHRART  RARZ—%
AEE (FREELE) AMEREEES (£
NHRARERERTAE)IREER - &
EerSREZEEE 2R HERS
RGELARRARFHBITRERRDA
ZEEHNBRARISESBEEERARM
BEERAAL REEBRZEM
ANTREERFR » WIRE X~ F %
Nalz kB A R%18,692,0007T (10 &
723,268,362/ 7T) °

BERFRITHE RS ERRAEER
—E—RF AT RNBEHHR K
U SHMERTEER —RAITES
FE BB BT R% B A R%18,692,0007T ¢
WiIRELRTA-_ZTEENFE+_A=
T+T—HBEHABEAAM 2 HEEF
KEIMEE B - 2 &L HRF E(TH
RAENFHEEEMARRNNFKEHE -
%R B 58,441,634 7T °

RNABIRAFATEE ZFEE R EAE
BEM—F £% 48314198 LI E
MFERELAE  TXHEEREZTEH
EAEHRRRERAE - BURESEZ £
MREAEREREE  HAFNERES
MARREBZFRZEERAAEE
BRAEEEEZSHE-
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30.
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AMOUNTS DUE FROM DIRECTORS AND A FORMER
DIRECTOR (continued)

The amounts due from Directors and a former Director were
unsecured. According to the court order, the dividend of
RMB18,692,000 and its interest accruing at 1% above the
prime rate published by HSBC is repayable to the Company
within 21 days from the judgement date. The court order did
not specify the repayable period for the half of the Company’s
professional and legal fees.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH
(@) Cash and cash equivalent

2. BUMESRAIEESEKEGE)

EWEELRAMTE EREL £IK
HeREBEZEHS BERBARE
18,692,0007T MA & E 4% JE L R1T A
ZEREBEMNEIZINEFENFE  JE
B¥RAKIBAREE AR - MA
R FAARTELE 2 EEREAEZER
W—FRSEHSREBRR -

30. RITHBRREE
(@ RERREFHEIEFE

The Group The Company
FEHE F 4

Cash at bank and on #RITRFEES

hand 304,268,113 83,131,819 178,056,457 39,421,954
Short-term bank MHEITER

deposits 2,051,793 — - —
Cash and cash RehkReEE

equivalents BH 306,319,906 83,131,819 178,056,457 39,421,954

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had bank balances
and cash of approximately HK$85,486,363 (2013:
HK$18,068,000) which are denominated in RMB. The
remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject to
the exchange control restrictions imposed by the PRC
government.

The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default.

R-ZE—NFE+=-_A=+—H"
REBBUAARBINEZRITE
#h K I8 4 #185,486,36378 T (Z &
— = £: 18,068,000/ JT) ° ¥ %
S FAE R BEIINZ P BRBT
B2 INEE S TR o

BRRTESKERNEERFAE
T HAYE R AL 8k 2 $R1T -
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30. BANK BALANCES AND CASH (continued) 30. SRITHEBRIRE(E)
(a) Cash and cash equivalent (continued) (@ WRERBFELZEIEB(Z)
Bank balances and cash include the following for the MIFEHRSRERMS  RITHE

purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows: HEREBEATEIE:

The Group
F
2013
—T—=F

HKS$

78T
Cash at bank and on hand RITNFHEIRS 304,268,113 83,131,819
Short-term bank deposits MHRITER 2,051,793 —
Segregated trust bank balances B S FERR P AR ER (14,246,690) (6,041,107)
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEBEER 292,073,216 77,090,712

(b) Restricted cash (b) ZRFHFE

RZE—NWFF+_A=+—
B A R #1534,9987T (1 & 7
1,910,811/5 rc><_ T —=—F: %)
BXBRHIB &L HiEAESH
iﬁﬂﬁfﬁ:zmaﬂ% £ IR

As at 31 December 2014, RMB1,534,998, which is
equivalent to HK$1,910,811 (2013: HK$NIl) are restricted
cash balance held at desighated bank account controlled
by customs of the PRC as the guarantee deposit for the
motor vehicle under the supervision by the customs of

the PRC. ZHBG@EES 2 EERITERP
A -
31. TRADE PAYABLES 31. EHESIRIE
The Group
xE&E
2013
—F—=

HK$
T

Amounts payable arising from securities BHEEL % BETEE

broking: AN

Margin clients R *’&/\%}5 103,593 123,968
Cash clients ReRP 15,383,934 7,762,795
HKSCC, net EAEECFE) 63,368 =
Other trade payables H b ERTE 5 5RIE 5,897 794,964
15,556,792 8,681,727
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TRADE PAYABLES (continued)

Amounts payable to margin clients are repayable on demand.
No aged analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the
directors, the aged analysis does not give additional value
in view of the nature of the business of securities margin
financing.

The settlement terms of amounts payable arising from securities
broking are one or two trade days after the trade execution
date. Except for the amounts payable to margin clients as
mentioned above, these balances are aged within 30 days.

31.

BB SRIE(E)

ENREEEFE

ME+=—A=+—RHIEFE

RIRBIBEREE -

ENEFRECHMEXBLHE &

=
R

BREIRE DT ©

RRREITL BERMBEIMEER

BACLEGMEERARIEANE
IRZAE —SMEXZARNZN -
BREoENRESCREFE
BR=1tHRBEE -

OB SN R

The following is an aged analysis of other trade payables at the HENEZIRERSHREHEER
end of each reporting period: RrBREC D AT A0 -
The Group
AEH
2013
—T-=F
HK$
T
0-30 days 0£30H - —
31-90 days 31£290H - —
91-180 days 912180H - —
181-365 days 1812 365H - —
Over 365 days 365 £ 5,897 794,964
5,897 794,964
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32. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 32. HihFEMHRIARERIE
Included in other payables of the Group as at 31 December AEBR-_ZE—NER_T—=F+=
2014 and 2013 were the following amounts due to related A=+ —BzEMENREBEBBRFEUT
parties: FER BB E AT RUE
The Group The Company
AEE EAT

Amounts due to related BN BREEAL

parties: FRIA
FNTEEREBRA I EE
7] (transliterated as "EBRAF
Shenzhen Guangxin (CRINEED
Investment Company (M 3E@)
Limited) (“Shenzhen
Guangxin”) (Note (a)) 795,416 815,058 - -
A Director of the Company ARFIEZEZEZ
IA 175,050 254,673 - —
970,466 1,069,731 - —
Other payables and Hab A RmE R
accruals & &t FRIE 5,773,444 6,351,418 1,106,936 2,084,136
6,743,910 7,421,149 1,106,936 2,084,136
Notes: B &
(@) Shenzhen Guangxin is a limited company established in the PRC and is (@) FINEFEAE—HERPRBEKIOERAF
controlled by Ms. Chen Dongjin, the spouse of Mr. Wang Wenming who BEARBESTNALEE ZRBRLE
is a Director of the Company. i e
(b) The amounts due to the above related parties are unsecured, interest- (b) A L BREALTZRBAERE
free, denominated in RMB and repayable on demand. B UARBEHERARERES -
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33. BORROWINGS 33. &=
The Group
xE
2013
HK$
BT
Borrowings included in current liabilities AR EBBERNER
— Secured bank borrowings — BEFEITER 12,377,681 14,206,092
Notes: B & -
(@) The maturity of borrowings is as follows (Note (c)): @ BREEAEFBOT (M) :
The Group
g
2014 2013
—E—MmE —E-=F
HK$
o
Within one year —F R 1,882,660 1,829,486
In the second year F_F 1,939,923 1,882,732
In the third to fifth year E=-EERF 6,181,030 5,097,897
Over five years koA 2,374,068 4,495,977
12,377,681 14,206,092
(b) At 31 December 2014, the bank borrowings of the Group were (b) RZZ—ME+-_A=+—8 ~"E@R
secured by the charges over the Group’s land and buildings (Note 17) TERBHAEERZ i REF (M E17)1E
and corporate guarantees executed by the Company (Note 41). At 31 A WEAQFREEREERGE
December 2014, the Group’s bank borrowings are denominated in HKS$, M) e RA-EBE—ME+-F=+—H &%
bearing floating interest rate of 3.00% (2013: 3.00%) per annum. B RITERIEUETIE WS FT
B300E(ZE—=F:3.00E)st 8 °
(© The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates set out (© RSB HZRERMZMSTETERKA
in the loan agreement. HEtHE -
(d) The bank borrowings are shown under current liabilities as the loan (d) HRERBEHABRERERER &
agreements contain a repayment on demand clause. RITERBIRARBBEERERET -
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34. DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES
The movement on the deferred income tax liabilities account is

34.

BEFSBEE
EEFfEHAGEcZ2EHMT:

as follows:
The Group
¥
2013
—E—=

HK$

78T
At 1 January ®—A—H 4,016,263 4,197,812
Credit to the consolidated statement of profit FFA4REEzE M EM

or loss and other comprehensive income 2HEWARE (195,732) (181,549)

Additions through business combination BEREBEHARAE 56,230,535 —
Currency translation difference BERERLERS 747,541 —
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 60,798,607 4,016,263

The deferred income tax liabilities are attributable to accelerated
tax depreciation and fair value adjustment on non-monetary
assets through business combination.

A deferred tax asset has not been recognized in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of estimated
unused tax losses available for offset against future profits due
to the uncertainty of future profit streams. These unrecognized
temporary differences have no expiry date.

As at 31 December 2014, the unrecognized deferred tax assets
of the Group and the Company are as follows:

The Group
x&EH

Unused tax losses AEARIEE B 16,873,811

13,859,620

A 13 1B 5 20 R B 9 B R
BBEBHAHIFEBUEEIAT
EBE

R R eERE E B IRFI B RR - Bk &
R iR & B 15 R 5 A A A K 8 B R R
Bzt R BB R R RE
HEE -2 S AMAY N ZHIL &N
fR °

RZZE—NE+_A=1+—H X&H
RARBZ REREEFRSHEEDN
T

The Company
AATF

3,376,090 1,575,316
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35. SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM 35. BRARGE
Number of Ordinary Share
issued shares shares premium Total
21T
Bi&E TEK % 153 i (8 Foh
Note (in thousands) HK$ HK$ HKS$
Bt & (FR) BT BT BT
As at 1 January 2013 and WZZE-=%—-A—H
Issue of shares through: BBAT HRBETRS 4,028,964 40289642  1028,819,484 1,069,109,126
— Placement — & 429,996 4,299,960 47,729,556 52,029,516
Transaction costs attributable to B & A& 7
the placement of shares 1R RS A - - (1,048,353) (1,048,353)
At 31 December 2013 and
at 1 January 2014 4,458,960 44,589,602 1,075,500,687 1,120,090,289
Acquisition of subsidiary U B I A () (i 350,000 3,500,000 101,500,000 105,000,000
Issue of shares through: BRATAHAET
fig 15 -
— Placement — & (iv) 889,998 8,899,980 355,999,200 364,899,180
Issue of shares upon exercise of ~ R ARRIEFEITEREITRGD
warrant (iii) 800,000 8,000,000 91,423,224 99,423,224
Transaction costs attributable to fid & 1% 0 FE 15 2 5 AR
the placement of shares - — (9,624,245) (9,624,245)
At 31 December 2014 R-F—-MNE+=-A=+-—H 6,498,958 64,989,582 1,614,798,866 1,679,788,448

The total authorized number of ordinary shares is A E i A% 42 20510,000,000,000% (=
10,000,000,000 shares (2013: 10,000,000,000 shares) with a = — =4 :10,000,000,0000%) * &A% m
par value of HK$0.01 per share (2013: HK$0.01 per share). Al EROOIBIL(ZE—=F: R0.018
issued shares are fully paid. Jo)c FTAEBRTRMBRARHEEHE -
Notes: B & -

AEER-_ZT—NFE+E A+ OEMRHER
% £7150,000,0000% & i B - {F & 1 2 %
JITREBRZERATER 2 HBANRE -
BETLBERMTEOER EE 4B %7
RHER - BEFTROZAFELER
45,000,0007% 7T °

(i) The Group issued 150,000,000 ordinary shares on 14 July 2014 to the (i)
vendor as part of the purchase consideration for interests in Shenzhen
Star Technology Co., Ltd. The ordinary shares issued have the same
rights as the other shares in issue. The fair value of the shares issued
amounted to HK$45,000,000.

FEEREBRITREBHRERR
A Z # 7 %% 17200,000,000% & i A% - 18
BHBAKBHRZENRERE AR
RRFETEHE °

(i) The Group issued 200,000,000 ordinary shares for the acquisition of (i)
the interests in Shenzhen Star Technology Co., Ltd, which is subject to
the escrow agreement according to the profit guarantee requirement in
accordance with the related acquisition agreement.
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35. SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM (continued)

Notes: (continued)

36.

37.

)

v)

During the year these shares were issued pursuant to the exercise of
warrants granted in previous year on 11 July 2014, 3 September 2014
and 24 December 2014 respectively. These shares rank pari passu in all
respect with other shares in issue.

In 22 October 2014, the Company placed through the placing agent to
issue 889,998,000 ordinary shares at a price of HK$0.41 per share

SPECIAL RESERVE

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal amount of the shares issued by the
Company and the aggregate of the nominal amount of the
issued share capital and share premium of First China Financial
Holdings (BVI) Limited acquired pursuant to the corporate
reorganization undertaken in preparation for the listing of the
Company’s shares on GEM on 11 January 2002,

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(a)

The Old Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme under
which persons working for the interest of the Group are
entitled to an opportunity to obtain equity interest in the
Company. The number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the share option scheme
and any other share option schemes is not permitted to
exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue from
time to time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. The maximum number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of options granted and
to be granted pursuant to the Old Share Option Scheme
and any other share options schemes of the Company
to any person (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant of options shall not exceed 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders.
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35.

36.

37.

B A R i (B (42)
HiaE: (4

(i)

)

FRBRERNBEFERLD2RBRER
BOEzBER 2ERkHORT_F—0O
FLA+—H ZE-EOFAA=ZBERZ
T-NET AT HBEET - ZER
NEEMBETRNERTEZTAERSE

E/ ‘\

RZE—WEFE+AZ+ZR  AQFABEB
B R IEAEROAE T 2 BIR B & 81T
889,998,000/% & i % °

5 Bl {5t

RNEE ZERIFETEARR AR B
EBEARARABROR=ZZEZE=F—A+
—BREAIFER EMATETREEHRAN
BEATIR 0 2 T B B BT BB First China
Financial Holdings (BVI) Limited 2 %17
RAMERRMND GEBER CE5 -

R B #E 5T &
(a) ERIRHESTE

ARBIRBBRETS - ARAK
SEMNBETHEZ ATREESAE
RABREZEE - RIFESAR
AR =L E  DRIREER
T B R AT A (b BB A A AT &1 A]
TROZBREMMS RN EE
NEBBARRTRDZHITRN
30% ° FRIFEBARBBMRESL
HeOfE - BRI B B g B A
ER+—EARE REEBK
RERT B AR R RME o] E At BB AR A
EEEEHERTEMALZ
BREERBETERAHKRITE
BRBETERCERBEH
TZEERE TFEBEBAQTE
BERITRM1% -



First China Financial Network Holdings Limited B ZE&LREEEEGR D T

NoTES To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SaMBHREME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—Z—WNF+-_A=+—HIFE

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 37. BBR#ERTEI(E)
(a) The OId Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) EERRRRMERTEICE)

The Old Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant KRARBRER-_ZEZE—F+=A
to a resolution passed on 17 December 2001. The +HtHBBZRAEER  RMER
purpose of the Old Share Option Scheme is to provide RS - ERREEIETER
the people and the parties working for the interest of the RAEBENRIEZATRES
Group with an opportunity to obtain equity interest in the REESARTREZ#E 1
Company, thus linking their interest with the interest of RS M mEREE 2 Flam
the Group and thereby providing them with an incentive HE  UNEBESEAEAEE T
to work better for the interest of the Group. Under the mNHERE N - RIFERKRE
Old Share Option Scheme, the Board of Directors of &l ARFEEEAMEER
the Company may grant options to eligible employees, BERBARAREMNB AT
including Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, ER)REBERE URBARQ
to subscribe for shares in the Company. Additionally, the AR o SN - N R A AW
Company may, from time to time, grant share options to INAE=FREERE AN
outside third parties for settlement in respect of goods or ZEANTMASERHE SR
services provided to the Group. HB2ER -

HK$1 is payable on the acceptance of the option per EWNERESARGIEECE
grant. Options may generally be exercised at any time BREZMET - ElE—KT
during a period to be notified by the Board to each REZEBASARAZHEA
grantee provided that the period within which the option EAIBFREATEE - HEREARIE 21T
must be exercised shall not be more than 10 years from HMREBELERELREFTTE
the date of grant of the share option. BT F o

The exercise price is determined by the Board, and will TEERESEET B HMER
not be less than the higher of () the closing price of the TA=Fz2HE=aEBK: ()XRQ 7
Company’s shares on the date of grant; (i) the average f% 7 A 5%t B BR 2 W TR AE ¢ (i) A%
closing price of the shares for the five Trading Days PREEZERHBHITAEISAH
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (i) the 2 FHWTHE K (i)IR D EE e

nominal value of a share.

On 5 September 2007, share options to subscribe for RZZBZELFNRAREAR BEAQ
an aggregate of 32,400,000 shares of the Company AETEEREERLARES
were granted to certain Directors and employees of the $£32,400,0000% 28 2 B f% 19 2 B
Company. fix # o
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(@)

The Old Share Option Scheme (continued)

On 13 April 2010, share options to subscribe for an
aggregate of 84,000,000 shares of the Company were
granted to certain directors and employees of the
Company. The fair value of 84,000,000 share options
granted under the share option scheme on 13 April 2010
was determined by the Directors to be HK$23,382,573
with reference to a valuation performed by an
independent firm of professional valuers using a binomial
model. The inputs into the model included grant date
share price of HK$0.4, exercise price of HK$0.419 per
share, expected volatility of 103.41%, expected option life
of 10 years, no expected dividend and estimated risk-free
interest rate of 2.833%.

The Old Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company
on 17 December 2001 had expired on 16 December
2011. The Company has adopted the New Share Option
Scheme on 21 June 2012.
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(a)
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R-ZZE—ZFWNA+=H"  |AK
REIBETESREEBRLARE
4 £84,000,0000% A8 A 7 f% 19 2
BRE - EE2EHBLEER
ERME-—ERETERNET
ZHEEREBETE R_T—ZTFXO
AT=AREBEREFERL Y
84,000,000 B2 A FE A
23,382,573 L - TEER N 2 &
ABEBERIBHZRER4
BT TEEAER04IIE T
78 HY % 1R A103.41% - 78 Hf BE %
HEHR B10F - BHRE AT K
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 37. BR#ETE(E
(@) The Old Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) EBERR#ESTEIE)
The following table discloses the movements of the share TREEHEZ-_Z—HF+HA
options granted under the Old Share Option Scheme =St+—RLEFERBEERE
during the year ended 31 December 2014: SR LERES
Number of share options
BiREHE
Outstanding Outstanding
as at  Exercised Lapsed as at
Exercise 1 January during the during the 31 December
Name of grantee Date of grant price Exercisable period 2014 year year 2014
R-F—ME R-¥—DF
—A—H +=A=+-8
RBANEE REBEH TEE fTEHMR 18 R AT ERITHE ERRHK i8R AT
Mr. Wang Wenming 13 April 2010 HK$0.419 13/04/2010-12/04/2020 11,682,577 - - 11,682,577
(executive director)
EXHEE(BTES) —T-THEMA+=H 04198T —FT-THEMA+=HE
—E-THFMA+=H
Mr. Lee Yiu Sun 13 April 2010 HK$0.419 13/04/2010-12/04/2020 31,861,575 - - 31,861,575
(executive director)
FREFEEBRTES) ZF-FEMA+=E 0419%RT —F-—-FEMA+=AE
—¥-2FMA+=H
Mr. Lee Yiu Sun 5 September 2007 HK$0.215 05/09/2007-04/09/2017 4,248,210 - - 4,248,210
(executive director)
FRHFEEBTES) —ETtERAAR 02158t —FTLtEARREE
—F¥—-tHEAAMNA
Mr. Liu Runtong (non- 13 April 2010 HK$0.419 13/04/2010-12/04/2020 31,861,575 - - 31,861,575
executive director)
FEEREFRTES) —T-FENA+=H 041987 —FT-FTEMA+=HE
—E-TH£MA+=H
Professor Zhang 13 April 2010 HK$0.419 13/04/2010-12/04/2020 2,124,105 - - 2,124,105
Benzheng
(independent non-
executive director)
RAEHR —E-THEMA+=A 0419%8T —F—-FFMA+=HE
(BIEHTES) —¥-TFMA+=H
Sub-total for directors 81,778,042 - - 81,778,042
BB
3 employees 13 April 2010 HK$0.419 13/04/2010-12/04/2020 8,496,421 - - 8,496,421
=ZERE —T-TEMA+=H 041987 —FT-TEMA+=HE
—F-F¥FMA+Z=H
1 employee 5 September 2007 HK$0.215 05/09/2007-04/09/2017 531,026 - - 531,026
—&REE —ETtEAARE 0215ET —FTLtEARREE
—F¥—-tHEAAMNA
Sub-total for employees 9,027,447 - - 9,027,447
&/t
Total 90,805,489 - - 90,805,489
st
Weight average exercise 0.408 - - 0.408
price
MiEFEHITEE

Annual Report 2014 —Z-—mE43E 157



First China Financial Network Holdings Limited BHZEBKRKEBER D A

NoTES To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E B ER KM

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—Z—WNF+-_A=+—HIFE

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 37. MEHEsTEICE
(@) The Old Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) EEEERRHESTEIE)
The following table discloses the movements of the share TREBHEZZFT—=F+2AH
options granted under the Old Share Option Scheme S+ —RLEFERBREERES
during the year ended 31 December 2013: SR LERES

Number of share options

HRESA
Outstanding Outstanding as
as at Exercised Lapsed at
Exercise 1 January during the during the 31 December
Name of grantee Date of grant price Exercisable period 2013 year year 2013
RZZ—=F WZT—=%F
-A-H +ZA=+-18
ARAER HH B TEE TR HARATE FRTTE FREY HARTTE
Mr. Wang Wenming 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 11,682,577 - - 11,682,577
(executive director)
IXHEEBTES) —Z-2EPNA+=AH 0419871 —ZT-—TFNAFT=HZE
“E-ZENA+T A
Mr. Lee Yiu Sun 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 31,861,575 - - 31,861,575
(executive director)
FRHEEBITES) —Z-TFMNA+=H 0419% 7T —ZT—TFWA+=HZE
—ZE-ZENA+=H
Mr. Lee Yiu Sun 5 September 2007 HK$0.215  05/09/2007-04/09/2017 4,248,210 — - 4,248,210
(executive director)
TR EEBITES) “ZEZEFAARA 02158 —“ZETLFNARBRE
—E-tFAAMA
Mr. Liu Runtong (non- 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 31,861,575 — — 31,861,575
executive director)
EMELECERTES) —Z-2EPNA+=AH 041987t —Z-—TFNA+T=HZE
—T-TFNA+=H
Professor Zhang Benzheng 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 2,124,105 - - 2,124,105
(independent non-
executive director)
RAEHE —E-TFWMA+=R 0419871 —ZT-ZTFNA+=HZE
(BILFRTESR) —Z-ZFNA+ZH
Sub-total for directors 81,778,042 — — 81,778,042
BEFE
3 employees 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 8,496,421 - — 8,496,421
=%EE —Z-ZTFMNA+=H 0419% 7T —ZT—TFWA+=HZE
—ZE-ZENA+=H
1 employee 5 September 2007 HK$0.215  05/09/2007-04/09/2017 531,026 - - 531,026
—%EE —ETH+FNRAER 02158t —ZEELHFNARRZE
—E-+tFNAAMA
Sub-total for employees 9,027,447 — — 9,027,447
& B/t
Total 90,805,489 - - 90,805,489
it
Weight average exercise 0.408 — — 0.408

price

nEEFITER
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 37. BBRRESTEI(E)
(a) The OId Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) EERRRRMERTEICE)
As at 31 December 2014, the Company had 90,805,489 RZFE—WE+=A=+—H"
(2013: 90,805,489) share options outstanding for the ANA T H90,805,48910 (— B — =
share options granted under the Old Share Option F 1 90,805,48917) 1R 1% & B8 % 1
Scheme. The exercise in full of the remaining share FHEIR R M R TTE o 4
options would, under result in the issue of 90,805,489 BT BREEZEMITE  KE
(2013: 90,805,489) additional ordinary shares of the B 58 5N E 1790,805,4890% (— & —
Company and additional share capital of HK$908,055 = £ :90,805,4890% ) AN 1 & E i@
and share premium of HK$36,164,481 (2013: share capital f&% - PA J EE A B8 SRR 45908,055
of HK$908,055 and share premium of HK$36,164,481). 7T & B 19 & (B36,164,481%8 7T

(Z& — =4 |8 ZA&908,055% 7T
2 A% A7 34 (B36,164,4817% 7T) °

(b) The New Share Option Scheme (b) FEERRHERTE

The Company operates a New Share Option Scheme RARRBHBERESE  RA
under which person working for the interest of the Group REEBMZIIEZ ALIRBES
are entitled to an opportunity to obtain equity interest in RARIREZHE - BRIFEBAR
the Company. The number of shares in respect of which NRIREEBLAE - BRIBEN
options may be granted under the New Share Option i M e 51 B % A fa] L fh B AR R BT
Scheme and any other share option schemes is not U TREERER PRGN
permitted to exceed 30% of the shares of the Company 2E TEHEBAARTHDE
in issue from time to time, without prior approval from TR 1930% ° BRIFE B A RAIR
the Company’s shareholders. The maximum number of RELAE - BRIRE L ERE
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options BHRE M+ E A EE - R
granted and to be granted pursuant to the New Share MRS & AR RME A E At
Option Scheme and any other share options schemes ERETEEEEEER TEM
of the Company to any person (including both exercised AT ZzEREREDTE R
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period up to RITEERBE)ETERELR
the date of grant of options shall not exceed 1% of the HeETcRRRE  TEBB
shares of the Company in issue, without prior approval RARIBETRMNDI1% °

from the Company’s shareholders.
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(b)

The New Share Option Scheme (continued)

The New Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant
to a resolution passed on 21 June 2012. The purpose
of the New Share Option Scheme is to provide the
people and the parties working for the interest of the
Group with an opportunity to obtain equity interest in the
Company, thus linking their interest with the interest of
the Group and thereby providing them with an incentive
to work better for the interest of the Group. Under the
New Share Option Scheme, the Board of Directors of
the Company may grant options to eligible employees,
including Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries,
to subscribe for shares in the Company. Additionally, the
Company may, from time to time, grant share options to
outside third parties for settlement in respect of goods or
services provided to the Group.

HK$1 is payable on the acceptance of the option per
grant. Options may generally be exercised at any time
during a period to be notified by the Board to each
grantee provided that the period within which the option
must be exercised shall not be more than 10 years from
the date of grant of the share option.

The exercise price is determined by the Board, and will
not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of grant; (i) the average
closing price of the shares for the five Trading Days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (i) the
nominal value of a share of the Company.
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 37. MBRIx#ERTEI(E
(b) The New Share Option Scheme (continued) (b) HMEERRHESTEIE)
The following table discloses the movements of the share TREEHEZ-_Z—HF+HA
options granted under the New Share Option Scheme =+ —RIEFERBEHNERE
during the year ended 31 December 2014: SR LERES
Number of share options
BkExE
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted  Exercised as at
Exercise 1 January during the during the 31 December
Name of grantee Date of grant price Exercisable period 2014 year year 2014
R-ZT—ME R-F—ME
—-A—H +=ZHA=+-8H
RRANEHE REAH THEE TEHH HMARTE  FERRE ERTE 18 K AT
Mr. Haroon Hasan* 22 September 2014 HK$0.518 22/9/2014-21/9/2024 — 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
(executive Director)
Haroon Hasan ¥t &£+ —E-mEARA=+Z=H 0518 T —F—MEAA=+=H
(BITES) E-B-MERR
—+—H
Mr. James Beeland 22 September 2014 HK$0.518 22/9/2014-21/9/2024 — 20,000,000 - 20,000,000
Rogers Jr.
(independent non-
executive Director)
James Beeland Rogers —E—MW$RALBA=+=H 0518w —F—MEAA=+=H
JrieE E-F-MERA
(BIMEHITES) —+-—H
Mr. Chen Li 13 November 2014 HK$0.590 13/11/2014-12/11/2024 — 15,000,000 - 15,000,000
(executive Director)
BHEEBITES) —E-mE+—-A+=H 0.590% KT —FT—ME+—A+=H
E-F-ME+—-A
+Z=H
Total — 45,000,000 - 45,000,000
“@zt
Weight average - 0.542 - 0.542
exercise price
AT EE
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(b)

The New Share Option Scheme (continued)

As at 31 December 2014, the Company had 45,000,000
share options outstanding for the share options granted
under the New Share Option Scheme. The exercise in full
of the remaining share options would result in the issue
of 45,000,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company
and additional share capital of HK$450,000 and share
premium of HK$23,940,000.

The share options granted to Mr James Beeland Rogers
Jr. and Mr. Chen Li may be exercisable at any time
during the exercisable period. In the event that the
service agreement is terminated before the term ends,
they shall be entitled to the said share options on a pro
rata basis, and any excess share options granted to but
not exercised by them shall lapse.

The vesting condition of the share option granted to
Mr Chen Li is to exercise the share option only after
satisfaction of the condition that the net profit after tax
of Shenzhen Star Technology Co., Ltd (based on its
audited accounts) for the profit targets specified in the
employment contract.

The vesting period of the options are three years’ on pro rata
basis. As Mr. Haroon Hasan has resigned his position on
4 February 2015, the options granted to him which are not
exercised will be lapsed accordingly.

As at 31 December 2013, no share options were granted
under the New Share Option Scheme.
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 37. BBR#ERTEI(E)
(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (c) BEREZAFERRR
The fair value of share options granted under the scheme R A AR 55 B8 AR i 5T 24
at the date of grant was determined using the Binomial ZEREsATFEDRAZER
option pricing model with the following inputs: MErEEIR T 8 A SR
EE:

22 September 22 September 13 November

Date of grant 2014 2014 2014

—T-mE Z—FT-—NFE —FT-—MNEF
zHBEH AA=+=B HhA=+=B +-—-HA+=H
Fair value at the date of grant HK$0.194 HK$0.258 HK$0.302
RELBH A TE 0.1947% 7T 0.258/%8 7T 0.3027% T
Weighted average share price from grant period HK$0.5305 HK$0.5305 HK$0.4837
PR B 2 ik e IR E 0.5305/% T 0.53057C  0.4837% 7T
Exercise price per share HK$0.518 HK$0.518 HK$0.59
BRITEE 0.5187 7T 0.518/8 7T 0.597% 7T
Expected volatility 67% 91% 90%
T8 B 1R

Expected dividend yield — — —
B HI AR B s R

Expected option period (years) 3.0 10.0 10.0
TE HA B AR #E HABR (5F)
Risk-free rate 0.79% 2.04% 1.88%

RS

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility TEEREDANTER KR
of the shares of the Company over the expected option BEBEARQFIRMBEZRERE
period. Changes in the subjective input assumptions AE e ZEEEH ABRER2E
could materially affect the fair value of the share options SEREYECEEERECR
granted. During the year, the fair value of equity-settled FE - FA - RS E I AR
share-based payment of HK$6,578,039 has been 9 $ 4 26,578,039/8 7T 2 A F A
recognized in profit or loss. ERERPER -
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38.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Acquisition of Shenzhen Star Technology Co., Ltd.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company’s
wholly owned subsidiary, First China Securities Consultancy
(Shenzhen) Co., Limited entered into a sales and purchase
agreement and a supplemental agreement dated 30 May 2014
with Ms. Zhou Dongming and Mr. Xu Yijian (the “Vendors”) in
relation to the acquisition of the entire registered capital of &
JFREBREAMR AT (ransliterated as Shenzhen Star
Technology Co., Ltd) which is principally engaged in the trading
of electronic student card and school safety products in the
PRC. The completion date of the acquisition was 14 July 2014.

The acquisition is expected to enhance the Group’s position
in the telecommunication and information technology sector
in the PRC. It also expects the Group will be benefited from
participating in the student safety network project as this
project will attract investment and business opportunities to
maximize the return of the shareholders.

The Group made an initial payment for acquisition totaling
RMB16,000,000 (equivalent to HK$19,656,000) in cash and
issued 350,000,000 new shares in the capital of the company
(the “Consideration shares”) of which 200,000,000 new shares
were subject to the escrow arrangement according to the
profit guarantee requirement as indicated in the acquisition
agreement. Pursuant to the acquisition agreement, the Vendors
guarantee to the Group that the net profit after tax of Shenzhen
Star Technology Co., Ltd. (based on its audited accounts) for
each of the three financial years ending 31 December 2015, 31
December 2016 and 31 December 2017 shall be as follows:
(i) for the year ending 31 December 2015: not less than
RMB20,000,000; (i) for the year ending 31 December 2016: not
less than RMB30,000,000; (jii) for the year ending 31 December
2017: not less than RMB40,000,000.
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BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

Acquisition of Shenzhen Star Technology Co., Ltd.
(continued)

Such shares shall be released to the Vendors if the business
of the acquired companies achieve the aforesaid profit targets
within a specified period. If the Vendors fail to achieve the
profit targets within a specified period, the Group will receive
cash from the Vendors for the purchase of the shares under
escrow arrangement. The Directors consider it is probable
that the Vendors can achieve the said profits targets and
the cash payments by Vendors to acquire the shares under
the escrow arrangement will not be required. The fair value
of this contingent consideration receivable is estimated at
approximately HK$4,200,000.

The Group is required to recognize the acquired companies’
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that satisfy
the recognition criteria at their fair values at the acquisition
date. In the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements, the Group has used the estimated fair values of
the acquired assets and liabilities performed by an independent
valuer. The estimated fair values of the acquired assets and
liabilities over cost of acquisition is recorded as gain on bargain
purchase.

38.
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 38. ¥BEHE)
Acquisition of Shenzhen Star Technology Co., Ltd. KERITXEEREBRAT(2)
(continued)
Assets acquired and liabilities recognized at the date of RBRBEWEEERDHERAE
acquisition:
Fair value
AFE
HKS$
&I
Plant and equipment HEs R 948,069
Intangible assets mEEE 244,471,500
Inventories FE 284,197
Other receivables Hfth jE W 5k 1E 2,378,918
Bank balances and cash SR1T4 ﬁ?&fﬁﬁ 1,448,717
Other payable H b B ROB (6,538,707)
Deferred tax liabilities uﬁjﬁlﬁﬁﬁ (56,230,535)
Net assets acquired BUEEEFE 186,762,159
Gain on bargain purchase arising on the acquisition of W RN MREBAMEBRARESL
Shenzhen Star Technology Co., Ltd.: LB
HK$
& TT
Fair value of net assets acquired shown as above X REREBEEFEZATE 186,762,159
Less: Purchase consideration B EERE
— Cash — B\ (19,656,000)
— Fair value of Consideration shares — REBROZAFEE (105,000,000)
— Contingent consideration receivable — FERSRARE 12,039,300
Gain on bargain purchase EEE RS 74,145,459
Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiary: WE—HMNBARZESREFAE:
HKS
& T
Consideration paid in cash LR& SR 2RE 19,656,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalent acquired BoBEWEReMAESEFMEER (1,448,717)
18,207,283
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BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

Acquisition of Shenzhen Star Technology Co., Ltd.
(continued)

Gain from a bargain purchase of HK$74,145,459 was
recognized upon completion of the acquisition of the Shenzhen
Star Technology Co., Ltd. The gain from a bargain purchase on
acquisition was mainly attributable to depressed market value
of the acquired business because of years of losses due to
challenging economic environment and the limitation of the fund
invested in the product development in the telecommunication
and information technology section for without the financial
support from external parties.

Acquisition cost of HK$1,363,452 have been charged to other
operating expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2014.

The fair value of other receivable is HK$2,378,918. The
contractual receivable amount for the other receivable is the
same amount and it is not expected to be uncollectible.

The revenue included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income since 14 July 2014
contributed by Shenzhen Star Technology Co., Ltd was
HK$1,955,847. The loss of HK$7,458,110 was incurred for the
same period.

Had this business combination been effected at 1 January
2014, the revenue of the Group would have been approximately
HK$40,926,237, and the profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$112,950,530. The directors consider these
‘oro-forma’ numbers to represent an approximate measure
of the performance of the combined Group on an annualized
basis and to provide a reference point for comparison in future
periods.

38.
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39.

40.

WARRANTS RESERVE

On 29 December 2011, the Company issued an aggregate of
800,000,000 warrants by way of placing. The holders of the
warrants have the right to subscribe for 800,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company at an initial subscription price of
HK$0.124 per share within 3 years from the date of issue.

During the vyear, the holders of the warrants exercised
800,000,000 warrants such the exercises resulted in the issue
of 800,000,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of HK$8,000,000 and share premium of
HK$91,423,224.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had future aggregated
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of rented premises as follows:

39. RARRHEREHEE
RZE——F+ZA=Z+NB ' ARF
LABE & 77 = 8 17 & $£800,000,00017 7R
fRiERE - BREEFBEABERNET
AR =F ALY L RIEETKR0124%E
JC 52 B 7K 2 71800,000,000 % 3 37 % °

RAFERN RBREFFBEAGTE
800,000,00017 Rz #7F + © AN A5
518 £7800,000,000% & B A% - LA & %
AN %8 SN 418,000,000 T K % 17 % &
91,423,224 7T, ©

40. EEMLRIE
FEEMEAREAN
R-Z—OFE+-_A=1+—8 X&E
REBEFAIHELEHONERYEE
MZRREFEHEFAEBLENT

The Group
xEH

2013

—E-=F

HK$

T

No later than one year —FR 3,524,583 4,764,734
Later than one year and —FEEAFAN

no later than five years 2,139,984 5,515,054

5,664,567 10,279,788

Leases in respect of rented office premises are negotiated for
an average period of one to three (2013: one to three) years.
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SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 41.
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the Group

EXFHREALXS
FBRUGEMBREAAMEBEREZR
HRGHI REBRERTLAT

had the following significant related party transactions during BERABEABATRS:
the year:
The Group
x&E
2013
—F—=
HK$
BT
Brokerage commission income BESWmELAS
received from directors A 0] 6,900 6,419
Office rentals paid to a director SNTEEZMAE
Gisken (ii) 274,291 1,175,577
Sales agency fee paid to Guangdong X HERIER ZHENR
Brightzone BE (i) 547,362 —
Purchase from associate BitE N alEE (iv) 31,822 —
2013
—F—=
HK$
BT
Key management compensation FEFEABZH N
— Salaries and other short-term employee — FekHEMEHBES
benefits 2wl 4,478,744 3,839,000
— Share options — BER 6,578,039 —
— Post-employment benefits — BEE R A 50,000 57,000
11,106,783 3,896,000
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41. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
Notes:

(i) The commission rates were substantially in line with those normally
offered by the Group to third party clients. As at 31 December 2014, the
outstanding balances with these related parties amounted to HK$Nil (2013:
outstanding balances with the related parties amounted to HK$6,433)
in aggregate, which were included in the net amounts payables to cash
clients and margin clients arising from securities broking (Note 31). The
amounts due were unsecured, interest-free and repayable within one or
two trade days after the trade execution date.

(i) The office rentals were based on terms agreed between the parties
involved. The tenancy agreements were terminated in February 2014.

(iif) On 26 March 2011, Wealth Alliance (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) entered into an agreement with Guangdong Brightzone
pursuant to which Guangdong Brightzone has agreed to provide a
platform to Wealth Alliance, and be responsible for, the sales and
marketing of the stock investment analysis software and software
packages developed and owned by the Group and, in return, Guangdong
Brightzone is entitled to receive a sales agency fee from Wealth Alliance
subject to and upon the terms contained in the agreement (the “Sales
Agency Agreement”). Guangdong Brightzone is owned as to 88.75% by
Shenzhen Guangxin and 11.25% by independent third parties.

Shenzhen Guangxin is controlled by Ms. Chen Dongjin. Ms. Chen Dongjin
is the spouse of Mr. Wang Wenming (who is a Director of the Company)
and is therefore an associate of a connected person of the Company as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions between
Wealth Alliance and Guangdong Brightzone under the Sales Agency
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions on the part of
the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

(iv) Purchases of commodities from associate were conducted at cost. No
significant balance was carried forward at the end of the reporting period
in respect of the current year (2013: Nil).

The Company has given a corporate guarantee to the extent
of HK$30,230,000 (2013: HK$30,230,000) to a bank in respect
of general banking facility granted to two (2013: two) of its
subsidiaries. During the years ended 31 December 2014
and 31 December 2013, such facility was not utilized by the
subsidiaries. In the opinion of the Directors, no material liabilities
will arise from the above corporate guarantee which arose in
the ordinary course of business and fair value of the corporate
guarantee granted by the Company is immaterial.
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 29 January 2015, the Group entered into an agreement
for intent concerning the proposed acquisition for the entire
registered capital of RE)EFHELIRBM AR (transliterated
as Mingin Quantum New Energy Co., Ltd.), which is principally
engaged in the business of provision of solar power electricity.
The Group has paid the refundable earnest money of RMB
20,000,000 to the companies nominated by one of the vendors
on 30 January 2015. The agreement for intent is remained
subject to the results of due diligence exercise on Mingin and
the entry into the sales and purchase agreement may or may
not be proceeded.

42.

HEHEER

RZEBE—RF—A-+NAB KNEEH
ERRERYSETHERERATZ
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RAFEREARKRBEEY -5 H
R-B—RAFE—-A=+HBAHI—F
ERBEEZARSIMNAEERES
A R #20,000,0007T ° = [A) % & 17 A
THRERYHNEBRATLER - T

—EGRIVEEWE -

Annual Report 2014 —Z—mEx®R 171



First China Financial Network Holdings Limited BHZEBKRKEBER D A

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

B % B =

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilites of the WFAZITHNELERGAMBERERZ
Group for the last five financial years as extracted from the published AEBBETREMBFEEEEUNEEES
audited consolidated financial statements is set out below: BEREHIIWNT

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—-HLEE

2013 2012 2011 2010
—E2—=F =ZZT—=-fF ZFT——F =ZT-IFF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT I BT BT
(Restated)
(&%)
RESULTS E
Revenue X 40,616,592 14,809,860 9,185,990 12,686,091 48,989,233
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETISBLRTFIE,
(&518) 120,366,125 (42,467,528) (44,686,708) (34,727,222) (250,567,434)
Income tax (expense)/credit s (Ax), H & (3,147,706) (844,111) 181,522 (4,702,505) 31,927,626
Profit from discontinued operation 48 | 4% & ¥ #5718 - 9,333,152 5,097,537 — —
Profit/(loss) for the year FRFE,(E8B) 117,218,419 (33,978,487) (39,407,649) (39,429,727) (218,639,808)
Attributable to: FEAG -
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ RN 114,540,442 (34,033,645) (39,019,328) (37,855,857) (215,332,026)
Non-controlling interests eI B 2,677,977 55,158 (388,321)  (1,573,870) (3,307,782)
117,218,419 (33,978,487) (39,407,649) (39,429,727) (218,639,808)
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2013 2012 2011 2010
= T ZT——F ZE—ITF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EE -BEREEREE
NON-CONTROLLING L
INTERESTS
Total assets BEMRE 900,049,433 154,122,355 146,521,839 195,251,602 215,767,840
Total liabilities BfEBE (98,789,783) (35,364,540) (48,379,794) (61,807,003)  (43,531,038)
Non-controlling interests FEIE R = (5,267,851)  (2,607,017) (1) 3,557,730 (2,889,706)

795,991,799 116,150,798 98,142,044 137,002,329 169,347,096
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